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Investment Objectlve ond Overview

Fldellty Speaal Values PLC aims to achleve long-term capltal ‘
“growth primarily through investment in equities (and their related
financial instruments) of UK companies which the Investment

Manager believes to be undervalued or where the potentlal has
not been recogmsed by the market

The Company aims to
achieve long-term capital
growth for Shareholders
by investing in ‘special

_ situations’. It aims to seek
" out underappreciated
companies primarily listed

in the UK, but may invest up-

to 20% of total net assets
outside of UK companies.

It is an acti‘vely managed
contrarian investment
. Company that thrives on

4
.

. volatility and uncertainty.

Supported by an extensive
research team, the Portfolio
Manager looks to invest in
out-of-favour companies,

‘having spotted potential

triggers for positive change
believed to have been
missed by others.

By building a portf‘olio of
stocks that are at ditferent

" stages of their recovery

process, the intention is

to deliver outperformance
across different market

. environments.

In what continues to be a
testing period for the market,
the Company’s net asset
value per ordinary share

" total return for the reporting
" year was +5.9% and the '

share price total return was
+5.6%, whilst the FTSE Ali-
Share Index (Benchmark)
total return was +5.2%.
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At a Glance

The Cdmpany's net asset value per ordinary share increased by
- 5.9% and the share price by 5.6%, whilst the Benchmark mcreased by
5.2% (all performance data on a total return basw)

v

As at 31 August 2023 - Summary of the key aspects -
' ' ‘ of the Investment Policy -

The investment approach is flexible, with positions in large,

Shareholders’ Funds
: . medium and smaller sized companies, across all mdustnes

295 1 O ' ] . The Company may make limited investments in companies -
: . m _ : ) outside of the UK.
Market Capitalisation The Company may also invest in other transferable securities,

' ) collective investment schemes, money market instruments, cash
286 7 . O m and deposits, and is also able to use derivatives for éfficient

portfolio management and investment purposes. .

Capital Structure . _ .
Ordinary Shares of 5 pence each . . The Company is able to gear the portfolio and the Board
' takes the view that long-term returns for Shareholders can be

‘ 3 2 4/ O 98/ 9 2 O L | enhanced by the use of gearing in a corefully considered and

. ,monltored way.



Findncidl H'ighlights

2023 © 2022
Assets ot 31 August ‘ . )
Sh_oieholdéré’ funds ; : . ' ‘ - . £951.0m ) - £922.6m
Net Asset Value ("NAV") per ordinary share’ S ' ' o 293.44p - 28467p
Dividends for the year to 31 August A ' ‘
Final dividend proposed pér drdinory share - - ! . ) . 6.27p . 5.45p
_Inierim dividend paid per ofdinary share ‘ : . . : 2.53p ' 2.30p
Total dividends for the year ' . " --8.80p 1.75p
Share price and discount -data for the year ended 31 August N S
Shore price at the year end A . 267.50p 260.50p
Share price: year high ‘ ' , 293.06p .315.00p
Share price: year low S v o A -~ .- 234.00p° - 250.00p
. (Discount) at the yedr end' : ‘ T L - " (8.8%) (8.5%)
(Discount: year Iow)/Premiu}r1: year-high ‘ o T C o (2.8%) 2.1%
Discount: year high - ' S : (103%) (10.7%)
_ Ongoiﬁg Charges Ratio.for the year ended 31 August"? T :  0.70% = 0.69%

1 Alternative Performance Méasures (see pages 78 and- 79) . -
2 Ongoing Charges (excluding finance costs and toxation) expressed as o percentage of the average net asset values for-the year (prepored in accordonce with guidance
issued by the Association of Investment Companies ("AIC")). A definition of Ongoing Charges is in the Glossary of Terms on page 91.
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,Choirmonfs Statement

| have pledsu‘re in presenting the
Annual Report.of Fidelity Special

Values PLC for the year ended
31 August 2023.

Dean Buckley, Chairman

£951.0m
(As at 3T August 2023)
Shareholders’. Funds

+5.9%
(Year ended 31 August 2023) -

Net Asset Value per Ordlnary Shore
totol return

+5.6%

(Year ended 31 August 2023)
Share Price total return

+35.2%

(Year ended 31 August 2023)
Benchmark-total return

" .

The global backdrop for the year under review remains
unsettled. The prolonged Russia/Ukraine war has affected
energy prices and global trade as well as contributing

- to an increasingly fractious geopolitical environment.

More recently, the developing conflict in the Middle East
has added concerns about the impact on oil prices and
disruption to global supply chains and commodity markets.
In the banking sector, the collapse of Credit Suisse in
Europe and several regional banks in the US raised fears
of systemic contagion not seen since the'Global Financial
Crisis of 2008/9: Fortunately, this did not materialise.

The year under review has certainly been an interesting
one for the UK, featuring three Prime Ministers and as

~ many Chancellors of the Exchequer, seven months of

double-digit CPI inflation and eight consecutive base rate
increases. Against this background, the UK stock market

" delivered rather dull returns, with the FTSE All-Share Index
- (“Benchmark”) delivering a total return of a little over 5%

and the mid-cap and small-cap indices essentially flat
year-on-year.

Your Company marginally outperformed the Benchmark,
with a net asset value ("NAV”) total return of 5.9% and

a share price total return of 5.6% compared with the

5.2% return for the Benchmark. While this may look
unremarkable at face value, it is notable given the
significant differences between the Company’s portfolio
and the Benchmark. More than 80% of the Benchmark

is accounted for by the largest stocks that make up the '
FTSE 100 Index (total return of 6.3% for the year), whereas .
your Company only has around a quarter of. its holdings
which are in the FTSE 100 Index. Overall, the weighting in

- smallcap and mid-cap companies hurt relative returns in

the year under review, while stock selection in banks and
financials, where the portfolio’is overweight compared to
the Benchmark, contributed most to the outperformance.

As your Portfolio Manager, Alex Wright, outlines in his
report, while mid-cap and small-cap exposure detracted
from returns relative to the Benchmark, these under-
researched companies currently offer particularly
attractively valued opportunities and have historically
been a strong contributor to the Company’s long-term

“outperformance. Over the ten years to 31 August 2023, the
*Company’s NAV and share price total returns of 107.1%

and 100.0% respectively are well ahead of the Benchmark
total return of 70.6%. It is pleasing to see that Alex’s long-
term, value-focused strategy is still working well, even

as the UK remains out of favour compared with other
developed markets. He is well supported by Jonathan
Winton, the co-Portfolio Manager, and by Fidelity’s

extensive investment research team.

Dividend
Dividends are an important component of long-term total
returns and the Board's policy is to pay dividends twice
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yearly in order to smooth the dividend payments for the
Company’s financial year.

The Company’s revenue return for the year to 31 August
2023 was 10.67 pence per share (2022: 9.42 pence).

An interim dividend of 2.53 pence per share (2022: 2.30
pence) was paid on 21 June 2023. The Board recommends
a final dividend of 6.27 pence per share for the year
ended 31 August 2023 (2022: 5.45 pence) for approval by
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) on
14 December 2023. The interim and final dividends (total
of 8.80 pence) represent an increase of 1.05 pence (13.5%)
over the 7.75 pence paid.for the year ended 31 August
2022. The dividend will be payable on 10 January 2024

to Shareholders on the register at close of business on

1 December 2023 (ex-dividend date 30 November 2023).

The interim and final dividends for the year will provide
Shareholders with a 14th consecutive year of sustained
annual dividend growth. While income is not a core
objective of your Company’s investment strategy, we as a
Board understand the value of being ‘paid to wait’ in times
of more muted stock market performance.

Gearing ‘

Gearing has remained relatively low during the year under
review, beginning the period at 10.0% and ending at 6.5%.
This reflects Alex’s caution on the economic environment
and, while he can find value in individual companies, there
is a risk that the economic outlook may undermine their
ability to deliver on forecast earnings. As he explains in his
report, the current modest level of gearing means Alex has
plenty of ‘dry powder’ that he can use to take advantage
of any new investment opportunities in the coming year.’

The Board has agreed with the Portfolio Manager that if
he is able to find attractive opportunities in the market,
then the Company’s gearing should be allowed to rise.
Combined with Alex’s contrarian and value-focused
investment philosophy, and also making effective use of
the Company’s structural advantages over its open-ended .
counterparts, this should continue to add value for
Shareholders over the long-term.

It is the current intention of the Board that, in normal
market conditions, the Portfolio Manager will maintain
gearing in the range of 0% to 25%. The Company remained
within these levels throughout the reporting year. The ‘
maximum level of gearing dllowed is 40%.

Discount

Investment trust discounts have widened significantly in the
past 18 months, and-at the time of writing, the investment
trust sector average discount was 18.7%. After several '
years of trading close to, or at a premium to NAV, your

Company has not been immune to this trend of widening
discounts. However, in the year under review, the discount
to NAV remained relatively stable, beginning the year at
8.5% and ending it at 8.8%. Under the Company’s discount
management policy, the Board seeks to maintain the-
discount in single digits in-normal market conditions and
during the year it briefly reached the 10% level before

.quickly reverting back into single digits. While a number

of our peers have elected to repurchase shares this year
because of the pressure of rising discounts, we have not
undertaken any sharé repurchases, and as at 31 August
2023, your Company remains the only one in its UK All .
Companies peer group to be trading at a single-digit . -
discount to NAV. The average discount for the other
companies in the peer group was 12.3%.

The Board continues to monitor the level of the Company’s
discount closely and will take action when it believes to do
so will be effective and to the benefit of Shareholders.
Raising our Profile '

While the strength of Alex’s investment performance over
many years will have been a key factor in limiting the rise
in the discount, your Board and.Fidelity have also been
working hard to raise the Company’s profile with both
retail and institutional investors. You may have seen Alex’s
articles in The Sunday Times or the Daily Express; his views
on investing and the UK stock market attract a lot of media
interest; and he also regularly appears at professional
investor roadshows. A discount to NAV tends to arise when
there are more sellers than buyers in the market, and we
appreciate Alex’s efforts to make the time to ensure that
your Company remains high on- investors’ buy lists. External
recognition is always a bonus, and we were delighted that
in November 2022, the Company was named as the best
UK All Companies Trust in the Investment Company of the
Year awards from Investment Week magazine.

Board of Directors

As part of the Board’s succession plan, Andy Irvine
retired from the Board at the conclusion of the AGM .on
14 December 2022, having served on the Board as @
non-executive Director since 2010 and as Chairman since

. 2016, and we thank him for his significant contribution

to the Company during this period. At the same time, |
succeeded him as Chairman of the Board and Nigel Foster

succeeded me as Senior Independent Director. There have

been no other Board changes during the reporting year..

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
for Directors of FTSE 350 companies, all Directors are
subject to annual re-election at the AGM on 14 December
2023. The Directors’ biographies can be found on

page 32, and, between them, they have a wide range

of appropriate skills and experience to form a balanced
Board for the Company.

STRATEGY

. GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL

INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
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Chairman’s.Statement continued

Annual General Meeting -
The Company’s AGM is at 11.00 am on Thursday,

- 14 December 2023.

This is a great opportunity for Shareholders to hear Alex’s
thoughts at first hand and. also to meet your Company’s:
Diréctors. The Board and | hope to see as many of you as
possible on the day. Details of the Company’s AGM are on
the next page.

Outlook -

The UK equity market has remcnned dlstlnctly out of fcvour
in a global context, particularly when compared with

the US..The macro headwinds are undeniable: inflation
has been stubbornly higher than in other developed
economies, interest rates have risen further and faster,

and there is the added uncertainty of a General Election -
at some point in the next 15 months. However, there are
also reasons for optimism: both core and headline inflation
have begun to trend downwards, there is an in¢reasing
expectation that the Bank of England base rate is at

or close to a cyclical peak and upward revisions to UK
GDP numbers suggest a greater likelihood of avoiding
recession. Added to this, the UK stock market remains at
low valuation levels compared to other developed markets,
reducing downside risk and providing the potential for,
significant upside when sentiment becomes more positive.

Against this backdrop, we are fortunate to have a Portfolio
Manager with an active- and contrarian approach to stock
- picking that allows him to seek out pockets of opportunity

that may be under-appreciated by investors both at home
and internationally.

As Alex points out in his Portfolio Manager Review,

there are many UK-isted stocks that may be affected

by the economic cycle in the shortterm but which have
compelling company- specific stories that can ‘be important
drivers of their share price over time. By favouring
attractively valued businesses with lower levels of debt
and the resilience to navigate the climate of uncertainty,
we are confident that Alex’s’selections have the potential
to deliver solid longer-term returns, as has been
demonstrated in your Company’s strong performance
compared to the Benchmark over many years.

On a final note, it was very pleasing to see at the
Company’s AGM on 14 December 2022 that the
Company’s three-yearly continuation resolution was. passed
with 99.89% of votes in favour. We thank our Shareholders
for this overwhelming vote of confidence in Alex’s long-
term approach and look forward to continUing to justify .
your support of Fidelity Speool Values PLC in the yeors
ohead

TetRa/cking

Chairman.
6 November2023
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-Annual General Meelmg Thursday, 14 December 2023 at 11.00 am-

The AGM of the Compcny will be held at 11. 00 am on Thursday, 14 December 2023 at 4 Connon Street, London
EC4M 5AB (nearest tube stations are St Paul’s or Mansion House) and virtually via the online Lumi AGM meetmg
platform. Full details of the meeting are given in the Notice of Meeting on pages 81 to 84.

For those shareholders who are unclble to ottend in person we will live- stream the formal busmess and presentations .

of the meetmg online.

Alex Wright, the Portfolio Manager, will be making a presentation to shareholders hlghhghtmg the achievements
and challenges of the year past and the prospects for the year to come. He and the Board will be very happy
to-answer any questions that shareholders may have. Copies of his presentation.can be requested by email at
investmenttrusts@fil.com or in writing to the Secretary at FIL lnvestmems International, Beech Gate, Millfield Lane,
Lower Kingswood, Tadworth, Surrey KT20 6RP.

.Properly registered Shareholders joining the AGM virtually will be able to vote on the proposed. resolutions. Please

see Note 9 to the Notes to the Notice of Meeting on page 83 for detdils on how to vote virtually. Investors viewing the

AGM online will be able to submit live written questions to the Board and the Portfolio Manager and we WI|| answer
as mony of these as possible at an appropriate juncture during the meeting. :

Further information and links to the Lumi platform may be found on the Company’s website www. fldellty co.uk/
specialvalues. On the day of the AGM iin order to join electromcolly and ask questlons via the Lumi platform,
shareholders will need to connect to the website https://web.lumiagm.com.

Please note that investors on platforms:such as Fidelity Persondl Investing, Hargreaves Lansdown, Interactive Investor
or AJ Bell Youinvest will need to request attendance at the AGM in accordance with the policies of your chosen.
platform. They may request that you submit electronic votes in advance of the meeting. If you are unable to obtain a-
unique IVC and PIN from your nominee or platform, we will also welcome online participation as a guest. Once you .
have accessed https://web.lumiagm.com from your web browser on a tablet or computer, you will need to enter-the
Lumi Meeting ID which is 102-255-614. Y6u should then. select the ‘Guest Access’ option before entering your name -
and who you are representing, if applicable: This w1ll allow you to view the meetlng and ask questions, but you will
not be able to vote. :

STRATEGY

FINANCIAL

GOVERNANCE

INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
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P,Ort_folio.MOnoger’s Review

Alex Wright was appointed as
Portfolio Manager of Fidelity -
Special Values PLCon 1
September 2012. He joined
Fidelity in 2001 as a research
analyst and covered a number
of sectors across the market -
cap spectrum, both in the UK
and developed and emerging
Europe. He became a portfolio
manager in 2007, launching the
Fidelity UK Smaller Companies

Fund in 2008. He is also Portfolio

Manager of Fldellty Speool
Situatiohs Fund. o

Ouestion

‘How has the Compony performed in the
year to 31 August 20237

Answer

The Company recorded a net asset value (“NAV”) and.
share price total return of 5.9% and 5.6% respectively,
which was slightly ahead of the FTSE All-Share Index
(Benchmark) return of 5.2%. The positive returns conceal.
what proved to be another volatile period as markets
grappled with .political uncertainties at home, culminating
in last October’s mini-budget debacle, persistent weaker
economic indicators, stubbornly elevated inflation, and

,_sharply rising interest rates.

In an environment of rising interest rates, our overweight
exposure to banks was the largest contributor to
performance, given the low starting point for valuations
and the meaningful impact of higher rates on bank profits.
The largest individual.contributors were AIB Group, the
leading personal bank and mortgage provider in Ireland,
UK-listed TBC Bank Group, the largest banking group in
Georgia, and Kaspi.kz, the dominant consymer finance,
e-commerce and payments platform in Kazakhstan.

Despite the rising cost of living, retailer Marks & Spencer

" Group bucked the trend, reporting 'strong trading in

clothing and food, taking meaningful market share in both
areas. Similarly, the resurgence in travel demand after the
COVID pandemic saw the share prices of low-cost airline
Ryanair Holdings and passport photo booth operator

ME Group International (formerly known as Photo-Me

. International) recover strongly. Outsourcer Mitie Group

reported record full-year revenues as it posted an increase
in operating profits, boosted by contract wins, renewals
and acquisitions. It is now a much-improved business, with
a healthier balance sheet, simplified structure cmd'huge ’
investments in systems and technology, oIIowmg it to win
more work at better margins.

We make a concerted effort to look for opportunities
across the market, and our resulting bias to small- and

mid-cap companies, which account for about 60% of

the portfolio, hurt relative returns-as they were seen as

" more vulnerable to economic weakness. However, this

is an under-researched area where we continue to find - '
portlculorly attractively valied opportunities.

Sector-wise, our oil and gas positions proved a drag on

performance, with our holding in North Sea producer
Ithaca Energy the largest detractor. The stock was affected -

. by the introduction of a windfall tax, a policy that will hurt

North Sea investments generally, and largely undermine
the UK's energy security goal. The Government is now

-looking to partially reverse this decision.
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Government outsourcer Serco Group was a surprising.
underperformer given that it has delivered strong profits
and recently upgraded its full year earnings forecast. It is
a well-run business that is diversified both geographically
and services-wise and should be capable of producing
inflation protected organic growth with the potential -

for some margin expansion over the medium-term.

Its exposure to defence and immigration contracts is
particularly attractive in the current political environment,
and its strong balance sheet provides mergers and
acquisitions (“M&A”) and buyback optionality.

Drink distributor C&C Group suffered from a slow recovery
in pub demand post-COVID, rising costs and problems
with implementing a new IT system. The market seems to
be assuming those issues are permanent, but we believe
that C&C has an unusually dominant position as one of the
only national distributors and should be able to gradually
pass on price increases and overcome its operational -
challenges to deliver strong profitabitity growth over the
medium-term as margins improve towards historical levels.

Question

High inflation and the cost-of-living
crisis persist. How has this affected the
Company’s portfolio this year?

Answer

- Overall, we have been pleased by the earnings resilience
of the holdings in the Company’s portfolio. Last year, we
materially reduced our consumer exposure, selling our
holdings in domestic housebuilders and cutting exposure
to areas more susceptible to a demand slowdown, such,
as big-ticket items and advertising. These decisions
contributed positively to this year’s performance given the
profit warnings in those industries, and with the housing
market experiencing a marked slowdown. However, the
profit warnings have not been as widespread as feared

and in general-the consumer has proved relatively resilient,-

helping Marks & Spencer, travel companies and airlines
1o beat earnings expectations. This reflects economic
indicators that have been weak but not éxcessively so.

Conversely, higher interest rates have benefited sectors
such as banks and life insurers, which we favour, and
which had been shunned since the global financial crisis.
More generally, the combination of higher rates and

the weaker economic environment is likely to remain

. challenging in the near-term for corporates and consumers

who need to refinance their debts. As a result, we remain
selective and favour companies with lower levels of debt
and the resilience to navigate the uncertainty.

MB&A activity has been prevalent over recent years given
cheap financing and attractive valuations on offer in the
UK. Holdings that exited the Company’s portfolio as a
result of successful bids over the past 12 months include
international power producer ContourGlobal, consultancy
firm RPS Group and teleradiology services provider
Medica Group. The jump in funding costs may deter some
bids, especially at the larger-cap end of the market, but
smaller-sized deals should be more manageable and
valuations in smaller-cap companies are more appealing.

Question

Value stocks have outperformed growth -
stocks over the last three years, do you
think this will continue?

Answer

Over the past decade, we have experienced a prolonged
period of subdued inflation, low interest rates and modest
economic growth. This has favoured growth companies at

" the expense of those that we favour - unloved stocks with

lower downside risk. While this trend began to reverse
towards the end of 2020, value stocks still have significant
ground to catch up. '

The current market environment of higher and stickier

inflation, rising interest rates and economic volatility is more -

aligned to the long-term pattern seen over the last 100
years. History suggests that over the long-term value tends
to outperform, given generally higher discount rates and a
reversion to the mean. We, therefore, believe that we are in
the very early stages of a long-term rally in value stocks.

Question

z

With interest rates at their highest level for
15 years, how will this affect markets and
the Company’s current portfolio?

Answer ‘

Rising interest rates have led to a meaningful de-rating

in some areas of the market where business models

are heavily dependent on debt, such as real estate and
infrastructure, and have caused significant weakness in the
UK housing market. These are industries where we had
very low exposure. ‘

~ Question

How is the UK market valued compared
to the rest of the world? Does the UK still
present a good opportunity for investors?

Answer

UK equities are pricing in extreme pessimism and, as a
result, trade at a significant discount to other markets.
While the near-term outlook is uncertain and corporate
earnings could still disappoint in the UK, this is also true
of other markets such as the US, where valuations are
meaningfully more expensive.

STRATEGY

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL

INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
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Portfolio Manager's Review continued

To provide some context, at the time of writing (September

. 2023), our analysts estimate that the UK equity market
“(FTSE All-Share Index) trades on 10.9x 2024 earnings;

continental European equities (MSC) Europe ex UK
Index) trades on 13.4x earnings and the US (S&P 500
Index) trades on 18.6x earnings. Our portfolio, which
trades on only 7.7x earnings, is at the very bottom of the

-. valuation range seen over my ten year tenure, despite

offering better sales and profit growth prospects, and
carrying significantly less debt. When considering that the
Company’s shares as at 31 August 2023 were available at
a discount of 8.8% to the NAV, we believe that this could
be a great investment opportunity on a three to five year
view.

Question

The Company’s portfolio is overweight
in banking and life insurers. Why do you
prefer these sectors currently?

Answer v '

Financials form the biggest part of the Company’s
portfolio, with banks and life insurers comprising 16%
and 8% respectively of the portfolio. Higher interest
rates have enabled banks to significantly improve their
profitability at a time when earnings in many industries
are under pressure. Yet many investors continue to avoid
banks because they are scarred from the 2008 global
financial crisis. As a result, banks trade on attractive
valuations. UK and Irish banks have become much
higher quality businesses since the changes to the

" regulatory environment over the past decade. They have

”

strengthened their balance sheets, trimmed bloated cost
bases and withdrawn from riskier lending.

Our holdings in the sector dre diversified both
geographically and through business models, with
idiosyncratic factors driving their growth. For example,

our largest holding is AlB Group which is.not only an
interest rate story but also benefits from an improvement in
Ireland’s banking industry, where the .number of competing
groups has recently shrunk from five to three. The rising
interest rate environment is also positive for life insurers,

“which benefit from an 0cce|erol|on in pension fund re-
-, risking.

While our holdings in these two sectors remain atiractively
valued, we have taken some profits following the strong
returns achieved over the past year. We have redeployed
some of the proceeds into non-life insurance companies,
adding to our modest exposure.(c. 4% of the portfolio

at the time of writing) given the improving pricing
environment and moderating cost of insurance claims..

Question

What do you think are the biggest risks
and opportunities for the next 12 months?

Answer

The biggest risk is a recession and its impact on corporate
earnings. While there is increasing talk of a soft landing,
there is considerable historical evidence on.the impact

of monetary tightening to keep us cautious on company
prospects in the nearterm. In this uncertain environment,
we favour companies with lower levels of debt and the
resilience to navigate the uncertainty. We are ‘'wary of
stocks where fundamentals and margins have been strong,
and a deterioration is not priced in. '

While we consider the current macroeconomic backdrop
when we forecast financials. for our holdings and potential
new ideas, we feel our time is best spent on researching
stocks from a bottom-up perspective and taking a long-
term view of their prospects. Many of these companies will
be affected by the economic cycle but have compelling
company specific stories that can be important drivers of
their share price over time.

"Given the nature of the post-pandemic environment, there

are companies that have already exhibited fundamental

. weakness resembling a recessionary scenario, and while

corporate earnings have generally performed better than
expected, there have been profit warnings in the small-
and mid-cap companies’ space. Many of these companies -
have seen their earnings rebased and trade on low
valuations with limited downside and significant upside
once the environment nhormalises. This is starting to present
us with some interésting opportunities, and we have begun
to build positions in some of these stocks particularly in
smaller compcmles

Nonetheless, our caution is reflected in the Company’s
modest gearing. While valuations are attractive and we
are finding new ideas, we are conscious of the near-term
uncertainty and want to retain some dry powder to take

~ advantage of any forced sellers and new opportunities.

Alex Wright
Portfolio Manager
6 November 2023
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Spothght on the Top 10 Holdmgs

-as at 31 August 2023

(Based on Asset Exposure expreésed as o'per_céntage of Net Assets. Asset Exposure: comprises
the value of direct equity investments plus market exposure to derivative instruments.) "

Industry Banks

-AIB Group .

% of Net Assets o ' 5.6%

AIB Group is the top personal bank and mortgage provider.in Ireland and one
of three major Irish domestic banks, with a focus on residential mortgage lending
(circa 50%-of-loans), as well as small and medium-sized (SME)/commercml/
corporate lending.

Industry Tobacco

Imperiol Brands

" % of Net.Assets 4.1%

Imperial Brands is the 4th Iorgest listed tobacco company globally. It is developmg
a range of less harmful products and making good progress both in the UK and in
improving its execution and market share in the traditional tobacco business.

Industry Pharmaceuticals &
Biotechnology

'Roche Holdings

% of Net Assets 3.9%

Roche Holdings is a leading global healthcare company operating in
pharmaceuticals and diagnostics. It has a growing pipeline with early stage
immune-oncology assets. It is the sector leader in terms of innovation and has the
strongest pipeline and research and development (R&D) hub in the sector. Recent
notable development successes include its expansion into multiple sclerosis and

adopting novel antibody technologles

Industry industrial Suppo;'t Services

DCC

.% of Net Assets 3.6%

DCC is a global distributor of liquefied petroleum gas (LPG), medical and
technology products with proven ability to build scale in fragmented sectors
through a disciplined approach to M&A. It has a high-quality business and a long
track record of generating attractive returns. .

Industry Life Insurance

Phoenix Group Holdings

% of Net Assets _ 3.4%

" Phoenix Group Holdings; a leading UK insurer, is a well-run company with an

experienced management team and strong regulatory relationships. It dominates
the UK closed fund consolidator market where it has o proven track record of
successful M&A and synergy delivery.

INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
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.

Spotl [e ht on the Top 1 0 Holdmgs continued

as at 31 August 2023

(Based on Asset Exposure expressed as a percentoge of Net Assets. Asset Exposure comprises
the value of darect‘.equ!ty investments plus market exposure to derivative instruments.)

Industry Life Insurance ' Aviva

% of Net Assets 3.3%

Aviva is a composite insurer that ‘provides life and non-life insurance and asset
management services. It is one of a number of insurers with strong positions in
pensions and retirement income that are held in the portfolio. The life insurance -
sector offers an attractive combination of cheop valuations, attractive dividend
.yields, strong demand/supply fundomentols and growing earnings.

Industry Aerospace & Defense * Babcock International GrOUp

% of Net Assets . 2.9%

Bobcock International Group is & UK ceniric provider of engineering and support.
- services largely to the defense sector, undergoing a turnaround under new
monogemem Disposals have left its balance sheet in a much stronger position,
whilst organic growth has been boosted by a number of new controcts and
generolly h|gher defence expenditure.

Industry Industrial Support Services  Mitie Group"

. % of Net Assets 2.8%

Mitie Group is a diversified UK outsourcer undergoing a turnaround under a new
CEOQ. The business showed its resilience through COVID and has subsequently
showed good organic growth with an |mproved balance sheet.

Industry Oil, Gas & Coal - ‘ oMV

% of-Nét Assets . 2.8% .

OMV is an Austrian integrated oil company, which continues to invest in its core
‘businesses of oil, gas and petrochemicals. The outlook for its gas business is
particularly bright as gas prices are likely to remain structurally higher as a
consequence of the war in Ukraine. It is a highly cash generative business.

Industry Banks o NatWest Group

% of Net Assets - : 2.4%

- NatWest Group has made significant strides in repositioning itself. It is now a
smaller, mostly UK focused, bank with good retail and commercial banking
franchises, a solid balance sheet, a high- quollty depOSIt bose and a well-
dlversmed loan book
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Portfolio Listing
as at 31 August 2023

The Asset Exposures shown below and on pages 12 and 13 medsure exposure to market price movements as a result of owning

shares, bonds and derivative instruments. The Fair Value is the actual value of the portfolio as reported in the Balance Sheet. Where
a contract for difference (“CFD") is held, the Fair Value reflects the profit or loss on the contract since it was opened and is based on
how much the share price of the underlying share has moved. .

L4

Asset Exposure " Fair Value
£'000 " £000
Long Exposures - shares unless otherwise stated ) '
(AIB Group (corporate bond and long CFD) - Banks . 53,398 56 14,231
Imperial Brands - Tobacco . o ‘ . 38822 4.1 38,822
Roche Holdings -'Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology - 36,842 39 36,842
DCC - Industrial Support Services . A ' 34,6(:5 3.6 34,665
Phoenix Group Holdings - Life Insurance _ ’ 32,564 3.4 32,564
Aviva - Life Insurance . ‘ 31,574 33 31,574
Babcock International Group - Aerospoce & Defense” . V ‘ ' 28,046 29 " 28,046
Mitie Group - Industrial Support Services . ’ ' ' 27,095 2.8 27,095
OMV - Oil, Gas & Coal . ' ‘ ) 25,598 2.8 25,598
NatWest Group - Banks . o 22,628 2.4 | 22,628
Ryanair Holdings (shares and long CFD) - Travel & Leisure : o 22,570 ' 24 3,814
Coats Group - General Industrials o o » 22,259 23 . - 22,259
Serco Group (long CFD) -, Industrial Support Services o 20,714 2.2 433
Glenveagh Properties (shares and long CFDs) - Household Goods & Home Construction - 19,962 21 17,396
Barclays - Banks =~ . 19,227 .20 19,227
Spire Healthcare Group - Health Care Providers o ' 18,659 - 2.0 18,659
Standard Chartered - Banks . ; 18,254 ] 1.9 . 18,254
Keller Group (shares and long CFD) - Construction & Materials : ' 17,136 _ 1.8 11,429
Marks & Spenc_er Group - Retailers ] - ’ ) : 17,082 1.8 . 17,082
c&c Groqp (shares and long CFD) ~ Beverages . ) 16,456 1.7 13,828"
Conduit Hdldings - Non-Life Insurance - : . A 16,37_8 1.7 16,378
John Wood Group (shares and long CED) - Oil, Gas & Coal ‘ 14,979 1.6 12,569
Direct Line Insurance Group - Non-Life Insurance 14,708 "15 14,708
Hikma Pharmaceuticals - Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology + 14,670 ) 15 14,670
Victrex - Chemicals ' . . " 14,470 : 15 14470
Sanofi (long CFD) - Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology ) - o 14,386 15 228
Ericsson - Telecommunications Equipment ‘_ 14,175 1.5 14,175
Hellenic Telecommunications Organisation - Telecommunications Service Providers 13,967 15 13,96-7
Close Brothers Group - Bonks . 13,194 ° 1.4 13,194
Bakkavor Group - Food Producers , T . .12519 .13 12,519 -
lthaca Energy - Oil, Gas & Coal ; o ‘ 12,479 13 12,479
Redde Northgotev—' Industrial Transportation —_— _ ) 12,224 1.3 12,224
‘Reckitt Benckiser Group - Personal Care, Drug & Grocery Stores ' 11,896 ' 1.3 11,896
ME Group International - Leisure Goods ) : 11,726 1.2 11,726

British American Tobacco - Tobacco S o 11,174 1.2 1,174

STRATEGY

GOVERNANCE
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Portfolio Listin g continued

Asset Exposure . Fair Value
" £'000 %' . £'000
Ene'rgeanA— Qil, Gas & Coal 11,121 1.2 11,121
Sherborne Investors Guernsey (shares and long CFDs) - Investment Banking & - _ : ' ‘
Brokerage Services : ' - 10,613 1.1 6,398
Just Group - Life Insurance 10,562 1.1 10,562
TBC Bank Group - Banks 10,497 11 10,497
Kdspi.kz - Banks ' 10,319 1.1 10,319
Smart Metering Systems ~ Industrial Support Services 9,781 1.0 9,781
National Grid - Gas, Water & Multi-Utilities 9,135 . 1.0 9,135
Halfords Group - Relailers 9,067 1.0 9,067
Lancashire Holdings - Non-Life Insurance 8,851 0.9 8,851
Essentra (shares and long CFDs) - Industrial Support Services 8,419 0.9 5,945
TT Electronics (shares and long CFD) - Technology Hardware & Equipment 7,702 - 08 7,618
Origin Enterprises (shares and long CFD) - Food Producers 7,390 4 0.8. 6,816
. 1G Design Group - Personal Care, Drug & Grécery Stores 7,350 0.8 7,350
Finsbury Food Group - Food Producers 7,062 0.7 7,062
Dowlais Group - Automobiles & Parts o 6,718 0.7 6,718
Endeavour Mining (corporate bond) - Precious Metals & Mining 6,651 0.7 6,651
GSK - Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology ‘ . 6,512 07 6,512
Wizz Air Holdings - Travel & Leisure’ 6,407 0.7 6,407
Kenmare Resources (long CFDs) - Industrial Metals & Mining 6,347 0.7 (289)
Morgan Advanced Materials - Electronic & Electrical Equipment 6,245 0.7 6,245
PZ Cbssqns - Personal.Care, DriJg & Grocery Stores’ 5,843 0.6 5,843
West African Resources - Precious Metals & Mining 5,745 0.6 - 5,745 -
“ Wentworth Resources (shares and long CFDs) - Oil, Gas & Coal 5,719 0.6 4,615
H&T Group - Finance & Credit Services 5,536 0.6 5,536
PetroTal - Oil, Gas & Coal 5,467 06 5,467
Elementis - Chemicals 5,166 05 5,166
Cairn Homes (shares and long CFD) - Household Goods & Home Construction 5,083 0.5 2,558
Andrada Mining - Industrial Metals & Mining 5,006 0.5 5,006
BW Energy - Oil, Gas & Coal ' 4,842 05 4,842
-Ten Entertainment Group - Travel & Leisure 4,708 0.5 4,708
SSE - Electricity 4 4,650 0.5 4,650
James Fisher & Sons - Industrial Transporiation 4,536 0.5 4,536
Jadestone Energy (shares and long CFDs) - QOil, Gas & Coal 4,390 05 3,438
Norcros - Construction & Materials ) 3,965 0.4 3,965
CentralNic Group - Software & Computer Services 3,909 04 © 3,909
XPS Pensions Group - Investment Banking & Brokerage Services - 3,554 0.4 3,554
Central Asia Metals (long CFD) - Industiial Metals & Mining 3,042 0.3 73
Senior - Aerospace & Defense 3,000 03 3,000
Future - Media - ' 03 2,774

2,774
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FINANCIAL

- ‘Asset Exposure Fair Value
£'000 % £'000
. Gemfields Group - Precious Metals & Mining ! 2,468 0:3 2,468
_ Capital - Industrial Metals & Mining 2,385 0.3 2,385
NewRivel; REIT - Real Estate Investment Trusts 2,347 0.2. 2,347
Alpha Group International - Investment Banking & Brokerage Services h 2,263 0.2 2,263
Shaftesbury Capital (convertible bond) - Real Estote Investment Trusts 2,049 0.2 2,049
Base Resources - Industrial Metals & Mining 2,037 0.2 2,037
Rolls-Royce Holdings - Aerospace & Defense 2,026 0.2 2,026
Watkin Jones - Household Goods & Home Constryction 1‘,952 ; ‘0.2‘ 1,952
Permanent TSB Group Holdings (long CFD) - Banks i,888 0.2 (115)
Smiths News - Industrial Support Services 1,791 0.2 1,791
Orezone Gold - Precious Metals & Mining 1,703 0.2 1,703
Prax Exploration & Production - Oil, Gas & Coal 1,599 0.2 1,599
Secure Trust Bank - Banks 1,485 0.1 1,485
Jubilee Metals Group - Precious-Metals & Mining 1,104 0.1 1,104
Ascentiul - Software & Computer Services 929 0.1 929
Moonpig Group - Retailers 796 0.1 796
Sta?ﬂine Group - Industrial Support Services 786 0.1 786
Atlantic Lithium - Industrial Metals & Mining 772 0.1 772
Worsley Investors - Closed End Investments 656 © 01 656
Brickability Group - Construction-& Materials 592 " 01 - 592
Hostmore (shares and long CFD) - Travel & Leisure . 434 - 390
TVC Holdings - Unlisted Investment ‘ 254 - 254
Marwyn Value Investors - Closed End lnvesiments 242 - 242
Zegona Communications - Telecommunications Service Providers 27 - n 27
McColl's Retail Grqup’- Personal Care, Drug & Grocery Stores ' - - -
Studio Retail Group - Retailers - - -
Unbound Group (shares and long CFD) - Open End & Miscellaneous Investment
Vehicles ) ’ - - -
Gross Asset Exposure (101 holdings) 1,012,765 106.5
Portfolio Fair Value - 883,512

1 Asset Exposure is expressed 'os a percéntoge of Shareholders’ Funds. .

See the next page for details of the Fair Value dnd Asset Exposure of Investments:

*

STRATEGY
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| PO rJ[fOl fe) LiSti ng continued

Fair Value and Asﬁet Exposure of Investmer;ts'
as at 31 August 2023

2023 2022
Fair Value Asset Exposure ‘Asset.Exposure-
. £'000 £'000 % £'000 . %!
“ Investments (Note 10 - see page 66) - 882,692 882,692 . 92.3 - 835672 90.6
_ long CFDs (Note 11 - see page 67) *. -~ 820 130073 . 137 178898 19.4
' - 883,512 1,012,765 106.5 1014570 . . 1100
Cash at bank? T " : 2,028 (127,225) (13.9) (186,056)  °  (20.2)
Fidelity Institutional Liquidity Fund - 57,432 " 57,432 6.0 78,436 8.5
Other net current ossets (excluding derivative assets and A ’ R ' -
liobilities) , , ‘ . 8,077 8,077 ©09 15,649 B IV
‘Shareholders’ Funds L 951,049 951,049 ° 100.0 922,599 100.0

The Company uses gearing through the use of Iong CFD positions. Gross georlng as at 31 August 2023 was 6.5% (2022 10 0%) - see

Note 18 on pcge 77 for-further details.

1 Assét Exposure.is expressed as o percentage ‘of Shcreholders ‘Funds.

2 The asset exposure column for cash at bank has been adjusted to assume the Company traded direct holdlngs rather than exposure being gained through Iong CFD
positions. The amount is derived by loltlng the cost of the shares underlymg the long CTDs when the contracts were opened less lhe wush ut Lunk Lulunce ut the yeut

end.
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'Drstrlbutron of the Portfolro
as at 31 August 2023

The table below and on the néxt page details the Distribution of the Portfolio bosed on Asset Exposure which measures the exposure
of the portfolio to market price movements a's a result of owning shares and derlvotrve instruments.

2023 S 2022

. ) . . Asset ) " Asset
Shares, corporate bonds and derivative instruments = . UK’ Overseas? Exposure® Index* Exposure?
' ' ' A % . % % % %
" Financials o - B ‘ )
Banks ‘ . ) : 142 - 1.7 15.9 A 144
Life Insurance - e 78 . 78 . 24 100
'Non—Life lrrsqronoe o » . 4.1 ) - 41 0.8 . ) 1.8
Investment Banking & Brokeroge Services, » o 06 - : 06 2.6 1.9
Finance & Credit Services A ‘ 06 ot 06 1.7 E 12
.Close-d End Investments C C © 13 - 13 T61 - 03
28.6 ST . 303 22.7 - 296
Industrials- . , ‘ . A
Inoustriol Support Services : . ot . 10.8 . - 108 - 35. ° 14.8
" Aerospace & Defense - . o . ‘ 340 - 34 27 34
Construction & Materials - ' ) ‘ 23 . - 2.3 .18 - 25
General Industrials .~ © . . 23 e 23 16 09
Industrial Transportation ' _ » 1.8 - 18 2 15
Electronic & Elelctricol Equipment ‘ 0.7 - . 0.7 A0 7
Industrial Engineering : , - : I L e 0.7 .
i 13 L - 21.3 125 248
Consumer Staples . ) ‘
Tobacco o ‘ 53 - 53 33 .37
Food Producers ) - 28 - 28 06 23
Personal Care, Drugs & Grocery Stores ' o A 27 - 2f7. . 7.7 1.5
Beverages ‘ ) ‘ 1.8 _ - ‘ 1.8 . 35 2.2
' ' 126 . - 126 151 97
Consumer Discretionary
Travel & Leisure | - : . : A2 24 36 33 T 46
CRetailers . ‘ 29 - ‘29 s . 35
Houseﬁold Goods & Home Construction o L2900 . 29 1.0 .24
Leisure Goods o 12 - 2. o2 06
Autornobiles & Paris , c 07 . 07 01 . -
Media - o ' 03 -~ 03 35 25
Consumer Services - ) o o - L - R - -
Personal Goods S A . ’ - o L 05 - -

9.2 24 - 11.6 11.9 136
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Distribution of the Portfollo continued
as at 31 August 2023

2023 B 2022
. . . . : Asset . ’ Asset
Shares, corporate bonds and derivative instruments V¢ Overseas? Exposure’ Index* Exposure’
- L ' % % % % %
Health Care _ o ) ' ’ ‘
Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology . o 2.2 54. 76 10.7 73
Health Core Providers . ‘ 20 ; - 20 - 2:2
Medical EqUipmen? & Services _ : , - ’ - . - 0.6 -
42 . 54 96 © 113 95
Energy . ] _ . . ‘ }
Ol Gas & Coal 5.7 32 89 M3 8a
' ' 5.7 3.2 8.9 113 8.1
Basic Materials ) ‘ i ' '
Industrial Metals & Mining - : 19 .02 21 6.1 ;.23
Chemicals . ) : 2.0 T - 20 0.6 1.0
Precious Metals & Mlnlng , . .08 1.1 19 : 02 - 1.9
' o a7 13 6.0 69 52
Telecommunications
Telecommunications Service Providers e - 15 '1.5 1.2 1.9
Telecommunications Equipment o L s A 15 ‘ - 1.8
- 3.0 30 12 37
* Utilities :
Gas, Water & Multi-utilities , S 10 - 1.0 T 26 06
Electricity ' . o5 . - 05 - 09 35
Waste & Disposal Services ‘ L - - - 05 »
15 - 1.5 35 46
“Technology - - ‘
Technology Hardware & Eqﬁipment ) 0.8 - 0.8 - 03
Software & Computer Services : 05 - 05° 1.2 08
_ ! 1.3 - 1.3 1.2 1.1
" Real Estate
Real Estote Inveslmen( Trusts : 4 0.4 - . '0.4 2.01 ' -
" Red! Estate Investment & Services , - - - 0.4 L0
' 0.4 - 0.4 2.4 01
Total Asset Exposure ) 89.5 17.0 106.5 100.0 1100
Total Asset Exposure - 2022 S 964 - 139 R 100

1 Comprises.shares listed on a UK exchange, UK derlvauves (clossified by reference to the UK exchonge of the underlying equity) and UK bonds (classified by country of
risk).

2 Comprises shares listed on an overseas exchange, overseas derivatives (classified by reference to the overseas exchange of the underlying equity) and overseas bonds
(classified by couniry of risk). .

3 Asset Exposure is expressed as a percentoge of Shareholders’ Funds.

4 The FTSE All-Share Index which is the Company’s Benchmark.
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As at 31 August

2023 2022 2021 2020 ' 2019 ‘ 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014,
Capital _ . ' )
_-Shureholders’ funds (€m) 951.0 9226 95'4.1 5795 6987 7250 6735 5783 5373 5192
NAV. per ordinary share (p)"? 293.44 28467 - 30479 - 199.81 25299 27198 25463 217.94. 201.61 192.29
' Share price (p)' 267.50- - 260.50 30850 181.60 25150 27600 24650 -196.25 197.50 180.20
(Discount)/premium to NAV (%)? (88): (85 . 12 .(91) (06 15  (32) (100). (20) (63)
Revenue ) . ‘ ' _ ‘
Revenue retur perordinary share (p)'2 1067 942 722 481 865 570 533 415 339 310
Dividends per ordinary share (p)’ 880 775 667 580 725 500 460 . 370 335 330
Ongomg charges ratio (costs of runmng . ] . -
the Company) (%)* . 0.70 0.9 0.76 0.98 0.97 1.04 1.06 1.10 1.10 1.12
Gearlng - ‘
Gross gearing (%)* . 65 100 146 140 25 104 91 155 238 210
" Net gearing (%) . 6.5 " 100 14.6 14£O 25 6.6 09 7.9 . 94 6.4
A Performance Total Returns- .
NAV (%)? ' 459 44 562 185 49  +87 +194 . 499  +73  +107
A Shoré price (%)? +5.6 135 +738 -254 69  +140 +28.1 +11 +124 492
Benchmark (%) +52  +10  +269 126 +04- +47 €143 +117 23 +103

Alternotive Performance Measures.

oA N -

Sources: Fidelity and Datastream.
Past performance is not o guide to future retirns.

Includes a special dividend of 1.50 pence per ordmory share. :
Gioss gearing is the total of: long exposures, plus short exposures and less exposures hedging the portfolio, expressed as a percentage of Shareholders’ Funds.
Net gearing is the total of: long exposures, less short exposures and less-exposures hedging the portfolio, expressed as o percentage of Shareholders’ Funds.

1 Special dividend from the increased income genercted for the year ended 31 August 2019. ’

Figures prior to 2015 have been restoted to reflect the five for one subdlwsnon of ordinary shores which took ploce on 29 June 2015.
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| Attri;but’iQh Anquvs'is |

Source: Fidelity. .

Analysis of chdnge in.NAV total return for the year ended 31 August 2023 %
Impact of: . ' -

Index . 452
'. Stock selection ) - +22
Gearing ’ -1.0
Operational Costs '-0.7

~ Cash _ ~+0:2 .
NAV total return for the year ended 31 August 2023 459
Sector contributors and detractors as at 31 :lxugustl2023 (in absolute terms)

Top 5 Sector Contributors . . o %  Bottom 5'Sector Detra;tdrs %
Banks . P ' +3.4 Teleconim_qnicolions Equipment -0.6
Retailers - ) ' . +1.4 Life Insurance - - 0.5 -
Phcrmocguticdls & Biotechnology - ‘ +1.0  Precious Melals & Mining 05
Non-Life Insurance V ' ) " +0.8 Beverages. 0.4
Travel-& Leisure. A . o +0.7 Oil. Gas & Coal © 0.2

. Stock contributors and ‘detractors as at 31 August 2023 (in absolute terms)

- Top 5 Stock Contributors _ % " Bottom 5 Stock Detractors %
AlB Group o ' o +2.2  lthaca Energy 0.8
Mitie Group ‘ . : -+1.0 Ericsson - 06,
‘Marks & Spencer Group - ‘ L +1TO Serco Group 0.5
Sonofi . . 407 C&C Group 04
Conduit Holdings . - ' ’ ' +0.7  Roche Holdipgs 0.4
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Strategic Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Sirategic Report
of- the Company. The Chairman’s Statement and the Portfolio
Manager’s Review on pages 2 to 8 form part of the Stroteg|c
Report.

". Business and Status

The Company carries on business as an investment company -

" ond has been accepted as an approved investment trust by

HM Revenue & Customs under Sections 1158 -and 1159 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010, subject to the Company continuing to
meet eligibility conditions. The Directors are of the opinion that
the Company has conducted its affairs in @ manner which will
satisfy the conditions for continued approval.

The Company is registered as an investment company under
Section 833 of the Compoanies Act 2006 and its ordinary shares
are listed and traded on the London Stock Exchange. It is not a
close company and has no employees.

Objective ) )

The Company's objective is to achieve long-term capital growth
primarily through investment in equities (and their related
financial instruments) of UK companies which the Investment
Manager believes to be undervalued or where the potential has
not been recognised by the market.

Strategy :
In order to achieve this objective, lhe Compony operates as an
investment company and has an actively managed portfolioof
special situation investments, consisting primarily of UK listed
companies. It has the benefit of investing up to 20% of the

* portiolio in listed companies on overseas exchanges in order to
enhance Shareholder returns. As an investment company, it is
able to gear the portfolio and the Board takes the view that long-
term returns for Shareholders can be enhanced by using gearing
in a carefully considered and monitored way. ’

As part of the strategy, the Board has delegoted the
management of the portfollo and certain other services to the
Manager (FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited). The Portfolio
Manager aims to achieve o total return’on the Company'’s
assets-over the longerterm in excess of the equivalent return

on the FTSE All-Share Index, the Company’s Benchmark. The
stock selection approach adopted by the Portfolio Manager

is considered to be well suited to achieving this objective. The
Board recognises that investing in equities is a long-term process
and the Company’s returns will vary from year to year.

The Company’s objective, strategy and principal activity have
remained unchanged throughout the year ended 31 August 2023.

Investment Management Philosophy, Style and Process
Fidelity International’s (“Fidelity”) distinctive investment approach
is “bottom up” stock picking - investing in companies on the basis
of their underlying strengths, facilitated by extensive research
capabilities. Fidelity’s analysts evaluate companies, meet their .
management and speak to suppliers, competitors and customers
in order to build up a picture of the true state of a company’s
fundamentals. This firsthand reseaich is fundamental to Fidelity's
ability to form a view of a company’s future profitabifity and
ultimately for the Portfolio Manager to decide if he considers it an

attractive investment for our Shareholders. The Portfolic Manager
works closély with the Fidelity analyst team and also has access to
a wide range of research produced by third parties.

Investment Policy

The Company seeks to meet its’ investment objectlve through )
investment in a diversified portfolio of securities and instruments
issued by or related primiarily to UK companies.

The Company will have a blend of investments in Iorgér medivm -
and smaller sized companies and be guided by a controrlon
philosophy. 4 :

The Portfolio Manager has a contrarian style which focuses on
significant valuation anomalies in stocks which are out of favour
with other investors, yet show potential for change. The Portfolio
Manager believes these opportunities exist across the market
capitalisation spectrum, and the investment approach is flexible,
with positions in large, medium and smaller sized companies.
The proportions in each size category may vary over time, as
investment opportunities ofe selected on a bottom up basis. |

Investments typically have the following characteristics:

* ° Unrecognised potential for positive. change: The Portfolio

Manager wants to see evidence of the company émborking .

upon a period of positive change. Once this change begins
to be recognised by the market, there is potential for
substantial upside. . .

_* Limited downside risk: The Portfolio Manager invests in

companies where market expectations are low. They will
have some asset or characteristic that should prevent
significant falls in the share price.

The Benchmark of the Company against which performance is
measured is the FTSE All-Share Index. .

The Company may invest directly in the shares of companies or
indirectly through equity-related instruments (such as derivative
contracts, warrants or convertible bonds) and in debt instruments.
The Company may also invest in unquoted securities, subject to
the investment restrictions set out on page 22. :

Derivatives
The Company may utilise derivative mstruments including index-

" linked notes, CFDs, covered options and other equity-related

derivative instruments as a tool to meet the mvestment objective
of the Company.

“Derivatives usage will focus on, but not be limited to the following

investment strategies:

- As an alternative form of gearing to bank loans or bonds,
_the Company will purchase long CFDs that achieve an
equivalent effect to bank gearing but normolly ol lower
financing costs. .

* To hedge equity market risks where the Portfolio Manager
considers that suitable protection can be purchased to limit
.the downside of a falling market at'a reasonable cost; and
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Strategic Report continued

* By »toking short exposures on stocks that the Portfolio
Manager considers o be over-valued.

The Company will not undertake any naked shorts.

Gearing

The Company may use gearing to enhance’long-term capital
growth. The maximum level of gross gearing is 40%. Within this
limit the Portfolio Manager has the discretion to use a range

of instruments for gearing, such as debt and CFDs, depending
on the relative cost and availability of those instruments. It

is the current intention of the Board that, in normal market
circumstances, the Portfolio Manager will maintain net gearing in
the range of 0% to 25%. Both gross and net gearing are defined
in the Glossary of Terms on page 91. The level of gearing is
considered by the Board at each of its meetings.

Investment Restrictions
Thé Company will invest and manage its assets W|th an objective
of spreodmg risk through the following mvestment restrictions:

* Nosingle mvestment (excludmg cash and cash equwclents)
' nor the oggregote investment in any one company, shall
represent more than 10% of the Company'’s portfolio,
meosured as at the time of investment. '

¢ No more than 20% of the portfolio will be invested in
" companies listed on overseas exchanges.

*  The Company will not invest more than 5% of its gross assets
in unquoted securities. ..

» . The Company will not invest more than 15% of its gross
.assets at the time of investment in listed investment -
companies (including listed investment trusts), including no

" more than.10% of its gross assets ol the time of investment
in funds that do not have stated policies to invest no more
than 15% of their gross assets in other listed closed~ended
investment funds.

Performonce o ) )

The Company’s performance for the year ended 31 August

* 2023 and a summary of the year’s activities and indications of -
trends and factors that may impact the future performance of
the Company are included in the Chairman’s Statement and the
Portfolioc Manager's Review on pages 2 to 8. The Portfolio Listing,

the Distribution of the Portfolio, the Ten Year Record, the Summary .

of Performance Charts and the Attribution Anolysns are set out on
pages 11 to 20.

Dividends and Results

The portfolio is managed actively in pursuit of capital growth.
Hence, in any one year the dividend income received from.
investments will vary according to which stocks are owned during
the reporting period and so will the dividend that will be paid.
In order to continue to qualify as an investment company, the
Company is required by Section 1159 of the Corporation Tax Act
2010 to distribute sufficient net income so that it retains no more
than 15% of its net income in any reporting year.

The Company’s results for the year ended 31 August 2023 are set

" out in the Income Statement on page 55. The revenue return was

10.67 pence and the capital gain was 6. 08 pence, glvmg a total
gain of 16. 75 pence per ordmory share. .

The Board recommends that a final dividend of 6.27 pence per
ordinary share be paid on 10 January 2024 to Shareholders
who appear on the register as at the ‘close of business on
1 December 2023 (ex-dividend date 30 November 2023). This
is in addition to the interim dividend of 2.53 pence per ordmory
share p0|d to Shareholders on 21 June 2023

Key Performunce Indicators

The key performance indicators (“KPls”) used to determine the
performance of the Company.and which are comparable to
those reported by other investment compomes are set out in the
tables below. .

Shareholder Total Returns’

Share price total return for the 1year  3years 5 yeors
yéar ended 31 August. - (%) %y (%)
Fidelity Special Values PLC’ 56 588 +103
Benchmark? +5.2 - +349 +184
Peer group? +3.3 +18.6 +14 .
Net Asset Value ("NAV") Total Returns

NAV per ordinary share total 1year. 3years 5years
return for the year ended ' (%) (%) (%)
31 August o

Fidelity Special Volues PLC' ¥59 4582 - +226.
Benchmark?, +52 4349 +184
Peer group® +4.1 . +222 463
(Discount)/Premium ’

(Dnscount)/Premlum os ot / 2023 2020 - 2018 -
31 August %% . ). (%)
Fidelity Special Values PLC' (8.8) 9.1 15
.Peer group? ' (11.4) (103 (19
Ongoing Churge§ Ratio -~

Ongoing charges ratio for the 2023~ 2020 2018
year ended 31 August* ] % . (%) (%)
Fidelity Special Values PLC? 070 . 098, 1.04

Alternative Performance Measures.
FTSE All-Share Index.

AIC UK All Companies sector (including Fidelity Specml Values PLC)
Defined in the Glossary of Terms on page 91.

ourceés: Fidelity and Datastream.
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In addition to the KPls set out on the previous page, the Board also

monitors the factors contributing to investment results, as set out in

the ‘Attribution Analysis on page 20. Long-term performance is also

monitored and is set out in the Ten Year Record and the ‘Summary
. of Performance Charts on pages 17 to 19.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties and Risk Management

As required by provisions 28 and 29 of the 2018 UK Corporate
“Governance Code, the Board has a robust ongoing process

for identifying, evaluating and managing the principol risks

ond uncertainties faced by the Company, including those that

could threaten its business model, future performance, solvency_
_or liquidity. The Board, with the assistance of the Alternative

Investment Fund Manager (FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited/

the f’Monoger”), has developed a risk matrix which, as part of
“-the risk management and internal controls process, identifies

the key existing and emerging risks and unceriainties that the

Company faces. The Audit Committee continues to identify any

new emerging risks and take any action necessary to mitigate their

potential impact. The risks identified are placed.on the Company’s

risk matrix and graded appropriately. This process, together with '

the policies ahd procedures for the mitigation of éxisting and -

.

Principal Risks

emerging risks, is updated and reviewed regularly.in the form

of comprehensive reports by the Audit Commitiee. The Board -
determines the nature and extent of any risks-it is willing to toke in
order to achieve its strategic objectlves

Climate change, which refers to a large scale shift in the planet's

weather patterns and average temperatures, continues to be a key

emerging as well as a principal risk confronting asset managers
and their investors. The Board notes that the Manager has
integrated ESG considerations, including climate change, into the
Company’s investment process. Further details are on pages 29
to 31: The Board will continue to monitor how this may impact
the Company as a risk to investment valuations and potentially

. Shareholder returns.

The Marioger also has responsibility for risk management for
the Company. It works with the Board to identify and manage
the principal and emerging risks and uncertainties and to ensure
that the Board can contmue to meet its.UK corporate governcnce
obligations. :

.

The Board considers ﬁne risks listed below and on pages 24 and
25 as the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company.

Description and Risk Mitigation

Market, Economic A
and Political Risks

The Company may be affected by market and economic risks. The principal market related risks are
market downturn, interest rate movements, inflation and. market shocks, such as the post pandemic
UK economy recovery, volatility from the war in‘Ukraine and more recently conflict in the Middle

East. The Company may also be impacted by concermns over global economic growth and major

- political events affecting the UK market and economy and the consequences of this. Inflation
remains elevoted across most economies driven by o combination of increased demand following
the pandemic restrictions being lifted, global labour shortages in some sectors and supply chain
shortoges including energy and food security. Inflation and economic instability are leading to o
prolonged cost-of-iving crisis and potentially impacting mvestors risk appetite.

The Company is exposed to a number of geopolmcol risks. The fast-changing global geopolitical
landséape is largely shaped by the Russia and Ukraine war effects, deglobalisation trends and-
w ) - significant supply disruption, as well as fears of global recession amid inflationary pressures and
' ‘ financia| distress. Russia and Ukraine are both significant net exporters of oil, natural gas and

a variety of soft commodities and supply limitations have fuelled global inflation and economic

instability, specifically within Western nations.

The Company's portfolio is made up mainly of listed securities. The Portfolic Manager’s success
or failure to protect and increase the Company’s value against the above:-background is core
- to the Company's continved success. The investment philosophy of stock-picking and mvestmg in-
. attractively valued companies should outperform the Benchmark over time.

‘The risk from the likely effects of unforeseen economic and market events is somewhat mitigated by '
the Compdny'’s invéstment trust structure which means no'forced sales need to take place to deal
- with any redemptions. Theréfore, investments can be held over a longer time horizon.

" The Board reviews market, economic and political risks and legislative changes-at each Board '

meeting.

" Risks to which the Company is exposed to in the market risk category are included in Note 17 to the

risks.

Financial Statements on poges 70 to 76 together with summaries of the policies for managing these -
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Principal Risks

‘ Description and Risk Mitigation

Investment

Performance Risk
" (including the use

of derivatives and

gearing)

The Board relies on the Portfolio.Manager’s skills and judgement to make investment decisions
based on research and analysis of individual stocks and sectors. The Board reviews the
performance of.the ‘asset value of the portfolio against the Company’s Benchmark and its
competitors and also considers the outlook for the market with the Portfolio Manager at each
Board meeting. The emphasis is on long-term investment performance as there |s a risk for the
Company of volatility of performance in the shorter-term.

Deriv'otive instruments are used to protect and enhance investment returns. There is a risk that
the use of derivatives may lead to higher volatility in the NAV and the share price than might
otherwise be the case. The Board has put-in place policies and limits to control the Company’s
use of derivatives dnd exposures. These are monitored on @ daily basis by the Manager's .
Compliance team and regular reports are provided to the Board. Further detail on derivative
instruments risk is included in Note 17 to the Financial Statements on pages 70 to 76.

The Company gears through the use of long CFDs which provide greater flexibility and are
generally cheaper than bank loans as a form of financing. The principal risk is that the Portfolio
Manager fails to use gearing effectively, resulting in a failure to outperform in a rising market
.or increasing underperformance in a falling market. The Board regularly considers the level of

Cybercrime and .
Information Security
Risks

gearing and gearing risk and sets limits within which the Manager must operate.

" The operational risk from cybercrime is significant. Cybercrime threats evolve rapidly and’

consequently the risk is regularly re-assessed and the Board receives regular updates from the
Manager in respect of the type and possible scale of cyberattacks. The Manager’s technology
team has developed o number of initiatives and controls in order to provide enhanced mitigating
protection to this everincreasing threat. The risk is frequently re-assessed by Fidelity’s information
security teams and has resulted in the implementation of new tools and processes, including
improvements to existing ones. Fidelity has a dedicated cybersecurity team which provides
regular awareness updates and best practice guidance.

Risks are increased due to the Russia/Ukraine conflict and the trend to more working from home
following the pandemic. These primarily relate'to phishing, remote access threats, extortion

ond denial of services attacks. The Manager has dedicated detect and respond résources
specifically to monitor the cyber threats associated within the workplace and increased cyber
activity following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. There are a number of mitigating actions in place
including, control strengthening, geo-blocking’ ond phishing mitigants, combined with enhanced
resilience and recovery options. .

The Cdmpony’s third-party service providers also provide assurances and have similar control
measures in. place to detect and respond to cyber threats and activity.

Environmental, Social
-and Governance
("ESG") Risk

There is o risk that the value of the assets of the Company are negatively impacted by ESG related
risks, including climate change risk. ESG risks include investor expectations and how the Company
is positioned from a marketing perspective and whether it is compliant with its ESG disclosure
requirements. Fidelity has embedded ESG factors in its investment decision-making process. ESG
integration is carried out at the fundamental research analyst leve! within its investment teams,
primarily through Fidelity’s Proprietary Sustomobmty Rating - which is designed to generate a
forward-looking and holistic assessment of a company’s ESG risks and opportunities based on
sector-specific key performance indicators across 127 individua! and unique sub-sectors. The
Portfolio Manager is also active in analysing the effects of ESG when making investment decisions.
The Board continues to monitor developments in this area cmd the positioning of the Company’s
_portfolio considering ESG factors.

Further detail on ESG considerations in the investment process and sustainable investing is on
pages 29 and 30. ESG ratings of the companies within the Company’s portfolio compored to MSCI
ratings are provided on page 31.
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Principal Risks

Description and Risk Mitigation

Competition Risk

" process.

‘Threats fbciﬁ'g the Company are loss of Shareholders if the demand for investment trusts declines,

and the demand for passive funds and active ETFs (Exchange-Traded Funds) continue to increase.

- ESG funds offered by competitors may pose competition threats with funds or companies thot
may offer higher ESG credentials, especially for younger investors. The Board reviews the

strategic direction of the Company on an ongoing basis to ensure that it offers a relevant product
{o Shareholders. It also regularly reviews the' Shareholder profile of the Company with the
Company’s Broker ESG foctors are embedded into the Portfolio Monoger s investment decision

0

Business Continuity
Risk

There continues to be increased. focus from financial services regulators around the world on

the contingency plans of regulated financial firms. The top risks globally are cybersecurity,
geopolitical events and natural disasters. There are also ongoing risks from the Russia/Ukraine -
war, specifically regarding the potential loss of power and/or broadband services. Variants of
COVID continue to evolve and some risks remain. '

The Manager continues to take all.-reasonable steps to meet its regulatory obligations, assess
its ability to continue operating and_the steps it needs to take to support its clients, including
the Board and has an appropriate control environment in place. The Manager has provided
the Board with assurance that the Company has appropriate business continuity plons and the

7 prowswn of services has continued to be supplied without interruption.

Specific risks posed by the pandemic continue to ease with increasing levels of staff returning
to routine office-based working, albeit under hybrld working orrongements which allows greater

* flexibility on remote workmg as part of the new operctmg model.

The Compuny relies'on a nuniber of third-party service providers, principolly the Registrar,

. Custodian and Depositary. They are all subject to a risk-based programme of internal audits by’

the Manager and their own internal controls reports are received by the Board on an annual
basis and any concerns are investigaled. The third-party service providers have also confirmed

~ the implementation of appropriate measures to ensure no business disruption. -

Risks associated with these services are generally rated as low, but the financial consequences
could be serious, including reputational damage to the' Company.

Key Person and
Operational Support
Risks

The loss of the Portfolio Manager or key individuals could lead to potential performance, operational -
or regulatory issues. The Manager identifies key dependencies wh|ch are then addressed through
succession plans, pomculorly for porlfollo monogers

The Portfolio Manager, Alex Wright, has a differentiated style in relation to his peers. This styie is

intrinsically linked with the Company’s investment philosophy and strategy and, therefre, the Company
has a key person dependency on him. Fidelity has succession plans in place for its portfolio managers
which have been discussed with the Board.and provides some assurance in this regard. There is a Co-
Portfolio Manager who works alongside the Portfolio Manager and has extensive experience in the

- markets and companies, and shares a common investment approach and complementary investment
. experience with the Portfolio Manager. There is also a risk that the Manager has inadequate

succession plans for other key operational individuals.

-Discount Control Risk

Due to the nature of. investment companies, the price of the Company’s shares and its discount to NAV
are factors which are not totally within the Company’s control. The Board has o discount management
policy in place and some short-term influence over the discount miay be exercised by the use of share
repurchases at acceptable prices and within the parameters set by the Board. The demand for shares
can be influenced through good performonce and an active investor relations progrom.

The Company’s share price, NAV and discount volollhty are monitored daily by the Monoger with the
Company's Broker and considered by the Board on a regular basis:

Regulatory Risk

The Company may be impacted by changes in legislation, taxation, regulation or other external .
influence that require changes to the-business. These are monitored regularly by the Board and

managed through active engagement with»regulcto'rs and trade bodies by the Manager.
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Continuation Vote : .

A continuation vote takes plcce every three years. There is a risk
that Shareholders do not vote in favour of continuation during
periods when performance of the Company’s NAV and share -
price is ‘poor. At the AGM held on 14 December 2022, 99.89% of
Shareholders voted in favour of the continuation of the Company.
The next continuation vote will take, place at the AGM in 2025.

Viability Statement
In accordance with provision 31 of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have assessed the prospects
of the Company over a longer period than the twelve month
period required by the “Going Concérn” basis. The Company
is an investment trust with the objective of ochieving long-term
capital growth. The Board considers long-term to be at least five
years, and accordingly, the Directors believe that five years is”
" an appropriate investment horizon to assess the viability of the
Company, although the life of the Company is not intended to be
limited to this or any other period.

In mokirig an assessment of the viability of the Company, the
Board has considered the following:

» The-ongoing relevance of the investiment objective in
prevailing market conditions; .

* The Company’s level of gearing;

¢ The Company's NAV and share pricé performance
compared to its Benchmark;

«  The principal and emerging risks and uncertainties facing
the Company and their potential impact, as set out on
pages 23 to 25;

. The likely future demand for the Company’s shares;
« . The Company’s share price discount to the,NAV;

»  The liquidity of the Company’s portfolio;

. The>level of income generated by the Compoﬁy; and
. Future income oﬁd expenditure forecasts. '

The Company’s performance for the five.year reporting period
to 31 August 2023 was a NAV total return of +22.6% and a share
price total return of +10.3% compared to the Benchmark total
return of +18.4%. The Board regularly reviews the investment
policy and considers whether it remains appropriate. The Board
has concluded that there is a reasonable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the next five years based on the
following considerations: .

*  The Investment Manager’s compliance with the Company’s
investment objective and’policy, its investment strategy and
asset allocation;

* The fact that the portfolio comprises sufficient readily
realisable securities which can be sold to meet funding
requirements if necessary;

¢ The Board’s discount management policy;-and

* The ongoing processes for monitoririg. operating costs
and income which are considered to be reasonable in
comparison to the Company’s total assets:

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Direciors have
considered the impact of climate change as detailed on page 23
and on page 24. The-Board has also considered.the impact of
regulatory changes, unforeseen markei events and the ongoing
implications of the Russia and Ukraine war and developing

- conflicts in‘the Middle East and how this may affect the Company.

~ In oddition, the Directors’ assessment of the Company'’s ability to ‘

operate in the foreseeable future is included in the Going Concern
Statement which is included in the Directors’ Report on page 33.

PROMOTING THE SUCCESS OF THE COMPANY

Under Section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors
of o ‘company must act in a way they consider, in good faith,
would be most likely to promote the success of the Company

for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have
regard (amongst other matters) to the likely consequences of any
decision in the long-term; the need to foster relationships with the
Company’s suppliers, customers and others; the impact of the
Company’s operations on the community and the environment; .

‘the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high

slandards of business conduct; and the need to act fairly as

~ between members of the company.

As an externally managed Investment Trust, the Company has no
employees or physical assets, and a number of the Company’s
functions are outsourced to third parties. The key outsourced
function is the provision of investment. management services by
the Manager, but other professional service providers support
the Company by providing administration, custodial, banking
and audit services. The Board considers the Company’s key
stakeholders to be the existing and potential Shareholders, '
the external appointed Manager (FIL Investment Services (UK)
Limited) and other third-party professional service providers. The
Board considers that the interest of these stakeholders is aligned
with the Company’s dbjective of delivering long-term capital
growth to investors, in line with the Company’s stated objective
and sirategy, while providing the highest standards of legal,
regulotory and commercial conduct.

The Boord, with the Portfolio Manager, sets the overall investment
strotegy and reviews this at an annual strategy day which is
separate from the regular cycle of board meetings. In order to -
ensure good governance of the Company, the Board has set
various limits on the investments in the portfolic, whether in the
maximum size of individual holdings, the use of derivatives, the
level of gearing and others. These limits and guidelines are
regularly monitored and reviewed and are set out on pages 21

and 22.
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The Board places greot importance on communication with
Shareholders. The Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) provides

the key forum for the Board and the Portfolio Manager-to present -

to the Shareholders on the Company’s performance and future
plans and the Board encourages all Shareholders to attend
in person or virtually and raise any questions or concerns.
The Chdirman and other Board members are available to
meet Shareholders as appropriate. Shareholders may also
communicate with Board members ot any time by writing to
‘them at the Company’s registered office at FIL Investments
International, Beech Gate, Millfield Lane, Tadworth, Surrey KT20
6RP or via the Company Secretary in writing at the same address
or by email at investmenttrusts@fil.com. The Portiolio Manager
meets with major Shareholders, potential investors, stock market
" analysts, journalists and other commentators throughout the
year. These communication opportunities help inform the Board
in considering how best to promote the success of the company
over the long-term. ’
The Board seeks to engage with the Manager and other service
» providers and advisers in a constructive and collaborative way,
promoting a culture of strong governance, while encouraging
-open and constructive debate, in order to ensure appropriate
and regular challenge and evaluation. This aims to enhance
service levels and strengthen relationships with service providers,
with a view to ensuring Shareholders’ interests are best served,
by maintaining the highest standards of commercial conduct
while keeping cost levels competitiveA '

Whilst the Company’s direct operations cre Ilmlted the Board
recognises the importance of conS|derlng the impact of the
Compony s investment strategy on the wider community and
environment. The Board believes that a proper consideration of
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") issues aligns with
the investment 6bjectiVe to deliver long-term capital growth, and
the Board's review of the Manager includes an assessment of
their ESG approach, which is set out on pages 29 to 31.

In addition to ensuring that the Company’s investment objective
was being pursued, key decisions and actions'taken by the
Directors during the reporting year, and up to the date of
approval of this report, have included:

*  As part of the Board's succession plan, the appointment
of Dean Buckley as Chairman of the Board when Andy
Irvine stepped down from the Board at the last AGM. As
a result of the change in Mr Buckley's role, the decision to
appoint Nigel Foster as Senior Independent Director, both
appointments with effect from 14 December 2022;

* The decision to carry out an external Board evaluation using -

the services of Lintstock Ltd. in accordance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code;

+ ' The decision to pay an interim dlwdend of 253 pence per
share and to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
6.27 pence per share (a total of 8.80 pence per share), to
maintain the 14 year track record of increasing dividends,
while retaining funds for reinvestment, consistent with the
objective of long:term capital growth; and

«  The decision to once again hold a hybrid AGM in 2023 in
order to make it more accessible to those investors who are
unable to or prefer.not to attend in person.

‘Board Diversity

The Board’s overriding intention is to ensure that it is-made up of the
best combination of people in order to achieve long-term capital
growth for the Company’s Shareholders from an actively managed
portfolio of investments. To this effect, the Board, as part of its
succession plan, will continue to appoint individuals who, together
as a Board, will aim to ensure the continued optimal promotion of
the Company in the marketplace. In terms of diversity, there were

* two female and three male Directors on the Board as at 31 August

2023. The Board’s composition meets the target of 40% of women
on FTSE 350 company boards by the end of 2025 os set by the
FTSE Women Leaders Review. This is the third and final phase to the

- Hampton-Alexander Review which had a target of 33% of women
board members. The Board also meets the new Listing Rule and the .

FCA's targets on diversity and also that one senior position is held
by a woman. The Board considers the position of Chair of the Audit

- -Committee as a senior Board position. This is held by Claire Boyle.

Gender Reporting

Number of

Senior Board

Positions

(Chair, Senior-

Independent

Number Director and

of Board Percentage of Committee

Mér_nbers the Board Chair)

Men . 3 60% 2
Women 2

40% 1

Although,-the Company’is not a FTSE 250 company, it meets the
recommendations of the Parker Review Committee that each FTSE
250 company should have at least one director from an ethnic
minority background by 2024 so as to improve the ethnic and
cultural diversity of UK company boards as can be seen from the
table on the next page. The Board also meets the new Listing Rule
and the FCA's targets that at least one Director is from an ethnic
minority background. This position is held by Ominder Dhillon.

Ethnic-Background Reporting

Number of
Senior Board
Positions
(Chair, Senior
Independent
- Number Director and
of Board Perceniage of ~ Committee
Members the Board Chair)
_ White British
or other White
{including minority"
white groups) 4 80% 3
Asian/Asion British - 1 - 20% 0
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Environmental, Social and Goverriance (“ESG") in the
-Investment Process .
The Board has coniracted with Fidelity to provide the Company
with investment management and administrative services. The
Board believes that ESG considerations are an important input
into the assessment of the value of the Company’s investments.
The investment universe is ‘undergoing significant structural change
and is likely to be impacted by increasing regulation as a result
of climate change and other social and governance factors. The
Board is committed 1o reviewing how the Manager applies ESG
factors in its investment process. The Fidelity group of companies
(including the Manager and Investment Manager) sets out its -
commitment to responsible investing, and provides a copy of its
detailed Responsible Investing' at www.fidelity.co.uk/responsible-
_investing. Further information on Fidelity International’s approach

* 1o ESG in the investment process-and sustainablé invasting can be
found on pages 29 to 31 and are part of this Strategic Report.

Socially Responsible Investment ) :
The Manager’s primary objective is to produce superior financial
‘returns for the Company’s Shareholders. It believes that high
_standards of corporate social responsibility (CSR) make good
business sense and have the potential to protect and enhance
investment returns. :

Corporate Engagement

The Board believes that the Company shiould, where dppropriote,
take an active interest in the affairs of the companies in which it
invests and that it should exercise its voting rights at their general
meetings. It delegates the responsibility for corporate engagement
and Shareholder voting to the Manager who updates the Board on
issues-and activities. These activities are reviewed regularly by the
~ Manager's corporate governbnce team. ’

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)
As an investment company with all its activities outsourced to
.third parties, the Company’s own direct environmental impact is
~ minimal. The Company has no premises, consumes no electricity,
gas or diesel fuel and consequently does not have a measurable
carbon footprint. The Company is categoriséd as a low energy
user (less than 40MWH) under the Streamlined Energy & Carbon
Reporting regulations and therefore is not required to disclose any -
- energy and carbon information-in this Annual Report.

Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
Product reports of Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD) can be obtained from the Manager’s website -
at https://investment-trusts.fidelity.co.uk.

Future Developmenté

Some trends likely to affect the Company in the future are also
common to many investment companies together with the impact
of regulatory change and emerging risks. The factors likely to affect
the Company’s future development, performance. and positions are
set out in the Chairman’s Statement and the Portfolio Manager's
Review on pages 2 to 8.

By Order of the Board

FIL Investments International
Secretary .

6 November 2023
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ESG in the Investment Process at F|del|ty

Internetlonol

Fidelity International (“Fidelity”) has embedded Environmental,

Social and Governance (“ESG") factors in its investment decision *

making for a number of years. Fidelity has been a signatory

to the United Nations Principles for Responsible Invesiment °
(UNPRI) since’ 2012 and submits an annual report detailing how
it incorporates ESG into its investment analysis. As a founding
signatory to the Net Zero Asset Managers Iitiative, Fidelity

hus commilted 1o halving the carbon fudtprint of ils investinenl
portiolios by 2030, from a 2020 baseline, starting with equity and
corporate bond holdings; and to reach net zero for holdings by
2050.

ESG integration at. Fidelity is carried out-at the fundamental
research analyst level within its investment teams, primarily
through the implementation of the Fidelity Proprietary
Sustainability Rating. This rating was established in 2019 and is
designed to generate a forward:looking and holistic assessment
of a company’s ESG risks and opportunities, based on sector
specific key performance indicators across 127 individual and
unique sub-sectors. A breakdown of the ratings of the companies
in the portfolio using MSCI and Fidelity’s own proprietary ratings
is on page 31. In addition, Fidelity’s portfolio managers are

also active in analysing the-effects of ESG factors when making .
investment decisions: ESG analysis complements financial
analysis to provide a complete view of every compony that is -
researched and monitored.

Fidelity’s opproo;h to integrating ESG factors into its investment
analysis includes the following aclivities: :

« .In-depth research.

. Company engagement.

.+ Active owne;'ship.

. . -Collcberolion Withiﬁ the invesitment industry.

In addition to Fidelity’s Sustainability Ratings, Fidelity has’

developed a proprietary Climate Rating, which is an important
part of its plans to reach net zero emissions across its portfolios.

It utilises its fundamental research capabilities to identify climate

related risks, net zero investments and targets for transition
engagement within the Fidelity investment universe. It assesses:
which companies are in the best-position to transition to net
zero, or have a positive trajectory towards transition. The Climate
Rating is designed to complement the broader Sustainability

_Ratings, which score companies across a range of environmental,”

social and governance criteria.

Although Fidelity’s analysts have overall responsibility for
analysing the environmental, social and governance performance
of the companies in which it invests, Fidelity has a dedicated

. Sustainable Investing Team working closely with the investment
teams and is responsible for consolidating Fidelity's approach to
stewardship, engagement, including thematic engagement, ESG
integration and the exercise of its votes at general meetings. '

The Sustainable Investing Team has a key role in assisting the
investment teams with ESG integration which includes:

« _ ‘Implementing Fidelity's proxy voting guidelines.

*  Engagement with investee companies on ESG issues,
utilising Fidelity’s corporate access research capabilities and
investment scale lo improve corporate behaviour, including
at company meetings.

*  Working closely with the investment team globally across all

.asset closses in integrating ESG into analysis cmd decision-
making.

. P}oviding internal ESG reporting intluding analyst reports,
portfolio manager reviews and induétry analysis.

* Co-ordinating and respondmg to specuflc client queries on
ESG topics.

¢ Publishing client reporting on ESG mtegrctlon and proxy
voting. .

*  Maintaining a thorough understanding of current ESG
themes and trends around the world.

'+ Attending external seminars and conferences focusing on

trending ESG issues ond ESG integration.

»  Providing ESG tfcumng to the mveslment team and across
the business. .

During 2021, Fidelity introduced its susto'inoble‘investi'ng voting
principles and guidelines. These seek to provide a clear overview
of Fidelity’s voting approach, promote improved corporate
behaviours and reduce risk, include environmental and social
factors, increase clarity of votes to issuers and ‘clients- and meet
curreni-market best practices and stewardship expectations.
Examples of the policy include voting against companies not
meeting key criteria on climate change and against management
in developed markets with less than 30% female representation at

board level.

Fidelity’s investment approach involves bottom-up research. As - -
well as studying financial results, the portfolic managers and

“analysts carry out additional qualitative analysis of potential

investments. They examine the business, customers and suppliers
and visit the companies in person to develop a view of every
company in which Fidelity invests. ESG factors are embedded in

- this research process..

Exomples of ESG factors that Fidelity’s invesiment teams may
consider as part of its compony and industry analysis include:

Corporate governance (e.g. Board structure, execullve
vremunercmon)

*  Shareholder nghts (e.g. election of directors, capital
amendments).
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'ESG in the Investment Process et Fldellty

Internohonel continued

+  Changes to regulation (e.g. greenhouse gas emissions
" restrictions, governance codes).

*  Physical threots (eg. extreme weother climate chonge
" water shortages). :

«* Brand and reputotlonal issues (e.g. poor health ond safety
"record, cyber security breoches)

. ',Supply chain monogement (e.g. increase in fotolmes Iost
time injury rates, labour relotnons) :

. Work practices (e.g. observction of health, safety and
human rights provisions and compliance with the provisions
of the Modern Slc\'/ery Act).

Fidelity operates analyst training and developmenl programmes
_ which include modules on ESG themes, topics and strategies and
attendance at external seminars on the trending ESG issues in
the market globally as well as conferences to explore new ways
of mlegrotmg ESG into the investment process across all csset
classes.

Fidelity'uses a number of external research sources around
the world that provide ESG-themed reports and-it subscribes

. to on external ESG research provider and rating .agency to

supplement its organic analysis. Fidelity receives reports that
include company specific and industry specific research’as well
as ad hoc thematic research looking ot particular topics. The
ESG ratings are industry specific and are calculated relative to
industry peers and Fidelity uses these ratings in conjunction with’
its wider analysis. Fidelity's sources of ESG research are rewewed
ona regulor basis.

The ESG ratings and associated company reporis are included

- on Fidelity's centralised research management system. This is an
“integrated desktop database, so that each analyst has a first-

hand view of how each company under their coverage is rated,
according to ESG factors. In addition, ESG ratings are included

in the analyst research notes which are published internally
and form part of the investment decision. The external research
vendor aiso provides controversy-alerts which include information
on companies within its coverage which have been identified-to
have been involved in a high-risk controversy that may have a
material impact on the company’s business or its reputation.
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ESG ASSESSMENT

The charts below show a breakdown of the underlymg stocks in the Company’s portfoho using MCSI and Fldelny s own ESG'ratings.

In the first'chart, MSCI rates issuers on a AAA to CCC scale occordlng to their exposure to industry specific ESG key’ issues and their
ability to manage those issues relative to peers. In the second chart, Fidelity's analysts rate stocks in their coverage universe on a five
scale rating from A (best) to E (worst) and are bosed on the net osset vclue of holdings excludmg cash, ||qU|d|ty funds; derivatives and
ETFs, ond rebased to 100%. . . .
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Board of Directors

Dean Buckley -

Chairman-

(since 14 December 2022)
Appointed 3.November 2015

|
Dean Buckley is o Non-Executive Director of Alliance Trust PLC and Baillie Gifford
& Co Limited. He is Chairman of Evelyn Partners Fund Solutions Limited (previously
Smith & Williamson Fund Administration Limited). He is also Senior independent
Direclor,'Chcin_'non of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
JPMorgan Asia Growth & Income plc.’He was previously a Non-Executive Director
of Saunderson House Ltd and Chief Executive Officer at Scottish Widows Investment
Partnership. Prior to this, he held several positions at HSBC Bank plc, including
Chief Executive Officer for HSBC Asset Management UK and Middle East and Chief
Investment Officer for HSBC Asset Management, European equities, and held a
number of senior Fund Manager positions at Prudential Portfolio Managers. He is
a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries. -

. Claire Boyle
. Chair of the Audit Committee
(since 12 December 2019)’
Appointed 24 June 2019

Claire Boyle is Chair of the Life Science REIT plc and a Non-Executive Director of
The Monks investment Trust PLC and Nippon Active Value Fund plc.’She was until

* recently, a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit Committee of abrdn Jopan
Investment Trust plc. She was a Pariner ot Oxburgh Partners LLP with responsibility
for the Européan Equity Redge Fund and, prior to that, a European Equity Fund
Manager at-American Express Assel Management. She started her investment
career with Robert Fleming Invesiment Management. She is a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants, having worked in fraud investigations ot Coopers &
Lybrand. . : :

Ominder Dhillon
App_c_)inled 23June 2022 .

'

Ominder Dhillon is o Non-executive Director of The City of London tnvestment

" Trust plc and @ Senior Advisor to.IC Research. He has 30 years’ experience of
asset management covering institutionol, wholesale and retail channels. Until
June 2023, he was a Trustee 1o the UK charity, Facing Ristory & Ourselves.
Until Jonuary 2020, he was Global Head of Institutional Distribution at
M&G Investments and prior to that, Monaging Director of Global Business
Development at sustainable and impact investment specialist Impax Asset
Management. Prior.to Impax, he was Head of UK & iretand Institutional
Distribution at Fidelity International, Director Institutional Business Development at
Scottish Widows Investment Porlnérsh_ip and a Director and Portiolio Manager at
John Morrell & Associates Limited.:

Al Directors are Non-Executive Directors and all are independent.

Nigel Foster

Senior Independent Director
(since 14 December 2022)
Appointed 1 September 2015

/ .
(A [M][N]

Nige! Foster has over 42 years’ experience’in the investment management
industry. Prior to joining the Board, he was a Managing Director at BlackRock
where he headed all market facing activities, including lrcdiﬁg and capital
markets for the EMEA region. He was glso Global Head of Derivatives ot -
BlackRock and predecessor firms for. 27 years. He has led a number of
prominent financial rescues and is the author.of “The Derivatives Game”, a book’
that traces the story of derivatives from ancient times to the present day. '

" Alison McGregor
Appointed 1 January 2020

_ '

Alison McGregor is a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit Committee
of Scottish Power Energy Networks, and ‘Chair of The Malcolm Group. Until
December 2019, she was CEO of HSBC Scotland. Prior roles include.Managing
Director 6t Corporate Banking North HSBC, Head of Corporate Banking
Clydesdale and Yorkshire Bank and 24 years’ experience in various banking
roles at Barclays Bank PLC. Prior board roles include Non-Executive Director of
Beatson Cancer Charity, Chair of the Scottish Apprenticeship Advisory Board,
Non-Executive Director of CBI and Non-Executive Director of Scottish Enterprise.
In 2018, she received the Women in Banking ‘and Finance UK award for

" Achievement and was recognised by Action for Children as Woman of Influence
-in Business. In 2017, she was awarded the Scotland Corporate Leader of the

Year Award at The Scottish Women’s Awards.

Committee membership. key

Audit. Management Engagement Némiqction . Committee Chair
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Directors’ Report.

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 August 2023.

The Company was incorporated in England and Wales as

a public limited company on 27 September 1994 under the
name of Fidelity Special Values PLC with the registered number
2972628 and commenced business as an investment trust on
17 November 1994.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY. o 1
FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited (“FISL”) is the Company's
appointed Alternative Investment Fund Mondger (the
“AlFM”/"Manager”). FISL, as the Manager, has delegated

the portfolio management of assets and the role of company
secretary to FIL Investments International.

The Aliernative Investment Fund Management and Secretarial
Services Agreement (the “Management Agreement”) will
continue unless and uritil terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than six months’ notice in writing. However,
it may be terminated without compensation if the Company is

* liquidated pursuant to the procedures loid down in the Articles
of Association of the Company. The Management Agreemen't .
may also be terminated forthwith as a resuit of a material
breach of the Agreement or on the insolvency of the Manager
or the Company. In addition, the Company may terminate the
Agreement by sixty days’ notice if the Manager.ceases to be a
subsidiary of FIL Limited. FIL Limited has no beneficial interest in
the shares of the Company (2022: nil).

The Board reviews the Management Agreement at least annually
and details are included in the Corporate’Governance Statement
on pages 38 and 39.

Management Fee
Since 1 January 2021, the management fee is a single fee of 0. 60%
of net assets.

Fees for the reporting year were £5,698,000 (2022: £5,607,000) and«
are disclosed in Note 4 on page 62. ‘ ,
The Board
Al Directors served on the Board throughout the year ended
31 August 2023, with the exception of Andy Irvine who stepped
- down from the Board on 14 December 2022. A brief description
of all serving Directors as at the dote of this Annual Report is
shown on page 32 and indicates their qualifications for Board
membership. '

Dlrectors and Officers’ Liability Insurance

In addition to benefits under the Monoger s global Dlrectors and
Officers’ liability insurance arrangements, the Company maintains
additional insurance cover for its Directors under its own policy
as permitted by the Companies Act 2006.

Going Concern Statement
The Directors have considered the Company’s investment
objective, risk- management policies, liquidity risk, credit risk,

" capital management policies and _procedures, the nature of

its portfolio and its expenditure and cash flow projections. The
Directors, having considered the liquidity of the Company’s
portfolio of investments (being mainly securities which are readily
realisable) and the projected income and expenditure, are
satisfied that-.the Company is'financially sound and has adequaie
resources to meet all of its liabilities and ongoing expenses and
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The-
Board has, therefore, concluded that the Company has adequate
resources 1o continue to adopt the going concern basis for the
period to 30 November 2024 which is at least twelve months from

~ the date of approval of the Financial Statements. This conclusion

also takes into account the Board’s assessment of the ongoing
risks from the war in Ukraine and significant market events.

Accordingly, the Financial Statements of the Company have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

The prospects of the Compony over a period longer than twelve
months can be found in the Viability Statement on page 26.

Auditor’s Appointment
A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor to the
Company will be proposed at the AGM. on 14 December 2023.

Disclosure of Information to the Company'’s Auditor

As required by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, each
Director in office as ot the date of this Annual Report confirms
that:

a) so far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit’

information of which the Company’s Auditor is unaware; and

b) each Director has taken all the steps that ought to have
been taken as a Director to make himself/herself aware of
any audit irformation, and to establish that the Company’s
Auditor is aware of that information.

Articles of Association
Any amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association must
be made by a special resolution.

Corporate Governance :
The Corporate Governance Statement on poges 37 to 40 forms
part of this report. ,

Registrar, Custodian and Depositary Arrangements

The Company has appointed Link Group as iis Registrar to
manage the Company’s share register, IPMorgan Chase Bank
as its Custodian, which is primarily responsible for safeguarding .
the Company’s assets, and J.P. Morgan Europe Limited as its
Depositary, which is primarily responsible for oversight of the
custody of investment funds and the protection of investors’
interests. Fees paid to these service providers are disclosed in
Note 5 on page 63.
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Directors’ Report continved

Share Copltol )

The Company’s issued share capital comprises ordmory

shares of 5 pence each which are fully listed on the London
Stock Exchange. As at 31 August 2023, the share capital of the - -
Company was 324,098,920 shares (2022:-324,098,920). No
shares were held in Treasury (2022: il).

Premlum/Dlscount Manugement Enhancung Shareholder
Valve:

The Board actively manages the Company’s level of premium/
discount. If the Company is trading at a discount, it seeks to
maintain the discount in single digits in normal market conditions.
The Board seeks authority from Shareholders each year to issue
shares at a premium ‘or to repurchase shares at a discount to

" the NAV either for cancellation or for holding in Treasury. The
Board will exercise these authorities if deemed to be.in the best
interests of Shareholders at the time.

Share iIssues ) :

The Company did not issue any ordinary shares in the year to
31 August 2023 (2022: 11,070,000 issued from its block listing
facility). Since the year end and as at the date of this Annuat

Report, no ordinary shares have been issued.

-'The authorities to issue shares and to disapply pre-emption rings
expire at the AGM on 14 December 2023 dnd resolitions to
renew these authorities will be put to Shareholders at this AGM.

Share Repurchases

The Company did not repurchose any ordinary shares into

Treasury or for cancellation in the year to 31 August 2023

(2022: nil). Since the year end and as at the date of this Annual
" Report, no shares have been repurchosed into Treasury or ior

cancellation.

The cuihority to repurchase shares expires at the AGM on

14 December 2023 and o resolution to renew the authority to
purchase shares, either for cancellation or to buy into Treosury, .
will be put to Shareholdeérs at this AGM.

Substantial Share Interests ‘

As at 31 August 2023 and 30'September 2023, notification had
been received that the Shareholders listed in the table below
held more than 3% of the voting share capital of the Company.

Shareholders.

N © 31 August 30 September -

- . Shareholders .as at 31 August 2023

2023 2023
~ Fidelity Platform Investors . 18.85 18.78 -
Evelyn Partners | 10.18 10.15
Interactive lnvestor -+ 7.65 7.70
Hargreaves Lansdown 7.26 7.26
Rothbones 686 680
RBC Brewin Dolphin 6.05 6.01.
Investec Wealth & Investment 3.43 3.40
A Bell 3.38 3.38

An analysis of Shoreholders as at 31 August 2023 |s detailed in
the table below.

% of voting
share capital

Private Shareholders’ 87.52
Institutions 9.77
' Insurance 1.18
Pension 0.90
Other 0.63

1 Includes Fidelity Piatform Investors (18.85%).

Additional Information Required in the Directors’ Report
Information on proposed dividends, financiol instruments and

4 disclosure on Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

is set out in the Strotegic Report on pages 21 to 28.

Responsibility as an Institutional Shareholder

The Board has adopted the Manager’s Principles of Ownership
in relation to investiments. These Principles include the pursuit -
of an active investment policy through portfolio management
decisions, voting on resolutions at general meetings and
maintaining a continuing dialogue with the management of
investee companies. Fidelity International is ‘a signatory to the
UK Stewardship Code which sets out the responsibilities of
institutional Shareholders and agents. Further details of the
Manager’s Principles of Ownersh|p and voting may be found at .
www. fidelity.co.uk.
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Relations with Shareholders

Communication with Shareholders is given a high priority by
the Board and it liaises with the Manager and the Company’s
broker who are in regular contact with the Company’s major

- institutional investors to canvass Shareholder opinion and to
communicate its views to Shareholders. All Directors are made
aware of Shareholders’ concerns and the Chairman, the Senior
Independent Director and, where appropriate, other Directors,
are-available to meet with Shareholders to discuss strategy
and governance. The Board regularly. monitors the Shareholder .
profile of the Company and receives regular reports from the
‘Manager on meetings attended with Shareholders and any -
concerns raised in such meetings. The Board aims to provide
the maximum opportunity for dialogue between the Company
and Shareholders. If any Shareholder wishes to contact a
member of the Board directly, they should either email the
Company Secretary at investmenttrusts@fil.com or in writing at
FIL Investments International, Beech Gate, Millfield Lane, Lower
Kingswood, Tadworth, Surrey KT20 6RP. The Company Secretary
will attend to any enquiries promptly and ensure thot they are
directed to the Chairman, Senior Independent Director or the
Board as a whole, as appropriate.

The Board encourages all Shareholders to attend the Company’s
AGM on 14 December 2023, details of which can be found on
page 5.

Alex Wright, the' Portfolio Manager, will be making a presentation
to Shareholders highlighting the achievements and challenges

of the year pdsl and the prospects for the year to come. He

and the Board will be very happy to answer any questions that
Shareholders may have. Copies of his presentation can be
requested by email at.investmenttrusts@fil.com or in writing
to the Secretary at FIL Investments International, Beech Gate,
‘Millfield Lane, Lower Kingswood, Tadworth, Surrey KT20 6RP.

The Notice of Meeting on pages 81 to 84 sets out the business
of the AGM and the special business resolutions are explained
more fully on the next page. A separate resolution is proposed
on each substantially separate issuve including the Annual Report
and Financial Statements. The Notice of Meeting and related
papers are sent to shareholders at least 20 working days before
the AGM.

Voting Rights in the Company’s Shares

Every person entitled to vote on a show of hands has one vote.
On a poll every Shareholder who is present in person or by proxy
or representolive has one vote for every ordinary share held. At
general meetings, all proxy votes are counted and, except where
a poll is called, proxy voting is reporied for each resolution after
it has been dealt with on a-show of hands. The proxy voting
results are disclosed on the Company’s page of the Manager's
website at www.fidelity.co.uk/specialvalues oiter the AGM.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

THIS SECTION IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you
shouid seek your own financial advice from your stoc_kbroker,
bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other financial
adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000.

The AGM of the Company will be held at 11.00 am on Thursday,
14 December 2023 at 4 Cannon Street, London EC4M 5AB and.
virtually via the online Lumi AGM meeting platform. Full details of
the meeting are given in the Notice of Meeting on pages 81 to
84. : : :

* For those Shareholders who are unable to attend in persbn

we will live-stream the formol business and presentotlons of the
meeting online..

Properly registered Shareholders joining the AGM virtually will

be able to vote on the proposed Tesolutions. Please see Note

9 to the Notes to the Notice of Meeting on page 83 for.details
on how to vote virtually. Investors viewing the AGM online will

be able to submit live written questions to the Board and the
Portfolio Manager and we will answer as many as possible at an

-appropriate junciure during the meeting.

Further information and links to the Lumi platform may be found

. on the Company’s website www.fidelity.co.uk/speciaivalues.’

On the day of the AGM, in order to join electronically and
ask questions via the Lumi platferm, Shareholders will need to
connect to the website at https://web.lumiagm.com.

We urge Shareholders 1o vote and make use of the proxy form’
provided. Please note that investors on platforms such as Fidelity
Personal Investing, Hargreaves Lansdown, Interactive Investor or
AJ Bell Yovinvest will need to request ‘attendance at the AGM

in accordance with the policies of your chosen platform. They
hmy request that you submit electronic votes in advance of

the meeting. If you are unable to obtain a unique IVC and PIN -
from your-nominee or platform, we will also welcome online
participation as a guest. Once you have accessed https://web.
lumiagm.com from your web browser on a tablet or.computer,
you will need to enter the Lumi Meeting ID which is 102-255-614.
You should then select the ‘Guest Access’ option before entering
your name and who you are representing, if applicable. This will
allow you to view the meeting and ask questions, but you will not
be able to vote.
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Directors’ Report continued

‘Fidelity Platform Investors - Voting at. AGMs
If you hold your shares in the' Company through the Fidelity
Platform, then Fidelity passes on to you the right to vote on the
proposed resolutions at the Company’s AGM. Fidelity Platform

- Investors are advised to vote online via the Broadridge Service
(a company that specialises in investor voting facilities). Investors
can sign up to this facility via their Fidelity investor Account.

Proxy Voting

Paper Proxy Forms will be sent to all Shoreholders who hold
shares on the main share register. This will assist Shareholders to
vote in advance of the meetlng should they decide not to attend
in.person.

If you have sold, transferred or otherwise d/sposed of all your '

shares in the Company, you should pass this document together

- with any accompanying documents, as soon as possible to the
" purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or.other
agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for,
onward transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

At the AGM on 14 December 2023, resolutions will be proposed
relohng to the items of business set out in the Notice of Meeting
on pages 81 and 82, including the |tems of special business -
summarised below.

Authorlty to Allot Shares

Resolution 11 is an ordinary resolution and prowdes the Directors
with a general authority to allot securities in the Company

up 1o an aggregate nominal value of £1,620,494. If passed,

this resolution will enable the Directors to allot a maximum of
32,409,880 ordinary shares which represents approximotely-10%
of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company (including -
Treasury shares) as at 6 November 2023 and to impose any
limits or restrictions and make any arrangements which they
consider necessary or appropriate to deal with Treasury shares,
fractional entitlements, record dates, legal, regulctory or practical
problems in, or under the laws of, any territory or any other
matter. The Directors would not intend to use, this power unless
-they considered that it was in the interests of Shareholders to

do so. Any shares issued would be at NAV per shore or ot a
premium to NAV per ordmory share. ,
Authority.to Disapply Pre-Emption Righfs

Resolution 12 is a special resolution disapplying pre-emption
. rights and granting authority to the Directors, without the need

. for further specific Shareholder approval, to make allotments
of equity securities or sale of Treasury shares for cash up'to
an aggregate nominal value of £1,620,494 (including Treasury
shares) (approximately 10% of the issued ordinary share capital
of the Company as at 6 November-2023 and equivalent to-
32,409,880 ordinary shares). B

Authority to Repurchase Shares

Resolution 13 .is a special resolution. which renews the Company’s
authority to purchase up to 14.99% (48,582,428) of ordinary

' . shares in issue (excluding Treasury shares) on 6 November 2023

either for immediate cancellation-or for retention as Treasury
shares at the determination of the Directors. Once shares are -
held in Treasury, the Directors may only dispose of them in
accordance with the relevant legislation by subsequently selling
the shares for cash or by cancelling the shares. Purchases of
ordinary shares will be at the discretion of the Directors and
within guidelines set from time to time by them in the light of
prevailing market conditions. Purchases will only be made in the
market at prices below the prevailing NAV per ordinary share.

Recommendation: The Board considers that each of

the resolutions is likely to promote the success of the
Company and is in the best interests of the Company and

its Shareholders as a-whole. The Directors.unanimously -
recommend that you vote in favour of the resolutions as they
intend to do in respect of their own beneficial holdings.

~ By Order of the Board

FIL Investments Internatlonal
Secretary’
6 November 2023
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Corporate Governance Statement

“Corporate governance” is the process by which the Board

of Directors of a company look after Shareholders’ interests

and by which it endeavours to enhance those interests (often
referred to as “shareholder value”). Shareholders hold the
.Directors responsiblé for the stewardship of a_ company’s affairs,
delegating authority to the Directors to manage the Company on
their behalf and holding them accountable for its performance.

This report, which forms part of the Directors’ Report, explains
how the Directors of Fidelity Speciol Values PLC (the “Company”)
deal with that responsibility, authority and accountability.

Corporate Governance Codes
The Board follows the principles and provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the “UK Code”) issued by the

Financial Reporting Council (the “FRC”)-in July 2018 and the AIC's

Code of Corporate Governance (the “AIC Code”) issued by the
Association of Investment Companies (the “AIC”) in February
2019. The AIC Code addresses the p'rinciples and provisions of
the UK Code. The FRC has confirmed that investment companies
which report against the AIC Code will meet their obligations
under the UK Code and paragraph 9.8.6 of the Listing Rules.
This statement, together with the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities on page 44, set out how the principles have
been applied. S .

- The AIC Code can be found on the AIC’s website at www.theaic.
co.uk and the UK Code on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk.

Statement of Compliance ‘

The Company has complied with the recommenddtions of the
AIC Code and the relevant provisions of the UK Code-for the
year under review and up to the date of this report, except in . -

‘relation to the UK Code provisions relating to the role of the chief -
executive, executive directors’ remuneration, and the need for an -

internal audit function. The Board considers that these provisions
are hot relevant to the position of the Company, as it is an
externally managed investment company and has no executive
directors, employees or internal operations. All of its day to day
management and odmlnlstrcmve functions are delegated to the
Manager. .

The Corporate Governance of an Investment Trust Company _ .

The corporate governance of most investment companies is

different from most other commercial companies in one important

respect: they do not employ their own people as management
but instead the services of a fund management company. This
affects the way investment companies are governed but not the..
purpose of their governance. Given that the Manager’s business
is not dedicated solely to the interests of investment companies
and their Shareholders, investment company boards must be
largely independent of management. However, the Board must
have knowledge and experience of both fund management
-and investment company management. The Company was
established and is manoged and promoted by its Manager, -
which is, therefore, one of the main reasons some Shareholders
‘choose to invest in the Company’s shares. It follows that it is an
important aspect of the corporate governance of the Company
that its Manager should be party to the responsibility, authority
and accountability to those investing in their management. -

The Corporate Governance pollmes and Modus Operandl of
Fidelity Special Values PLC

The corporate governance of any investment compony, while
following the guidelines of the UK Code and AIC Code, will vary
in certain respects depending on its own circumstances. The
Board of the Company has considered its own circumstances and
determined its-own corporate governance policiés and modus
operandi. ' ‘

In this section we have outlined the-corporate governance
policies and modus operandi through the following three
aspects of corporate governance: Responsibility, Authority and
Accountability. It is, first of all, important that Shareholders have
confidence in the Board of Directors, whom they hold respon5|ble
and accountable for the Company’s offmrs ’

‘In determining the guidelines for the compositioh of the Board,

the Directors believe that Board members, including the
Chairman, are independent of management, and that within
the Board there is understanding and experience of investment
management, investment company managemerit, the investment
objective of the Company, marketing, genérol business ’
experience and finally of Fidelity’s investment. philosophy and its
operations.

All Directors are independent and considered to be free from
any business or other relationship which could materially interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgement. Details of the
Directors’ current business associations are set out on page 32.
In éddilion, all Directors are able to allocate sufficient time to the
Company to discharge their responsibilities fully and effectively.

The Board follows a procedure of notification of ‘any interests that

may arise as part of considering any potential conflicts.

All of the Directors are Non-Executive. Each Director’s individual
independence, including that of the Chairman, has been
assessed and confirmed, taking into consideration:

= Integrity, commitment, intelligent challenge;

¢ Independence of mind and character;

. Experience and knowledge of investment.trusts, of the
investment business generally and of Fidelity;

*  Financial literacy;
*  Conflicts of interest; and

‘»  Performance as a Director.

|NFORMATIOI\j FOR SHAREHOLDERS
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

.Management

Regular Audit Engagement -Nomination

Board ~Committee Committee  Committee

Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings

Claire Boyle 55 3/3 /1 1/1

- Dean Buckley* . 5/5 11 IRV 11

Ominder Dhillon 5/5 C 33 VA 1/1

Nige! Foster 55 - 3/3 S an 1/1

Andy Irvine? 2/2 n/a 7o i
Alison ‘McG‘regor

55 . 3/3 1/1 1/1

1 Mot a member of the Audit Commitioe. since appointmont as Chairman of the Board on 14 Deeember 2022.

2 Retired on 14 December 20_22.

Figures indicate those meetings for which each Director was eligible to attend and attended in the year. Régulor Board meetings

" exclude ad hoc meetings for formal approvals.

The Board-considers the tenure of each Director annually.

A Director may serve more than nine years, provided that
such Director is considered by the Board to continue to be
independent and provides experience that remains relevant,
In addition, each Director is subject to annual re-election, or-
election if newly appointed, by Shareholders.

The Board meets regularly to discharge its duties effectivély and
the table above gives the ottendance record for the meetings.
held during the reporting yeor.

Responsibility )

Under Section 172(1) of the Companies Act, the Directors have

a duty to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of
our Shareholders. This includes having regard (amongst other
matters) to the likely consequences of any decision in the long-
torm, fostering relationghips with the Company’s stakeholders and
the desirability of the Company in maintaining a reputation for
high standards of business conduct. Further detail .on promoting
the success of the Company is in the Strategic Report on

pages 26 and 27.

Authority )

The Board is furnished by Shareholders with the authority to
manage the Company on their behalf, in order to discharge the
responsibilities outlined above. The Board, being independent
of the Manager, carries out its duties through Board meetings
‘and Board appointed Commitiee meetings. The most important
aspect of Directors’ duties concerns the management of the
Company’s portfolio of assets and of the risk profile of its
balance sheet. While the day-to-day investment management is
delegated to the Manager, there are certain decisions rétained
and made by the Directors, including the payment of dividends,
the share issue and share repurchase guidelines and the
derivatives and gearing policies. -

In structuring Board meetings, the Directors try to concentrate

as much as possible of their regular Board meetings on (i)
investment maiters (including strategy, invesiment policy, gearing
and derivatives policies, portfolio and stock reviews, portfolio

\

r .
turnover, monitoring performance etc); and (ii) Shareholder
value matters (including monitoring the premium or discount,
share issues and share repurchases and the marketing of the
Company). The. Chairman is responsible for the promotion of a
culture of openness and debate, for ensuring that the Directors
receive accurate, timely ond clear information and for ensuring
that there is adequate time available for the discussion of

- agenda items, particularly strategic issues.

The Board meets regularly with the Company‘s"Broker to discuss
Shareholder value and investor relation matters. The Portfolio
Manager and Manager meet with the larger Shareholders on a
regular basis and repori back to the Board on those meetings.
The Chairman, when required, also attends some of these
meetings. Key represénlotives of the Manager attend each Board
meeting, enabling the Board to discuss business matters further.

BOARD COMMITTEES .

The Board has three Commitiees, as set out below and on the
next page, through which it discharges certain of its corporate
governance responsibilities. These are the Audit Committee,

the Management Engagement Committee.and the Nomination
Committee. Terms of reference of each Committee are available
on the Company’s pages of the Manager’s website at
www.fidelity.co.uk/specialvalues.

Audit Committee . :

The Audit Committee consists of Claire Boyle as Chair, Ominder
Dhillon, Nigel Foster and Alison McGregor. Full details of

the Audit Committee are disclosed in the Report of the Audit
Committee on pages 45 to 47. '

Management Engagement Committee

Composition :

The Management Engagement Committee is chaired by Dean
Buckley and consists of all the Directors.

Role and Responsibilities
It is charged with reviewing and monitoring the performance of -
the Manager and for ensuring that the terms of the Company’s
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Management Agreement remains competitive and reasonable
for Shareholders. It meets at least once a year and reports to the
Board, making recommendations where.appropriate.

Manager's Reappointment .

Ahead of the AGM on 14 December 2023 the Committee has

reviewed the performance of the Manager and the current

" fee basis and also that of its peers. The Committee noted the

. Company’s NAV and share price performance over the reporting
year and also over five years and over the Portfolio Manager’s
tenure compared to the returns of the Benchmark. The Committee
also noted the commitment, quality and continuity of the team
responsible for the Company and concluded that it was in the
interests of Shareholders that'the appointment of the Manager

- should continue. Details of the fee structure for the reporting year
ended 31 August 2023 can be found in the Directors’ Report on

" page 33. ’

Nomination Committee

Composition

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Dean Buckley and
consists of all the Directors.

Role and Responsibilities

The Committee meets at least once a year and reviews the
composition, size and structure of the Board. The Committee

is responsible for succession planning and it is charged with
nominating new Directors for consideration by the Bdard, and in
turn for approval by Shareholders.

- In respect of new Directors, the Board believes that it is important
in the search for and recommendation of a candidate to the
Board that it is carried out by all of the Committee members .
who are-all independent Directors. The Committee carries out its
candidate search from the widest possible pool of talent based
on the benefits of having a diverse range of skills, knowledg_e,
experience, perspectives and background, including gender

and diversity. External consultants are used to identify potential
candidates and to assist the Board in recruiting new independent
Non-Executive Directors.

Upon appointment, each Director is provided with all relevant
information regarding the Company ond receives an induction
on the investment operation and administration functions of .

the Company, together with a summary of their duties and
responsibilities, Directors are encouraged to keep up to date
and attend training courses on matters which are directly
relevant to their involvement with the Company. They also receive
regular briefings from, amongst others, the AIC, the Company’s
Auditor and the Company Secretary, regarding any proposed
developments or changes in law or regulations that could offect
the Company cnd/or the Directors.

The Committee olso considers the election and re-election of
Directors ahead of each AGM. For the forthcoming AGM, it has
" considered the performance and contribution of each Director
and concluded that each Director seeking re-election has been
effective and continues to demonsirate commitment to their role.
This has been endorsed by the Board which recommends their
reappointment by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. The

terms and chditibns of appointment of Directors are available
for inspection at the registered office of the Company.

As part of the election and re-election process, and other than
every third year when an external evaluation is undertaken,

- a Board evaluation process is undertaken ahéad of the AGM

which takes the form of written questionndires and one to one
discussions. The process is considered to be constructive in
terms of identifying areas for improving the functioning and

performance of the Board and its Committees and ‘action is taken. -

on the basis of the resuls..

As a FTSE 350 Company and in accordance with provision 21 of
the 2018:UK Corporate Governance Code, the Board carried out
an externally facilitated evaluation this year using the services

of Lintstock Ltd. which has no connection with the Company or
Manager. It was concluded that the Chairman, each Director ahd
the Manager had been effective and continue to demonstrate
commitment to their roles. The tenure of individual Directors is
also considered during the- evaluation process.

The next external evaluation will take-place in 2026.

Accountobility

Given that the Shareholders entrust the Board of Directors with
the management of the Company’s affairs, it is necessary that
the Board accounts for itself to Shareholders. The process of -
accountability involves providing all the necessary information for

Shareholders to make judgements about the Board's stewardship

and performance through a full and informative annual financial
report, @ half-yearly financial repori, the presentation of the
Company’s results and future prospects at the AGM and
accessibility to the Board at any time via the Company Secretary.

The AGM is the occasion when the Board accounts for itself

“in a public meeting. It regards any bona fide issue that any

Shareholder raises as one that should be put to all Shareholders
at the AGM so that all those attending can hear any concerns
expressed in an open forum and make their own judgemeni.
The AGM provides Shareholders with an opportunity to vote on
certain issues that are not ultimately delegated to the Board.
This includes the election and re-election of Directors every year

in addition to the normal matters of approving the financial
statements, the appointment of the Company’s Auditor, the issue

of new shares and the repurchase of shares. Your Board has ‘an
established policy that enables Shareholders to decide whether
they wish to continue the Company’s existence by putting a

“continuation vote” before Shareholders at every third AGM. The

- next continuation vote will take place at the AGM in 2025.

Directors’ Remuneration
The Board determines the level of Directors fees and full details

- are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration report on pages 41

and 42. - .

Senior Independent Director

Nigel Foster is the Senior Indebendent Director and fulfils the role
as a sounding board for the Chairman, intermediary for the other’
Directors as necessary and acts as a channel of communication
for Shareholders in the event that contact through the Chairman

is inappropriate.

STRATEGY

FINANCIAL
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Corporate Governance Statement continved

~

Company Secretary

The Board has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The Directors also have
the ability to take independent professional advice, if necessary,
at the Company’s expense. )

Supply of Information

The Board meeting papers are the key source of regular
information for the Board, the contents of which are determined( .
by the Board and contain sufficient information on the financial
condition of the Company. The Board receives this information .
in a timely manner and of .a quality appropriate to enable it to
discharge its duties. )

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal controls and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The review takes place at least once a year. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk

of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board determines the nature and extent of any risks it is
willing 1o take in order to achieve its strategic objectives. It is
responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of
controls and procedures to safeguard the assets of the Company
although these tasks have been delegated on a day-to-day basis
to the Manager. The system extends to financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management. Clear lines of
accountability have been established between the Board and
the Manager. The Manager provides regular reports on controls
and compliance issves to the Audit Committee and the Board.

In carrying out its review, the Audit Committee has regard to the
activities of the Manager, the Manager’s compliance and risk
functions and the work carried out by the Company’s Auditor
relevant to the Company’s audit. It also includes consideration
of.internal controls covered in similar reports issued by the other
service providers.

The Board, assisted by the Manager, has undertaken a rigorous.
risk and controls assessment. The process also assists in
identifying any new emerging risks and the action necessary to

" . mitigate their potential impact. The Board cohfirms that there is

an effective ongoing process in place to identify, evaluate and
manage the Company’s principal business and operational risks,
and that it has been in place throughout the year ended 31
August 2023 and up to the date of this report. This process is in
accordance with the FRC’s “Risk Management, Internal Control
and Reloted Financial Business Reporting” guidance.

The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and has determined that the systems and procedures
employed by the Manager, which are subject to inspection by
the Manager’s internal and external audit processes, provide
sufficient assurance that a sound system of internal controls

is maintained to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and

the Company’s assets. An internal audit function, specific to
the Company, is therefore considered unnecessary. The Audit
Committee meets the Manager's internal .audit representative
at least once a year. It receives a summary of the Manager’s
externally audited internal controls report-on an annual basis.

Whistle-Blowing Procedure

Part of the Managers’ role in ensuring the provision of a good
service-pursuant to the Management Agreement, includes

the ability for employees of Fidelity to raise concerns through

a workplace concerns escalation policy (or “whistle-blowing
procedure”). Fidelity has advised the-Board that it is committed
to providing the highest level of service to its customers and

{o applying the highest standards of qudlity, honesty, integrity
and probity. The aim of the policy is to encourage employees
and others working for Fidelity to assist the Company in tackling
fraud, corruption and other malpractice within the organisation
and in setting standards of ethical conduct. This policy has been
endorsed accordingly by the Board.

Bribery Act 2010

The Company is committed to carrying out business fairly,
-honestly and openly. The Board recognises the benefits this has
to reputation and business confidence. The Board, the Manager,
the Manager’s employees and others acting on the Company’s
behalf, are expected to demonstrate high standards of.behaviour
when conducting business. '

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the implementation
and oversight of the Company’s procedures for preventing
bribery, and the governance framework for training,
communication, monitoring, reporting and escalation of
compliance together with enforcing action as appropriate. The
Board has adopted a' zero tolerance policy in this regard.

Criminal Finances Act 2017

The Company is subject to thé Criminal Finances Act 201 7 and
follows a zero tolerance policy to tax evasion and its facilitation.
The Directors are fully committed to complying with all legislation
and appropriate guidelines designed to prevent tax évasion
and the facilitation of tax evasion in the jurisdictions in which

the Company, its service providers, counterparties and business
pariners operate. '

On Behalf of the Board

\DW @\/c,kw

Dean Buckley
Chairman
6 November 2023 : - -
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Directors’ Remuneration

Chairman’s Statement -

The Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31
August 2023 has been prepared in accordance with the Large

& Medium-sized Companies & Groups (Accounts & Reports)
(Amendment) Regulations 2013 (the “Regulations”). As'the Board
is comprised entirely of Non-Executive Directors and has no chief
executive officer and employees, many parts of the Regulations,
_in particular those relating to chief executive officer pay and
employee pay, do not apply and are therefore not disclosed in
this report.

An ordinary resolutien' to approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Report will be put to Shareholders’at the AGM on 14 December
2023. The Company’s Auditor is required to audit certain sections

of this report and where such disclosures have been audited, the

specific section has been indicated as such. The Auditor’s opinion
is included in its report on pages 48 io 54.

Directors’ Remuneration

The annual fee structure since 1 September 2023 is as follows:
Chairman -. £44,500 (2022: £43,000); Chair of the Audit
Committee - £35,000 (2022: £34,000); Senior Independenl
Director - £31,500 (2022: £29,000); and Direcior - £29,500
(2022: £29,000). Levels of remuneration are reviewed to ensure
that they remain competitive and sufficient to aitract and retain
the quality of Directors needed to manage the Company
successfully

The Remuneration Policy

The Company’s Articles of Association limit the aggregate fees
payable to the Directors to a total of £250,000 per annum.
Subject to this overall limit, it is the Board's policy to determine
the level of Directors’ fees having regard io the time spent by

- them on the Company’s affairs; the level of fees payable to

. non-executive directors in the industry generally; the requirement

“to atiract and retain individuals with suitable knowledge and
experience; and the role that individual Directors fulfil. Other
than fees and.reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
attending to the affairs of the Company, the Directors are not
eligible for any-performance related pay or benefits, pension
related benefits, share options, long-term incentive schemes,
or other taxable benefits. The Directors are not entitled to ‘exit
payments and are not provided with any compensation for locs
of-office. Directors’ fees are paid monthly in arrears. Directors
do not serve a notice period if their appointment were to be
terminated. The level of Directors’ fees is determined by the
whole Board. Directors do not vote on their own individual fees.

Report

-The Board reviews the Company’s Remuneration Policy and
implementation on an annual basis. Reviews are based on

" information provided by the Company’s Manager, and research
.. from third parties and it includes information on the fees of other

similar investment trusts. .

* As o FTSE 350,eompony, and in accordance with provision 21 of

the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, the Board is required
to carry out an externally facilitated evaluation every third year
of its performance. This also includes.input into the appropriate
level of Directors’ fees from an independent source.

‘No Director has a service contract with the Company. New
Directors are provided with a letter of appointment which,
amongst other things, provides that their appointment is subject
to the Companies Act 2006 and the Company’s Articles. of
Association. Copies of the Directors’ letters of appoiniment are
available ot each of the Company’s Annual General Meetings
and can be obtained from the Company'’s registered office.

The Company’s remuneration bolicy will apply to new Board
members, who will be paid the equuvoleni amount of fees as
current Board members

Voting on the Remuneralion Policy

The Remuneration Policy (the “Policy”), as set out in last year's
Annual Report, was approved at the AGM held on 14 December
2022 with 99.19% of votes cast in favour, 0.22% of voles cast
against and 0.59% of votes withheld. The current Policy, as set out
above, has been followed throughout the year ended 31 August
2023 and up to the date of this report. The next vote will be put
to Shareholders at the AGM in December 2025, and the votes
cast will be disclosed on the Company’s website at: .

www fidelity.co.uk/specialvalues.

~ Voting on the Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 August

2022 was approved at the AGM held on 14 December 2022 with

99.21% of votes cast in favour, 0.23% of votes cost against cnd

. 0.56% of votes withheld.

The Directors" Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 August
2023 will be put to Shareholders ot the AGM on 14 December
2023, and the votes cast will be disclosed on the' Company’s

. poges of the Manager’s website at: www.fidelity.co.uk/

specialvalues.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contined

Single Total Figure of Directors' Remunerauon :

The v*lnglo total aggregate Directors’ remuncration for the ycor ended 31 August 2023 was £180,836 (2022: £164,429). This includes
expenses incurred by Directors in attending to the affairs of the Company and are considered by HMRC to be a toxable expense.

Information on |nd|V|duc1I Directors’ fees and taxable Directors’ expenses are disclosed in the table below.

- 2022

2024 2023 2023 2023 " 2022 2022
' Taxable ‘ S Taxable
Projected Fees Expenses. Total Fees Expenses Total
Fees (Audited)  (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) -
® ® - ® (£) © ®) ®
Remuneration of Directors ‘
Claire Boyle . 35000 .- 34,000 1,288 35,288 31,750 367 232,11 7
Dean Buckley' - - ) 44,500 39,033 '468 39,501 27,000 566 27,566
Ominder Dhillon? ) 29,500 29,000 1,332 30,332 5,1 25' - 5,123
Nigel Foster® o e 31,500 29,000 - - 29,000 27,000 . - ’ 27,00014' .
Andy Irvine* . n/a 12,404 1,168 13,672 - 41,000 - 2,611 43,611
Alison McGregor 29,500 29,DﬁD 4,143 . 33,143 27,000 2,012 29,012
Total - . . . o 170,000 172,437 8,399 180,836 158,873 5,556 164,429

1 Appointed as Chairmon on 14 December 2022.

2 Appointed on 23 June 2022.

.3 An additional fee of £2,500 payable for position as Senlor Independent Director from 1 September 2023.
4 Retired on 14 December 2022.

The lees lor 2023 wie hlgher than the prior year due o the ciossover belweeu Dueuu:s 1elieiments and oppolnlmenls from the

~ Board. This is part of the Board’s succession planning.-

Five year change comparison in Directors’ Remuneration
The table below sets out the change in Directors’ feos over the Iu‘.t five years.

) 31 August 2023 31 August 2018 Change (%)
Chairman ‘ S 43,000 ‘ © 41,000 +4.9%
Audit Commitiee Choir ~ ~ - e 34,000 | . 31,750 +7.1%

Director N ' 29,000 27,000

T +7.4%

Expenditure on Directors’ Remuneration and Distributions to Shareholders

The luble below shuws lhe tolal armount” puid vul in Ditectors’ temuneration und dislibutions to Shurehvlders. The projected Direclors’

remuncration for the year ending 31 August 2024 is disclos ed'in the table first above.

31 August 31 August
2023 2022
£ £
Expenditure on Directors’ Remuneration:
Fees and taxable expenses ' o ' o 180,836 164,429
Distribution to §horeholders:
21,590,000

. Dividend payments | : s . 25,863,000
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Performance

The Compony aims to achieve long-term capital growth primarily through investment in equmes (and their related fmcnc:ol

instruments) of UK companies which the Investment Manager believes to be undervalued or where the potential has not been
recognised by the market. The groph below shows the performance of the NAV per ordinary share and shore price against the FTSE

All-Share Index over ten years to 31 August 2023

Directors’ Interests in Ordinary Shares

Although there is no requirement for the Directors to hold shares in the Compony, shareholdings by Directors are encouraged. The
interests of the Directors’ in the ordinary shares of the Company are shown in the table below. AII of the shoreholdmgs are benefrcnol.

The Portfollo Moncger also holds shares in the Company.

Directors’ Shareholdings (Audi!ed)

"31 August 31 August Change

~ 2023 © 2022 . during year

Claire Boyle 7,466 | 7,466 -
Dean Buckley 150,0004 50,000' -
Ominder Dhillon’ 4,000 ) - 4,000
Nigel Foster! 81,000 R 75,000 6,000
Andy Irvine? nfa 250,000 -
Alison McGregor'3 - 10,000

30,000 20,000

1 Purchase of shares.
2 Retired on-14 December 2022.
3 Shares held by self and connected person.

All Directors’ shareholdings remained unchanged ot the date of this report.

On Behalf of the Board

. b&v@(\/gk.w/(

Dean Buckley
Chairman
6 November 2023
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibil_iti'esi

. The Directors are, responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and Financial Stotements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations. U

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial period. Under that law, the |
Directors have elected to prepare the Financiol Statements in
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK
Accounting Standards and applicable law), including Financial
Reporting Standard FRS 102: The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (“FRS 102”). Under
company law the Directors must not approve the Financial

Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair -

view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or
loss for the reporting period.

In preparing these Financial Statements the Directors are
required to:

*  Select suitable accounting policies in accordance with
Section 10 of FRS 102 and then apply them consistently;

*-  Maoke judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

»  Present information, including accounting.policies, in a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

+  State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards, including -

" FRS 102, have been followed, subject to any'material
" depariures disclosed and explained in the Financial
Statements; and

*  Prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis

unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will

continué in business.
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy ot any time
the financial position of the Company and to enable them to
ensure that the Company and the Financial Statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of-fraud and
other irregularities. :

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also
“responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, a Directors’
Report, a Corporate Governance Statement and a Directors’
Remuneration Report which comply with that law and those
regulations. ’ :

The Direclors have delegated the responsibility for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financiol
information included on the Company’s pages of the Manager’s
website at www.fidelity.co.uk/specialvalues to the Manager.
Visitors 1o the website need to be aware that legislation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of the Financial
Statements may ditfer from legislation’in. their jurisdictions.

The Directors: confirm that to the best of their knowledge: .

* = The Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with UK

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including FRS 102,
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the Company;

.. The Annual Report, including the Strategic Report, includes
a fair review of the-development and performance of the
business and the position of the Compony‘, together with a
.description of the principal risks and uncertainties it faces;
and )

* . The Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide
the information necessary for Shareholders to assess the
Company’s performance, business model and strategy.

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibility was approved by the
Board on 6 November 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

: %KA/_(’(‘(% |

Dean Buckley
Chairman
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Report of the Audit Committée

“lam .plecsed to present the formal report of the Audit Committee
{the “Committee”) to Shareholders.

The pritnary responsibilities of the Committee are to ensure

the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting, the -
appropriateness of the risk management and internal controls
processes (see page 40 for further details) and the effectiveness

.. of the independent audit process for the year ended 31 August

2023. This report details how we carry out this role.

Composition and Meetings

The members of the Committee are myself as Chair, Ominder
Dhillon, Nigel Foster and Alison McGregor. All Committee
members are independent Non-Executive Directors, and their
skills and experience are set out on page 32. The Committee
considers that collectively the members have sufficient recent and
relevant sector and financial experlence to fully dlschorge their
responsubllllles

The Committee met three times during this reporting year. The
Commiittee invites the Company’s Auditor and personnel from the
Manager's financial, risk and internal audit functions to attend
and report to the Committee on relevant matters. During the year,
| also met privately with the Auditor to raise any issues without
management present. After each Committee meeting, | report to
the Board on the main items discussed at the meeting.

Ahead of each-AGM, the Committee’s performance isAevqu'oted

" as part of the overall Board evaluation process as reported on

page 39. This year’s Commitiee evaluction was corrled out usung
an external compony, Lintstock Ltd.

Role and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The Committee’s authority and duties are defined in its terms

of reference, which were reviewed during the year and are

available on the Company’s pages of the Manager’s website at

www fidelity.co. uk/specualvalues The prlnc1pol activities carried

out during the year were: : :

* Financial Reporting: We considered the Company’s -
financial reporis, including the significant accounting issues
.and the appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted.
We considered ond are satisfied that, taken as a whole, the
2023 Annual Report is fair; balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for Shareholders to
assess the Company’s performance, business model and
strategy. We considered the ongoing impact of the war in
Ukraine and market events and reviewed the assessment of
the Company as a going concern and also its viability over
a five year time frame. We reviewed the revenue that has
been recogpised and the liquidity of the portfolio;

* Internal Audit: We considered the scope of the internal
audit of the Manager and the subsequent findings from’
this work, receiving regular reports from the internal audit

_ function of the'Manager. The Commitiee also monitored
progress in the implémentotion of the Manager’s internal
. audit recommendations;

* Risk and Internal Control: During one of the Commitiee .
meetings, we considered the key existing and emerging risks
facing the Company- and the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal controls and' risk management processes. This
included a review of the Manager's business continuity plans
and operational resilience strategies in order to continue
to meet regulatory obligations and dlso continuing to serve

" and support investors and the Board. The Company’s third
party service providers also continue to implement similar
measures to ensure that there is no disruption in service. The
Committee received sufficient assurance that the Manager’s
and-third party service brovidérs measures have continued
to work effectively since the pandemic and, in the reporting
year, during disruptions from the rail strikes; and

+  External Auditor: We considelred the independence,

effectiveness and fees of the Auditor, as detailed later in this )

report.
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Report of the Audit Committee continved

A Significant issues considered by the Committee during the year

The Annual Report and Financial Statements are the responsibility of the Boord and the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities can be
found on page 44. The Audit Committee advises the Board on the form and content of the Annual Report and Financial Statements, .
any issues which may arise in relation to these and any specific areas which require jﬁdgement

Summarised below cre the most significant issues which were conS|dered by the Commlttee in respect .of these Financial Statements
and how these issues were addressed. :

Recognition of -

Investment Income

.Investment income is recognlsed in occordcmce with Accounting Policy Note 2 (e) on page 59.

The Monoger provided detailed revenue forecasts and the Committee reviewed and-sought
explanations for any significant variances to these forecasts. The Committee also considered the

- allocation-of special dividends between revenue and capital and the reasons for the classification

of these speciat dividends. The Committee reviewed the internal audit and compliagnce monitoring
reports received from the Manager, including an additional internal controls report (“AAF” report)
prepared by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) on behalf of the Manager, to satisfy itself that
adequate systems were in place for properly recording the Company’s investment income: The '
Committee also reviewed the reports provided by-thé Auditor on its work on the recognmon of
investment income, including the cllocctlon of special dividends.

Valuation, existence
~ and ownership

of investments
(including derivatives
and unlisted

‘investments)

The valuation of investments (including derivolives) is in accordance with Accounting Policy- -
Notes 2 (k) and 2 (I) on pages 60 and 61. The Committee took comfort from the Depositary’s
regular oversight function that investment related activities were conducted in accordance

; with the Company’s.investment policy. The Committee received reports from the Managér, the

Depositary and an additional AAF report prepared by. PwC on behalf of the Manager which
concluded that the controls around the valuation, existence and ownership of investments

" operate effectively. The valuation of unlisted investments |s'opprcnsed by the Manager’s Fair

Value Commitiee ("FVC") in occordonce with UK GAAP and International Private Equity and

- Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines. The Committee reviewed the information received from

the FVC on the proposed valuation methodologies for all unlisted investments. The Committee
also reviewed the reports provided by the Auditor on its work on the valuation, existence and

_ ownership of the Company's-investments, including derivatives and unlisted investments.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the September
2014 Competition and Markets Authority Order in relation to the
" performance and appointment of the Auditor, as set out below

and on the next page.

Independence and Effectiveness of the Audit Process
‘Ernst & Young LLP acted as the Company’s Auditor for the year
ended 31 August 2023.

With regard to the independence of the Auditor, the Commitiee
reviewed:

+  The Auditor’s arrangements for any conflicts of interest;

+  The fact that no non-audit services were provided to the
Company during the 'reporlin_g year and up to the date of
this report; and

+  The statement by the Auditor that it remains independent
within the meaning of the reguloilons and their professnonol
standards.

With regcrd.-to the effectiveness of the audit process, the

-Committee reviewed:

"« The fulfilment by the Auditor of the agreed audit plan,

includingthe audit team and approach to significant risks;

*  The audit findings report issued by the Auditor on the audit

of the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 August 2023; and

. Fee_dback from the Mcncger on the audit of the'Compony.'

_The Committee concluded that the Auditor continues fo remain

independent and the audit process remains effective.
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Auditor’s Appointment and Audit Tenure )
Ernst & Young LLP was appointed as the Company'’s Auditor
on 30 November 2015 following a formal audit tender process

- in 2015.-The Company will be required to carry out a formal
audit tender process in 2025. The Committee has reviewed
the Auditor’s independence and the effectiveness of the audit
process prior to recommending its ‘reappointment for a further
year. The Aqditoi is required {o rotate audit partners every five
‘years and this is the second year that the current Audit Partner,
Ashley Coups, has been in place. The Committee will continue
to review the Auditor's appointment each year to ensure thot the
Company continues to receive an optimal level of service. There
are no contractual obligoliohs that restricts the.-Company’s choice
of Auditor.' ‘ S

Audit Fees . ) :

Fees paid to the Auditor for the audit of the Company’s Financial
.- Statements are disclosed in Note 5 on page 63. The audit fee for
the reporting year was £49,998 (2022: £46,500). '

Claire Boyle )
Chair of the Audit Commiltee
6 November 2023 '
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Independent Audltor s Report to the Members

of Fidelity Special- Values PLC

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Fidelity Special
Values PLC (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31 August 2023 .
which comprise the Income Statement, the Balonce Sheet, the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and

" the related Notes 1 to 20, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards including FRS 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the Financial Statements:

» give a true and fair view of the Company'’s affairs os at 31
August 2023 and of its profit for the year then ended;

* have been properIyAprepared in accordoncé with United’
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

* have be_en prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Componies Act 2006.

Basus for opinion

Woe conducted our audit in accordance with International '~‘tondcrdc
on Anditing (LK) (ISAs (LK) and applicahle law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for.our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Companyin accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit. of the Financial
Statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as
applied to public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard
were not provided to the Company and we remain mdependent
of Company in conducting the audit.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the Financial Statements, we have concluded that -

the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in

the preparation of the Financial Statements is appropriate. Our
cvaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Company’s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

*  Confirming our understanding of the Company’s going
concern assessment process by engaging with the Directors
and the Company Secretary to determine if all key factors
were considered in their assessment;

* Inspecting the Directors’ assessment of going concern,
including the revenue and expénse forecast, for the period to
30 November 2024 which is at least 12 months from the date
of approval of these Financial Statements. In preparing the
revenue and expense forecast, the:Company.has concluded
that it is able to continve to meet its ongomg costs as they
fall due;

* Reviewing the factors and assumptions, including the
impact of the current economic énvironment and other
significant events that could give rise to market volatility, as
applied to the revenue and expense forecast. Considering
the appropriateness of the methods used to calculate the
forecast and ‘determined, through testing of the methodology
and calculations, that the methods utilised, including
liquidity analysis, were appropriate to be able to make an
assessment of going concern for the Company;

Consideration of the mitigating factors included in the
revenue and expense forecast that are within the control
of the Company, including a review of the Company’s
assessment of the liquidity of investments held and
evaluating the Company’s dbility to sell investments in order
to cover the working capital requirements should its revenue
doclino cignificantly; and

¢ - Reviewing the Company’s going concern disclosures
included in the Annual Report in order to- assess that the
disclosures were appropriate and |n conformny with the
reporting standards.

~ Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified

any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,.
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period 1o
30 November 2024 which is at least iwelve months from the date
these Financial Statements were" authorised for issue.

In relation to the Company’s reporting on how they have applied
the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing materiol to
add or draw attention to in relation to the Directors’ statement in
the Financial Statements about whether the Directors considered
it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors

_ with respect to going concern are described in the relevant

sections of this report. Howoever, because not all future ovonts or
conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as
to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Overview of our audit approach

Key audit mqiters ~ ¢ Riskof mcomplete or inaccurate revenue recognrtlon Jincluding the classification of specuol
’ . dividends as revenue or capital.items in the Income, Stotement -

¢ " Risk of incorrect valuation or ownership of the m_vestment portfolio, including derivatives

Mqteriqlity ) ¢ Overall-materiality .of £9.51m which represents 1% of Net Asset Value of the Company as at 31
August 2023 ; .

_An overview of the scope of our audlt
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our ollocollon of performance materiality determine our audit scope for

the Company. This enables us to form an opinion on the Financial Statements: We take into account size, risk profile, the organisation

of the Company and effectiveness of controls, the potential impact of climate changé and changes in the business environment when

assessing the level of work to be performed. All audit work was performed.directly by the audit engcgement team. . :

Climate change !

. There has been increasing interest from stokeholders as to how climate change will impact the Company. The Company has
determined that the impact of climate change could affect the Company’s investments and their valuatioris and potentially:
shareholder returns. These are explained on poge 23 in the principal and emerging risks section, which form part of the “Other
information,” rather than the audited Financial Statements. Our procedures on these disclosures therefore consisted solely of
considering whether they are materially inconsistent with the Financial Stctemenls or our knowledge obtorned in the course of the'”
audit or otherwise appear to be -materially mlsstoted .

. Our audit effort in consrdermg climate change was focused-on the odequocy of the Compony s dlsclosures in the Financial Statements
as set out in Note 2(a) and the’ conclusion that there was no further impact of climate change to be taken into account as the

“investments are valued based on market pricing. In line with FRS 102 investments are valued at.fair value, which for the Company are
‘quoted bid, prices for investments in active markets at the balance sheet date and therefore reflect the market participants view of

* climate change risk.on the investments held by the Company. We also challenged the Dlrectors consrderohons of climate change in

their assessment of viability and associated disclosures.

Key audit motters R : ' \

Key audit matters are those matters thot in our professional judgement, were of most srgnrfrconce in our oudll of the Funoncrol

Statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)

that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources
_in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context-of our audit of the

Financial Statements as a whole, and in our opinion't'hereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion ‘on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members

Of F|del|ty Sp@CIOl VOerS PLC contlnued

- Risk

Risk of incomplete or inaccurate

revenue recognition, including the
_classification of special dividends .
as revenue or capital items in the

Income Statement

- Refer io the Report of the Audit Committee
(page 46); Accounting Policies (page 59); and
Note.3 of the Financial Statements (page 62).

The Company-has reported revenue of £46.69m

(2022: £38.01m),

During the year, the-Compony received special

_dividends amounting to £3.30m (2022: £1.75m),"

" of which £1.40m (2022: £1.38m) was classified
as revenue and £1.90m (2022: £0.37m) as
capital.

There is a risk of incomplete or inaccurate

recognition of revenue through the failure to
recognise proper income entitlements or to
. apply an appropriate accounting treatment.

In addition to the above, the Directors may be
required to exercise judgement in determining

‘whether income received in the form of special
dividends should be classified as ‘revenue’ or

‘capital’ in the Income Statement. -

Our response to the risk

We have performed the following procedures:

We obtained an understanding of the
processes and controls surroundifig revenue

- recognition and classification of special

dividends by pérforming walkthrough
procedures.to evaluate the design and
implementation of controls;

For all dividends received and accrued,

we recalculated the income by multiplying
the investment holdings at the ex-dividend
date, traced from the accounting recdrds,
by the dividend rote as agreed to an
mdependent data vendor. We also agreed
all exchange rates to an external source
and, for a sample of dividends received -
and dividends accrued, we agreed amounts
to bank statements; ‘

For all dividends accrued; we assessed

-whether the dividend obligations arose
prior to 31 August 2023, with reference

to an external source. We also agreed
subsequent cash receipts to post year- -end -
bank statements where applicable;

To test completeness of recorded income,
we tested that all expected dividends for
each of the investee companies had been
recorded as income with reference to an
external source; and

For oll dividend income during the year,

we reviewed the type of dividends paid
with reference to an external source to
identify those which were special dividends.
For special dividends above our testing
threshold, we assessed the appropriateness
of the Company’s classification as either
revenue or capital by reviewing the
rationale for the underlying distribution.

Key observations
communicated to

" the Audit Committee

_ The results of

our procedures
identified no.material
misstatement in
relation to the risk

of incomplete or
inaccurate revenue
recognition, including
the classification of
special dividends as
revenue or capital
items in the Income
Statement.
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Risk

Risk of incorrect valuation or
ownership of the investment .
“portfolio, including derivatives

Refer to the Report of the Audit Committee

(page 46); Accounting Policies (pages 60 and

61); and Notes 10 and 11 of the Financial .
Statements (pages 66 and 67). :

Our response to the risk

We performed the following procedures:

We obtained an understanding of the
processes ‘and controls surrounding
investment pricihg and legal title by
performing walkthrough procedures;

For all investments in the portfolio, we
compared the market prices and exchange
rates applied to-an independent pricing

Key observations -
communicated to
the Audit Committee '

The results of
our procedures
identified no material
misstatement in
relation to the risk of °
incorrect valuation

- or ownership of the
investment portfolio,
including derivatives. .

At 31 August 2023, the Company held
investments with a value of £882.69m (2022:
£835.67m). The Company also has net derivative

assets amounting to £0.82m (2022: net derivative’

liabilities amounting to £9.17m).

The valuation of the assets held in the

investment portfolio, including derivatives, is the
- key driver of the Company’s net asset valve

and total return. Incorrect investment pricing,

or a failure to maintain proper legal title to the

investments. held by the Company could have a

significant impact on the portfolio valuation and
- the return generated for shareholders.

vendor. For all derivatives, we compared the
market prices of the underlying instrument to

an indepéndent pricing vendor and agreed

cost price to the Brokers’ confirmations. We

. recalculated the investment and derivative
- valuations as at the year end;

" We inspected the stale pricing report to

identify prices that had not changed ‘and

- verified whether the quoted price is a valid

fair value; and

We compared the Company’s investment
holdings at 31 August 2023 to the

The fair value.of the listed investments and
derivatives is determined using quoted market
prices at close of business on the reporting date.

independent confirmation received
“directly from the Company’s Custodian
and Depositary. We ogréed all year-end
open derivative positions to confirmations

received independently from the Company’s

Brokers.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in plonning and performing
--the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on

the audit and in forming our audit opinion. '

Matenallty .

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, md/wduolly
or in-the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of the users of the Financial Staterents.
Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent
of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Compony to be £9.51m (2022:

£9.23m), which is 1% (2022: 1%) of Company’s Net Asset Value.
We believe that Net Asset Value provides us with motenolny
aligned to the key measure of the Company’s performance.

Performance materiality

- The application of materiality at the individual account
or balance level. It is set at an amount to reduce to an
oppropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our
assessment of the Company’s overall control environment, our

judgement was that performance materiality was 75% (2022:
75%) of our planning materiality, namely £7.13m (2022: £6.92m).
We have set performance materiality ot this percentage due lo
our past experience of the audit that indicates a lower risk of
misstatements, both corrected and uncorrected.

" Given the importoni:e of the distinction between revenue and -

capital for investment trusts, we have also applied a separate
testing threshold for the revenue column of the Income Statement
of £1.76m (2022: £1.52m) being 5% (2022: 5%) of revenue profit
before tax. '

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered

as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Commitiee that we would report to

" them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £0.48m (2022:

£0.46m), which is set at 5% of planning materiality, as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted

.- reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected missiatements against both the
quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light
of other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.
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Independent Audltors Report to the Members
Of Fldellty Specml VClerS PLC contlnued |

_ Other information
The other information comprises the mformollon included in |
the annual report other than the Financial Statements and our
Auditor’s report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
" other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion-on the Financial Statements does not cover the other
infermation and; oxcept to the oxont otherwise cuplicitly stated in
this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. :

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement

in the Financial Statements themselves. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act

2006 .

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
" be audited has been properly prepared in occordcnce with the

Componles Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the
audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Financial
Statements are prepared is consisient with the Financial

~ Statements; and ’

e the Strctégic Report and Directors’ 'Repo'rt have been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception’

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company
and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or
Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the follbwing mattersin
relation to which the Companies Act ’7006 requires us to report to
you if, in ‘our opinion: :

. odeqbote accounting records have not been kept, or -
returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

. the‘Finonci'ol Statements and the part of the Direttors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the o_ccounting records and return_s; or

* . certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneranon specmed by
law are not made; or

= wo have not received all the information and cnplanahons
we require for our audit. .

Corporate Governance Statement

We have reviewed the Directors’ statement in relation to going
concern, longerterm viability and that part of the Corporate
Governance Statement relating to the Company’s compliance
with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our.review by the Listing Rules.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have -
concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent with the Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit:

¢ Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of '
- adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified set out on page 33;

= Directors’ explanation as to its assessment of the Company’s
prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the "
period is appropriate set out on page 26;

*  Director’s statement on whether it has a reasonable ’ ]
expectation that the Company will be able to continue in
operation and meets its liabilities set out on page 33;

« Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable
set out on page '44;

«  Board’s confirmation that it has carried out a. robust
assessment of the emerging and pnncnpol risks set out on
page 23; :

* The section of the Annual Report that descnbes the review
of effectiveness of risk management ond internal control
systems set out on page 40; and

 The section describing the work of the Audjl Committee set
out on page 45.
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Responsibilities of Directors T .
As explained more fully'in the Statement of Drrectors

Responsibilities set out on page 44, the Directors are responsible’

for the preparation of the Financial Statements and for being *
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal

. control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the o
preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material
misstotement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financia! Statements, the Directors are’
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 1o continve os o
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
. operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

- Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial
Statements o
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about -
whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an Auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with. ISAs (UK) will always
detect o material misstatement when it exists. Misstotements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users token on
the bOSIS of’ these Financial Statements.

We understood how the Company is complying with those
frameworks through discussions with the Audit Committee

and Company Secretdry and review of Board minutes and
the Company’s documented policies and procedures.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Company’s Financial
Statements to material misstatement, including how fraud
might occur by considering the key risks impacting the
Financial Statements. We identified a fraud risk with respect
to the incomplete or indccurate revenue recognition through
incorrect classification of special dividends as revenue or
capital items in the Income Statement. Further discussion of -
our approach is set out in the section on key audit motters
cbove

Based on this understanding we designed our audit
procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws

and regulations. Our procedures involved review of the
reporting to the Directors with respect to the application of
the documented policies and procedures and review of the
Financial Statements to ensure.compliance with the reporting
requirements of the Company.

A further deseription of our responsibilities for the oud|t

of the Financial Statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's. websne at https://www.frc.org.uk/
audﬂorsresponsnbllltles This description forms part of our
Auditor’s report. .

Other matters we are required to address

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered .
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud -

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-cor'nplionceA

“with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including
fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due

. to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting’

from error, as fraud may involve deliberote concealment by, for - '
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. .

.However, the primdry responsibility for the prevention and
detection of fraud rests with both those charged wrth governance
of the Compony and management.

s

*  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulctory
frameworks that are applicable to the Company and
determined that the most significant are United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, the Companies
Act 2006, the Association of Investment Companies Code
of Corporate Governance, the Association of Investment
Companies Statement of Recommended Practice, the
Listing Rules, the UK Corporate Governance Code; Section
1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and The Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018. 4

) Following the recommendation from the Audit Committee, we

were appointed by the Compo'ny on 30 November 2015 to
audit the Financial Statements for the year endmg 31 August
2016 and subsequent financial periods.

The period of total uninterrupted engagement including
previous renewals and reappointments is eight years, '
covering the years ending 31 August 2016 to 31 August
2023.

The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to

] the Audit Committee.
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-'.Independent Aud|tor S Report to the Members
of F|de||ty SpeCIol Volues PLC continued

Use of our report :

This reporl is made solely to the Company'’s members osa

_ body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been underiaken so that we might

state to the Company’s members those matters we are required’

to state to them in an Auditor’s report-and for no other purpose.

. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or-

assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and

the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this

report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Ashley Coups

Senior Statutory Auditor .

" For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Statotory ‘Auditor . ’
London

6 November 2023
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3

Income ‘Statement -
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Year ended 31 August 2023 . Yearended 31 August 2022

. ‘Revenve Capital - Total Revenue =~ Copital Total
) Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 - £'000 . .£'000 £000.
Losses on investments’ 10 - (12,021) (12021 - - (64,441) (64,447
. Gains/(losses) on long CFDs R - 35,770 " 35,770 ) - (14,992) (14,992)
Investment and derivotlzve_ income 3 . 43,717 ‘ - 43,717 137,135 _ - 37,135
Other interest 3 2,971 . 29711 877 o 877
Investment mcinogement fees. 4 (5.698) - . (5,698) (5,607) - © o (5,607)
Other expenses ' 5 (948) Co- : (948) (838) . - (838)
Fovreign exchange_(los_ées)/goins . . - . (4,032) (4,032 - 5874° 5,874
Net return/(loss) on ordinary ) -
‘activities before finance costs : : . ’ ’ .
and taxation ' s ) - 40,042 19,717 . 59,759 31,567 (73,559) (41,992)
“Finance costs , 6 (a778) - (4,774) (1243 - ©(1,243)
Net return/(loss) on ordinary ) : ) ] : .
activities before taxation A 35,268 19,717 54,985 30,324 © (73,559) (43,235)
Taxation on return/(loss) on c . . o o .
ordinary activities : 7 (672) - (672) (196) . - (196)
Net return/(loss) on ordinary. . . )
activities after taxation for the : . ) : ‘ . '
year . © 34,596 19,717 54,313 . 30,128 (73,559) (43,431)°
Return/(loss) per ordinary share 8 ) 10.67p 6.08p : _ 16.75p ’ 9.42p (23.00p) ' (13.58p)

The Company does not have any. other comprehensive income. Accordingly the net return/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation for the
year is also-the total comprehensive income for the year and_no separate Statement of Comprehensive Income has been presented.

The total column of this statement represents the Income Statement of the Company. The revenue and capital columns are supplementary
- and presented for information purposes as recommended by the Statement of Recommended Practice issued by the AIC. '

No oberotions. were acquired or discontinued in the year and all items in the above statement derive from'continuing operations.

The Notes on pages 59 to 77 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 August 2023 '
Company n'umbe.r 2972628

2023 2022
Notes £'000 £'000
Fixed 'ass-e,ts )
Investments 10 882,692 835,672
Current assets

Derivative instruments 11 1,769 28

Debtors - © 12 8,937 10,940

* . Amounts held at futures cleolring hqgvses‘ and brokers - 8,190

Cash and cash equivo'lents ‘ A 59,460 80,450

70,166 £99,608

Current liabilities 4 ' '

.Derivotive instruments 1 1 (949) (9,200)
" Other creditors 13 ' (860) (3,481)

(1,809) (12,681)

Net current assets 68,357 86,927

Net assets 951,049 922,599

Capital and reserves

" Share capital V 14 16,205 16,205

Share premium account ™ 15 238,442 238,442

" Capital redemption reserve 15 3,256 3,256

Other ﬁqh—distriputoble reserve 15 5,152 . 5,152

"Capital reserve 15 648,795 629,078
Revenue, reserve 15 . .39,199 30,466 ‘
Total Shareholdersf funds 951;049 922,599

Net aséet value per ordinary ;c,hu_re \ 16 - 293.44p A284.67'p

The Financial Statoments on pages 55 to 77 were approved by the Board of Dircetors on & Novembet 2023 and were signed ot ils

behalf by:

Dea fov el ey

Dean Buckley -
Chairman

The Notes on pages 59 to 77 form an integral porf of these Financial Statements.

i
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Statement of Chonges in EqU|ty

for the year ended 31 August 2023

The Notes on pages 59 to 77 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Other Total
Share- Capital non- Share-
Share premium redemption distributable Capital Revenue holders’
capital = account reserve reserve reserve reserve funds
Notes £'000 £'0600 £'000 £'000 - £'000 £'000 £'000

Total Shareholders’ funds at’ : . Co . - . I
31 August 2022 16,205 238,442 3,256 . 5,182 629,078, - 30,466 922,599
Net return 6n ordinary .
activities after taxation for the . .
year - - - - 19,717 34,596 . 54,313
Dividends paid to Shareholders .9 - - - - - (25,863) (25,863)
Total Shareholders’ funds at » . .
31 August 2023 16,205 -238,442 3,256 - 5152 = 648,795 39,199 - 951,049

" Total Shareholders’ funds at . : . : A I
31 August 2021 15,651 205,466 3,256 5,152 702,637 -+ 21,928 954,090 -
New ordinary shares issued 14 554 33,118 Lo - - - 33,472
Costs associated with the o . o
issue of new ordinary shares - (142) - - - - (142) .
Nét (loss)/return on ordinary
activities after taxation for the -
yedr _ - - - - (73,559) 30,128 (43,431)
Dividends paid to Shareholders . 9 - - - - - (21,590) (21,590) .
Total Shareholders’ funds at ) : . .
31 August 2022 16,205 238,442 3,256 5,152 629,078 30,46§ 922,599
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 August 2023

Year ended  Year ended
. 31.08.23 31.08.22
Notes £'000 £'000
Operating activities '
Investment income received 39,436 25,034
Net derivative income 5,934 9,133
Interest reéeived 2,971 493
Investment monogemém fees paid - (5.699) (5,597)
Directors’ fees paid (173) (157)
Other cash payments: (777) (618)
Net cash inflow from operating activities before finance costs and taxation 20 - 41,692 28,288
Finance costs paid (4,622) -(1,186)
Overseas taxation suffered (1,119) (783)
. Net cash inflow from operating activities { 35,951 26,319
Investing activities
. Purchases of investments (429,178) (359,829)
Sales of investments 368,171 347076
Receipts on.long CFDs 70,856 73,743
Payments on long CFDs v (45,085) (80,763)
Movement on amounts held at futures clearing houses and brokers 8,190 (8,150)
Net cash outflow from inveéting activities ' (27,046) (27,923)
"Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing activities 8,905 (1,604)
Financing activities
Dividends paid 9 (25,863) (21,590)
Net proceeds from issue of shares ' - 34,132
Costs associated with the issue of new ordinary shares - (142)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (25,863) 12,400
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents. (16,958) . 10,796
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 80,450 '65,'780
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (4,032) 5874
- Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 59,460 80,450
Represented by:
Cash at bank ] 2,028 2,014
- Amount held in Fidelity Institutional Liquidity Fund 57,432 78,436
- 59,460 80,450

The Notes on pdges 59 to 77 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 - Principal Activity

Fidelity Special Values PLC is an Investment Company |ncorporoted in England and Wales with a premium Iustmg on the London Stock
Exchange. The Company's registration number is 2972628, and its registered office is Beech Gate, Millfield Lane, Lower Kingswood,
Tadworth, Surrey KT20 6RP..The Company has been approved by HM Revenue & Customs as an Investment Trust under Section 1158
of the Corporotlon Tax Act 2010 and intends to conduct its offairs so as to continue to be approved. ’

2 Accounting Policies

The Company has prepored its Financial Stotements in accordance with UK Genérally Accepted Accounting Practice (“UK GAAP”),
mcludmg FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, issued by the Financial Reporting
Council (“FRC"). The Financial Statements have also been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice: '
Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture Capital Trusts (“SORP”) issued by the Assoaotlon of Investment
Companies (”AIC”) in July 2022.

a) Basis of clccountlng The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern, basis and under the historical cost
convention, except for the measurement at fair.value of investments and derivative instruments. The Difectors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in opérational existence up. to 30 November 2024 which is at
least twelve months from the date of approval of these Financial Statements. In making their assessment the Directors have reviewed
income and expense projections, reviewed the liquidity of the investment portfolio and considered the Company’s ability to meet
liabilities as they fall' due. This conclusion also takes into account the Director’s assessment of the risks faced by the Company as
detoiled in the Going Concern Statement on page 33.

In prepormg these Financial Statements the Directors hove considered the impact of climate chonge risk as an emerglng and @
principal risk as set out on page 23 and on page 24, and have concluded that there was no further impact of climate change fo be -
taken into account as the investments are valued based on market pricing. In line with FRS 102, investments are valued at fair value,
which in active markets dre quoted bid prices ot the balance sheet date. Investments which are- unlisted are priced using market-
based valuation cpprooches AII mvestments therefore reflect the market participants view of climate change risk on the investments
held by the Company.

The Company's Going Concern Statement in the Directors’ Report on page 33 takes account of all events and conditions up to-
30 November 2024 which is ot least twelve months from the dote of opprovol of these Financial Statements.

b) Significant accounung estimates and judgements — The Dlrectors make judgements and estimotes concerning the future.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, such as expectations
of future events, and are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
Judgements requiréd in order to delermine the appropriate valuation methodology of leve) 3 financial instruments have a risk of-
causing an adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets. These judgements include moklng assessments of the possible valuations in
the event of a listing or other marketability reloted risks.

c) Segmental reporting - The Company is engaged in a single segment business and, therefore, no segmental reporting is provided.
d) Presentation of the Income Statement - In order to reflect better the activities of an investment company and in accordance
with guidance issued by the AIC, supplementary information which analyses the Income Statement between items of a revenue and
capital nature has been prepared clon951de the Income Statement. The net revenue return after taxation for the year is the measure
the Directors believe appropriate in assessing the Company’s compliance with certain requirements set out in Section 1159 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010. ‘ -

e) Income - Income from equity mvestments is accounted for on the date on which the nght to receive the payment is established,

normally the ex-dividend date. Overseas dividends are accounted for gross of any tax deducted at source. Amounts are credited to the
revenue column of the Income Statement. Where the Company has elected to receive its dividends in the form of additional shares rather
than cash, the amount of the cash dividend foregone is recognised in the revenue column of the Income Statement. Any excess in the
valué of the shares received over the amount of the cash dividend is recognised in the capital column of the Income Statement. Speciol
dividends are treated as a revenue receipt or a capital receipt depending on the facts and circumstances of each particular case.
Interest for securities is accounted for on an accruals basis and is credited to the revenue column of the Income Statement.

Derivative instrument income received from dividends on long contracts for-difference ("CFDs") is accounted for on the date on which
the right to receive the poyment is estabhshed normally the ex-dividend dote The amount net of tox is credited to the revenue column
of the Income Statement.

Interest received on CFDs, bank deposits, collateral and money market funds is accounted for on an accruals basis and credited to
the revenue column of the Income Statement. tnterest recelved on CFDs represents the finance costs colculoted by reference to the
' notional valve of the CFDs. :
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Notes to the Financial Statements oontinued

N

2. Accountmg Policies confinued .
f) Investment management fees and other expenses - Investment monogemenl fees and other expenses are occounted foron an
accruals basis and are chorged as follows: *

« . Investment management fees are allocated in full to revenue; and -

e Al other expenses are allocated in full to revenue with the exception of those directly ottrlbutoble to share issues or other capital -
events.

" g) Functional currency and foreign exchange - The functional and reporting currency of the Company is UK sterling, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
reported in UK sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities in fofeign currencies are
translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising on translation are
recognised in the Income Statement as a revenue or a capital item depending on the nature of the underlying item to which they relate.

" h) Finance costs - Finance costs comprise interest on bank overdrafts and collateral and finance costs paid on CFDs, which are
accounted for on an accruals basis. Finance costs are charged in full to the revenue column of the Income Statement.

i) Taxation - The taxation charge represents the sum of current taxation and deferred taxation.

Current taxation is taxation sufféred at source on overseas income less amounts recoverable under taxation treaties. Taxation is
charged or credited to the revenue column of the Income Statement, except where it relates to.items of a capital nature, in which case
it is charged or credited to.the capital column of the Income Statement. Where expenses are allocated between revenue and capital
any tax relief in respect of the expenses is allocated between revenue and capital returns on the marginal basis using the Company’s
effective rate.of corporation tax.for the accounting period. The Company is. an approved Investment Trust under Section 1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 and is not liabte for UK taxation on capital gains.

Deferred taxafion is the taxation expected to be payable or recoverable on timing différences between the treatment of certain items
for accounting purposes.and their treatment for the purposes of.computing taxable ‘profits. Deferred toxation is based on tax rates thot
have been enacted or substantively enacted when the taxation is expected to be payable or recoverable. Deferred tax assets are
only recognised if it is considered more likely than not that thére will be sufficienl future taxable profits to utilise them.

j) Dividend pald Dividends poyoble to equity Shareholders are recogmsed when the Company’s obllgohon to make poyment is .
established.

k) Investments - The Compony s business is investing in financial instruments with a view to profiting from their total return in the
form of income and capital growth. This portfolio of investments is managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value bosis, in-
accordance with a documented investment strategy, and information about the portfolio is provided on that basis to the Compcny s
Boord of Directors. Investments are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in. profit or loss, in accordance with
the provisions of both Section 11 and Sechon 12 of FRS 102. The fair value of investments is initially taken to be their cost and is
subsequently measured as follows: - - :

¢ Llisted investments are volued at b|d prices, or Iost market prices, dependmg on the convention of the exchonge on which they
© are listed; and :

= Unlisted investments are not quoted, or are not frequently traded, and are stated at the best estimate of fair value. The
Manager’s Fair Value Committee ('FVC’), which is independent of the Portfolio Manager’s team, meets quarterly.to determine the
fair value of unlisted investments. . : o :

The FVC provide a recommendation of fair values to the Board using market-based approaches such as multiples, industry valuation
benchmarks and-available market prices. Consideration is given to the cost of the investment, recent arm’s length transactions in the
same or similar investments and the financial performance of the |nvestment since purchase. This pricing methodology is subject to a
detmled review and oppropnote challenge by the Dlrectors .

~ In accordance with the AIC SORP, the Company includes transaction costs, incidental to the purchase or sale of investments, within '
- losses on investments in the capital column of the Income Statement and has disclosed these costs in Note 10 on page 66.
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2 Accountmg Policies contmued :

1) Derivative instruments - - When appropriate, permitted transactions in derivative instruments are used. Derivative tronsactlons

" into which the Company may enter include long and short CFDs, futures, options and warrants. Derivatives are classified as other ’
financial instruments and are initially accounted for and measured at fair value on the dote the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently measured at fOII’ value as follows: :

. .'Ldng CFDs - the difference between the strike price and the value of the underlying shares in the contract;
»  Futures - the difference between the contract price and the quoted trade price; and
* Options - value bosed on similar instruments or the qubled trade price for the contract.

Where transactions are used to protect or enhance income, if the circumstances support this, the income and expenses derived are
included in net income in the révenue column of the Income Statement. Where such transactions are used to protect or enhance
-capital, if the circumstances support this, the income and expenses derived are included: for long CFDs, as gains or losses on long
CFDs, and for short CFDs, futures and options as gains or losses on short CFDs, futures and options in the capital column of the
Income Statement. Any positions on such transactions open at the year end are reflected on the Bolonce Sheet at their fair value
W|th|n current assets or current liabilities.

.

m) Debtors - Debtors include securities sold for future settlement, amounts receivable on'settlement of derivatives, accrued income,
taxation recoverable and other debtors and prepayments incurred in the ‘ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one
‘year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer) they. are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets. They are recognised initially at fair value and, where applicable, subsequemly measured at amortised. cost
using the effective interest rate method. :

n), Amounts held at futures clearing houses and brokers - These are amounts held in segregated occounts as collateral on behalf
of brokers and are carried at amortised cost. :

0) Cash and cash equivalents - Cash and cash equi\‘/alents‘hoy comprise cash at bank ond'money' market funds which are
short-term, highly liquid and are readily convertible to a known amount of cash. These are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. |

p) Other creditors - Other creditors include securities purchased for future settlement, finance costs payable, investment management
fees and other creditors and expenses accrued in the ordinary course of business. If payment is due within one year or less (or in

‘the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer) they are clossified as current liabilities. If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities. They are recognised initially at fair value and, where cppllcoble subsequently meosured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate melhod .

A q) Capital reserve - The following are accounted for in,the,cdpitcl reserve:
* Gains and losses on the disposél of investments and derivoiive instruments; -
+  Changes in the fair value of investments and derivative instruments held at the year end;
+  Foreign exchange gains and losses of a capital nature;
» Dividends receivable which,dre capital in nature; and
+  Costs of repurchasing or issuing ordinary shares.
Technical guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountonls in England dnd Wales in TECH 02/1 7BL, guidance on the
determination of realised profits and losses in the context of distributions under the Compomes Act 2006, states that changes in
the fair value of investments which are readily convertible to cash, without accepting odverse terms at the Balance Sheet date, can
be treated as realised. Capital reserves realised and unrealised are shown in aggregate as capital reserve in the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Balance Sheet. At'the Balance Sheet date, the portfolio of the Company consisted of investments listed
on o recognised stock exchange and derivative instruments contracted with counterparties having an adequate credit rating, and

the portfolio was considered to be readily convertible to cash, with the exception of the level 3 investments which had unrealised
investment holding losses of £9,684,000 (2022: losses of £9,389,000). : :
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Notes to the Financial Stqte‘rhﬁe'hts continuec

3 Income

- . Year ended Yeor‘en.cied.

31.08.23 31.08.22
) £'000 £000
Investment income A . .
UK dividends . o o : Co 29,189 20,437
UK scrip dividends - , A o ' . - 3
Interest on securities ‘ ’ A o ) : ‘ 7 » .- - 805 - -
Overseas dividends ‘ o : A ' . . 10543 6,684
Overseas scrip dividends . . . . = . S » s - - 23
40,537 27,229
Derivative income . N .
Dividends received on long CFDs - E R o 3,180 9,906
Investment and derivative income . : - _ - . 43,717 - . 37,135
Other interest ‘
Interest received on bank deposits, collateral and money market funds . - ‘ ] S 2,965 493,
Interest received on tox reclaims . . R . . 6 : -
Interest received on long CFDs* L . ’ . ' ) o - © 384
' | - 2,971 877
Total income : . . N 46,688 . A 38,012

Specml d|V|dends of £1,904, 000 (2022 £372 ,000) hove been recognised in capital during the year.

- *" Due to negative interest rotes in the prior year, the Company recelved interest on some of its Iong CFDs.

4 Investment Manag_ement Fees

Year ended  Year ended |

31.08.23 310822
‘ . £000 £'000 .
- Investment monogement fees . ) . ) g . 5,698 5,607

FIL Investment Serwces (UK) Limited is the Componys Alternative Investment Fund Manager and has delegoted portfolio management
to FIL Investments Internohoncl ("FIl"). Both companies are Fidelity group ¢ompanies. :

FIl charges investiment management fees at an annual rate of 0.60% of net ossets. Fees are accrued on a daily basis and payable
monthly .
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5 - Other Expenses - : ) : = .

’Yedr ended Year ended
31.08.23 31.08.22
£'000 £'000
* AIC fees 21 2
Custody fees ) 35 42
Depoéitory fees 57 71
Dire_;tors’ expenses 17 6
- Directors’ fees' 172 © 159
Legal and professional fees ' 82 95"
" Marketing expenses 303 1N
Printing and publication exbénses ) 11,6_ v 115
Registrars’ fees _ 68 70°
Fees payable to the Company’s Independent Auditor for the oudit of the Finaﬁciol Statements? 50 " 46
Sundry other expénses ' 27 22
Other expens.e§ - 948 838 -
1. Details of the breakdown of Directors' fees are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 42.
2 The VAT payable on audit fees is included in sundry other expenses.
6 Financé Costs
Year ended  Year ended. '
31.08.23 31.08.22
£'000 - £'000
Interest paid on long CFDs , 4,761 1,231
Interest on boﬁ‘k overdrofts ond‘colldterol . 13- .12
4,774 1,243
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Notes to‘the Financial Statements eontin‘ued;.

7 Taxation on Return/(Loss) on Ordinary Activities

Year ended  Year ended

- 31.08.23 - 31.08.22
' . ) . £'000- - £°000
a) Ana!ysis of the taxation charge for the year: ‘
Ovefseos taxation. , o 4 o o ] o . 612 196
Taxation charge for the year (see Note 7b) - . . 672 1967

b) Foctors affectmg the taxation charge for the year
The taxation charge for the year is lower than the.standard rate of UK corporohon tax for-an investment trust company of 25.00%
(2022: 19.00%). A reconciliation of the standard rate of UK corporation tax to the taxation charge for the year is shown below:

" Year ended  Year ended

31.08.23 31.08.22
o A " £'000 £000
Net retu(n/(less) on ordinary activities before taxation ' . - ' ' 54,985 ‘ (43,235)
Net return/(loss) onordinary activities before toxation multlphed by the, blended rate of UK* corporcmon ) :
tax of 21.52% (2022: 1900%) _ ) A . . 11,833 - (8,215)
Effects of: . ' : : : o ’ .

" Capital (gains)/losses not taxable* - . . S ' (4243) - 13976
Income not taxable . . o o ‘ : o (8,550) (5,173)
Excess management expenses . - - . . ) © 960 . (588)
Overseas taxation ' - . o 672 196
Tetai taxation charge for the year (see Note 7a) . 'A . : . : 672 196

O

*  The Company is éxempt from UK tcxahon on copital gains as it meets the HM Revenue & Customs criteria for an investment company set-out in Sectlon 1159 ol the
Corporauon Tax Act 2010.

c) Deferred taxation
A deferred tax asset of £17,235,000 (2022: £16,119,000), in respect of excess expenses of £68,940,000 (2022 £64,476, 000) available
to'be set off against future taxable profits has not been recogmsed as it is unlikely that there will be sufficient future taxable proms to
utilise these expenses

The UK corporotion tax rate increased from 19.00% to 25.00% from 1 April 2023. The rate of 25.00% has been ‘applied to calculate the
unrecognised deferred tax asset for the current year (2022: 25.00%). .
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8 Return/(Loss) per Ordinary Share

Year ended  Year ended

31.08.23 31.08.22

Revenue return per ordinary share ' - . 10.67p 9.42p
Capitat return/(loss) per ordinary shdre . : - 6.0ép (23.00p)
Total return/(loss) per ordinary share v . i : ‘ 16.75p (13.58p)

The return/(loss) per ordinary share is based on the net return/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation for the year divided by the .
" weighted average number of ordinary shares held outside of Treasury during the year, as shown-below:

. £'000 £'000
Net revenue return on ordinary activities after taxation - o ;4,596 30,128
Net capital return/(loss) bn_ ordinary octivitigé after taxation." . ‘ 19,717 (73,559)
Net total return/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation’ ) } - 54,313 | (43,437)

Number Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares héld outside of Tre;:sury © " 324,098,920 319,569,879

9 Dividends Paid to Shareholders

Year ended  Year ended

31.08.23 31.08.22
) £'000 . £000
Dividends paid

Interim dividend of 2.53 pence peerrdinary share paid for the year ended 31 August 2023 i 8,200 -
Final dividend of 5.45 pence per ordinary share paid for the year ended 31 August 2022 . 17,663 ' -
Interim dividend o‘f 2.3ﬁ pence per ordinary shorg paid for thé year ended 31 Aug'us( 2022 _ ] - - 7,454
Final dividend of 4.50 pence per ordinary share paid for the year ended 31 Auguét 2021 o s - 14,136
. . . | - 25863 21,590

Div_idends proposed ‘ ‘ ,
Final dividend proposed of 6.27 pence per ordinary share for the year ended 31 August 2023 20,321 : -
Final dividend proposed of 5.45 pence per ordinary share for the year ended 31 A;Jgu'st 2022 . - 17,663

20,321 17,663

The Directors have proposed the payment of a final dividend of 6.27 pence per ordinary share for the year ended 31 August 2023
which is subject to approval by Shareholders at the Annual General.Meeting on 14 December 2023 and has not been included as a
liability in these Financial Statements. The dividend will be paid on 10 January 2024 to Shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 1 December 2023 (ex-dividend date 30 November 2023). o :
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10 Investments

Closing fair value

2023 - 2022
£'000 £000
Listed investments 880,839 835,598
Unlisted investments 11,853‘ 274
Total invesl!hents at fair value 882,692 835,672
Opening book cost _ . 813,135 726,247
" Opening investment holding gains 22,537 160,463
Opening fair value A 835,672 886,710
Movements in the year -
-Purchases at cost 426,404 361,407
Sales - proceeds (367,363) (348,004)
Losses on investments (12,021) (64,447) .
.Cllosing fair value 882,692 835,672
Closing book cost 914,377 813,135
‘Closing investment holding (losses)/gains -(31,685) 22,537 -
882,692 835672

The Company received £367,363,000 (2022: £348,004,000) from investments sold in the year. The book cost of these investments when
they were purchosed was £325, 162,000 (2022 £274,519 ,000). These investments have been revolued over time and until they were

sold any unrealised goms/(losses) were included in the fair value of the investments.

Investment transaction costs

Transaction costs incurred in the acquisition and dlsposol of investments, wh|ch are mcluded in the losses on'investments above, were

as follows:

Year ended Year ended -
31.08.23 31.08.22
£'000 £000
Purchases transaction costs 1,688 A 1,544
Sales transaction costs 167 195
' 1,855 1,739

The portfolio turnover rate for the year was 44.2% (20?2: 42.8%).



67,

Annual Report 2023 | Fidelity Special Values PLC

11 Derivative Instruments

8,937

Year ended - Year ended
31.08.23 31.08.22
' £'000 £'000
Gains/(lesses) on long CFD positions closed 25,778 (7,013)
»Move‘ment in‘investment holding gains/(losses) on long CFDs 9,992 (7,979)
’ ' 35,770 (14,992)
2023 2022
Fair value Fair value
£'000 '£000
" Derivative instruments recognised on the Balance Sheet .
Derivative instrument assets 1,769 . 28
Derivative instrument lidbilities (949) (91200)
820 (9,172)
N - - - 2023 2022
: ) Asset Asset
Fair.value exposure ~  Fair value exposure
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At the year end the‘Company held the following derivative ’
instruments R ] . )
long CFDs _ ‘ o 820 130,073 (9.172) 178,898 -
12 Debtors
’ 2023 12022
£'000 £'000
S‘ecuritiés sold for future setilement ] 117 924
Amounts receivable on settlement of derivatives 14 7
Accrued income 7,058 8,711‘
Overseas taxation recoverob!é 1,720 1,273
' Other debtors and prepoymenis- 28 25
10,940
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Note's to the Financial Statements continued

_ 13 Other Creditors.

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Securities purchased for future settlement - 2,774
Finance costs payable _ 209 57
Creditors and accruals - 651 650
860 . 3,481
4 14 Share Capital
' L 2023 _ 2022
Number of Number of

shares - £'000 shares £'000

Issued, allotted and fully paid ordinary shares ot 5~pence'each ' . . .
Total share capital - Beginning of the year ’ ' 324,(!?8,920 © 16,205 313,028,920 '15,651'
New ordinary shares issued _ : . ) - - 11,070,000 554
Total share capltal End of the year ) K o _ 324,098,920 16,205 324,098,920' 16,205

Duri‘ng the year, no new ordinory shores were issued (2022: 11,070,000 shares). The premium received on the issue of new ordinary
“shares for the prior year ended 31 August 2022 was. £33,118,000 and was credited to. the share premium account. At 31 August 2023,

"no shares were held in Treasury.

N
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15 Capital and Reserves

- Other Total.
] Share Capital non- Share-
Share premium redemption distributable Capital Revenue - holders’
‘capital account . reserve ’ reserve reserve -reserve funds
£000 - £'000 £'000 .£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 September 2022 16,205 238,442 3,256 5,152 ' 629,078 30,466 922,599
Losses on investments (see Note 10) - - - - (12,021) - (12,021) .
Gains on lorig CFDs (see Note 11) - - - - 35,770 - 35,770
Foreign exchange losses - - - - (4,032) - (4,032)
Revenue return on ordinary activities o
after taxation for the year - - - - - 34,596 34,596
Dividends paid to Shareholders (see _
Note 9) : - - - - - (25,863) (25,863)
At 31 August 2023 16,205 . .238,442 - 3,256 5,152 648,795 39,199 951,049
Other Total
Share Capital non- A Share-
Share premium redemption distribitable Capital Revenue holders’
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 €000
At 1 September 2021 15,651 205,466 3,256 5,152 702,637 21,928 954,090
Losses on investments (see Note 10) - - - - (64,441) - (64,441)
Losses on long CFDs (see Note 11) - - - - (14,992) - (14,992)
Costs associated with the issue of ) -
new ordinary shares’ - (142) - - - - (142)
Foreign exchonge gains - - - - 5,874 - 5874
New ordinary shares issued 554 33,118 ) - - - - 33,672
Revenue return on ordinary activities 4
after taxation for the year - - - - - 30,128 30,128
Dividends paid to Shareholders (see
Note 9) : - - - - - (21,590) (21,590)
At 31 August 2022 16,205 238,442 3,256 5,152 629,078 .. 30,466 922,599

The copital reserve balance ol 31 August 2023 includes investment holding losses of £31,685,000 (2022: gains of £22,537,000) as

delailed in Note 10 above. The revenue and copital reserves are distributable by way of dividend. See Note 2 (q)

details.

above for further
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I;\I'Ot'es to,the' Financial Statements continved

16 Net Asset Value per Ordinary Share
The calculation of the net asset value per ordinary share is based on the total Shorehoiders funds d|V|ded by the number of ordinary
shares held: outsnde of Treasury. -

2023 2022

Total Shareholders’ funds . - ) . » o ‘ £951,049,000 '£922,599,000
Ordinary shares held-outside of Treasury at year end - o 324,098,920 ‘ 324,098,920
. Net asset value per ordinary share o . 293.44p ‘ 284'67p

It is the Company’s policy that shares held in Treasury will only be réissued at net asset value per ordinary share or at a premium to
net asset value per ordinary share and, therefore, shares held in Treasury have no dilutive effect. -

e
17 Financial Instruments
Management of risk
The Company’s investing activities in pursuit of its investment objective mvolve certain inherent nsks The Board confirms that there
is an ongoing process for.identifying, evaluating and managing the risks faced by the Company. The Board with the assistance of
the Manager, has developed a risk matrix which, as part of the internal control process, identifies the risks that the Company faces.
‘Principal risks identified are market, economic and political, investment performance (including the usé of derivatives and geqﬁng),
cybercrime and information security, environmental, social and governance (“ESG"), competition, business continuity, key person and
operational support, discount control and regulotory Risks are identified and graded in this process, together with steps taken in
mitigation, and are updated and reviewed on an ongoing basis. These risks and how they are identified, evaluated and managed are
Ashown in the Strategic Report on pcges 23 to 25. : :

This note refers to the identification, measurement and management of risks potentially offectmg the value of fmoncnol instruments. The
Compony s financial instruments may comprise:

*  Equity shares (listed and unlisted) ond bonds held in accordance with the Company’s investment objective and po‘Iic.ies;

* Derivative instrumenis whiéh compn_'isel CFDs, futgres and options on Iiétea stocké and eqdity indice;; 0;’1d. '

«" Cash, quuAid resources and short-term debtors and-creditors thotAori‘se from its operations.

The nsks identified arising from the Combonys financial mstrumenfs are morket price risk (which comprises interest rate risk, fore|gn
currency riek and othor prico risk), liquidity risk, counterparty risk, credit risk and derivative inslruiment risk. The Buutd reviews and

agrees policies for managing éach of these risks, which are summarised below. These policies are consistent with those followed last
yeor.
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17 Financial Instruments conhnued

MARKET PRICE RISK

Interest rate risk :

The Company finances its operations through its share copﬁal ond reserves. In addition, the Company has georlng through the use of
derivative instruments. The Board imposes limits to ensure gearing levels are appropriate. The Compcny is exposed to a fmoncml risk
arising as a result of any. mcreoses in interest rates ossocuoted with the funding of the deruvotlve instruments.

Interest rate.risk exposure :
The values of the Compony s financial mstruments lhot are exposed to movements in‘interest rates are shown beIow

2023 © 2022,

£000 £000

Eiposure. to tindnciol instruments that bear interest . ) A
Long CFDs. - exposure less fdiir value o S . 2 : : . . - 129,253 188,070
Exposure to financial instruments that earn interesf
Amounts held at ﬁ;tures cleoring houses cmd(brokers ' . : _ ' - 8,190
Cash and cash equivalents . ) A‘ ' o Co 59,460 B 80,450

L ' 59,460 88,640
Net exp,osu}e to financial instruﬁients that bear interest ) o ] - . 69,793 99,430'

Due to negative interest rates in the prior year, the Company received interest on some of its long CFD positions.

Foreign currency risk :

.The Company does not carry out currency speculation. The Company’s net return/(loss) on ordinary actlivities ofter lcxohon for the
year and its net assets can be affected by foreign exchange movements because the Company has income and assets which- are
denominated in currencies other than the Compahy’s functional cutrency which is UK sterling. The Company can also be subject to
short-term exposure to exchange rate movements; for example, between the date when an investment is purchased or sold and the
date when settlement of the transaction occurs.

Three principal areas have been identified where foreign currency risk could impact the Company:

* Movements in currency exchange rates affecting the value of investments and derivotive‘irist-rumenls; .

+  Movements in ‘currency exchange rates offecting short-term timing differences; and

.- .Move‘ments in currency exchange rates affecting income received.

The portfoli‘o management team monitor foreign currency risk but it is not the Company’s policy to hedge against currency risl'(.‘
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued -

835,672 - 178,898

1 The exposure to the market of Iong CFDs.
2 Debtors include amounts held at futures clearing houses and brokers.

3 Cash and cosh equivalents are made up of £2,014,000 cash at bank and £78,436,000 held in Ftdelny Insmuuonol Liquidity Fund.

17 Financiol'lnstmment's‘ continued
Currency exposure of financial assets :
The curfency exposure profile of the Compony s financial cssets is, shown below:
2023
Long L
Investments exposure to Cash
held at fair  derivative. o and cash
. valve _instruments’ Debtors’ equivalents’ . Total
Currency . ’ o £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Euro : L : . 67,412 77,457 " 823 - 145,692
US dollar . ‘ . : - 31,515 o - 722 36,855 69,092
Swiss franc - S s e 224 - 37,066
‘Swedish krona -, 1815 ©o- - - 1875
Australion dollar _ : 7,782 - a9 - 7,851
"Norwegian kone ' 4,841 - - - 4,841
South-African rand ‘ ' 2,468 - - - 2,468
Conadion dollor © T 1,708 - - .29 1,732
UK-sterling 715,954 52,616 7,119 22,576 © 798,265
o ' 882,692 . 130,073 8,937 59,460 1,081,162
1 The exposure to the market of |ong CFDs.
2 Cosh and cash equnvolenls are made up of £2, 028 000 cash ot bank and £57, 432 000 held in Fidelity Insmutloncl Liquidity Fund.
. 2022
Long
Investments  exposure to Cash
held at fair derivative” and cash
. o value - instruments' | Debtors?  equivalents? Total
Currency . £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
oo o - S 69,765 71,606 36 - - 141,687
USdollar. - ' 6,665 - 17 39,679 46,461
Swiss franc - S 20,631 - - 376 - .21,007
Swedish krona - o T 16309 - - - 16,309
Australian dollar : © 12,179 - - - 12,179
Norwegian krone R . V, : - 6,377 - - - iM6,377
Emirati ditham : ‘ .. 4780 . - - - 4,780
South African fand . . , o . 2,711 7142 - - 2,853
Danish krone T - 71 - 71
Canadian dollar . . ' ' - - - 33 33
UK sterling ’ . ) 696,255 107,150 18,250 40,738 862,393
19,130 . 80450 1,114,150
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17 Financial Instruments continued
Cutrency exposure of financial liabilities
The Company finances its investment activities through its ordinary share capital and reserves. The Company’s financial liabilities
comprise other creditors. The currency profile of these financial liabilities is shown below: '

2023 . 2022
i Other Other
: : : ) ) : " ~ .creditors _creditors
Currency - ’ : , £000 - - £'000
Euro | ) . ' - .8
Swiss franc » ' o ‘ o138, 2,141
UKsterling - ‘ , _ 725 1,334
' 860 3,481

Other price risk . .

Other price risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments used in the Company’s business. It
represents the potential loss the Company might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The Board
meets quarterlyto consider the asset allocation of the portfolio and the risk associated with particular indusiry sectors within the
parameters of the investment objective. The Portfolio Manager is responsible for actively monitoring the existing portfolio selected
" in accordance with the overall asset allocation parameters described above and seeks to ensure that individual stocks also meet
an acceplable risk/reward profile. Other price risks arising from derivative positions, mainly due to the undeflying exposdres, are

. estimated using Value at Risk and Stress Tests as set out in the Company's internal Risk Management Process Document.

qumdlty risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meetmg obligations associated with financial hcbllmes The
Company’s assets mainly comprise readily realisable securities and derivative instruments which can be sold easily to meet funding
commitments if necessary. Short-term flexibility is achieved by the use of a bank overdraft, if required.

Liquidity risk exposure :
At 31 August 2023, the undiscounted gross cash outflows of the financial liabilities were all repayable wnhm one year and consisted of
derivative instrument liabilities of £949,000 (2022: £9,200,000) and other creditors of £860,000 (2022: £3,481,000).

Counterparty risk

Cerlain derivative instruments in which the Company may invest are not traded on an exchange but instead will be traded between
counterparties based on contraciual relationships, under the terms outlined in the International Swaps and Derivatives Association’s
(“ISDA") market standard derivative legal documentation. These are known as Over the Counter (“OTC”) trades. As a result, the
Company is subject to the risk that a counterparty may not perform its obligations under the related contract. In accordance with

the risk management process which the Investment Manager employs, this risk is minimised by only entering into transactions with
counterparties which are believed to have an adequate credit rating at the time the transaction is entered into, by ensuring that formal
legal agreements covering the terms of the contract are entered into in advadnce, and through adopting a counterparty risk framework
which measures, monitors and manages counterparty risk by the use of internal and external credit agency rctmgs and by evoluotmg
derivative instrument credit risk exposure. C

For derivative tronsoctions, collateral is used to reduce the risk of both parties to the contract. All collateral amounts are held in

UK sterling and are managed on a daily basis for all relevant transactions. At 31 August 2023, £580,000 (2022: £nil) was held by
the brokers in a segregated collateral account on behalf of the Company, to reduce the credit risk exposure of the Company. This
collateral comprised: J.P. Morgan Securities plc £220,000 (2022: £nil) and HSBC Bank plc £360,000 (2022: £nil). At 31 August 2023,
there were no amounts held by the Company at futures clearing houses and brokers, in a segregated collateral account, on behalf
of the brokers, to reduce the credit risk exposure of the brokers (2022: £8,190,000). In the year to 31 Augusl 2022 this collateral
compnsed 1P Morgon Securities plc £5,140,000 in cash and HSBC Bank plc £3,050,000 in cosh

Credit risk

"Financial instruments may be adversely affected if any of the institutions with WhICh money is deposited suffer insolvency or other
financial difficulties. All transactions are carried out with brokers that have been approved by the Manager and are settled on a
delivery versus payment basis. Limits are set on the amount that may be due from any one broker and are kept under review by the
Manager. Exposure to credit risk arises on unsettled securlty transactions and derivative instrument contracts and cash at bank.
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17 Financial Instruments continued
Derivative instrument risk ‘
The risks and risk monogement processes WhICh resull from the use of derivative instruments, are set out in a documented Derivative.

+ To gain unfunded fong exposure to eqU|ty morkets sectors or single stocks. Unfunded exposure is exposure gomed ‘without an
initial flow of capital;

* To hedge equity market risk using derivatives with the intention of at least porholly mitigating losses in the exposures of the
Company’s portfolio as a result of falls in the eqwty market; and

* To position short exposures in the Company’s porlfollo These uncovered exposures benefit from falls in the prices of shares which
the Portfolio Manager believes to be over-valued. These positions, therefore, distinguish themselves from other short exposures
held for hedging purposes since they are expected to add risk to the portfolio. -

RISK SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis - . : :
Based on the financial instruments held and interest rates at 31 August 2023 an increase of 1.00% in interest rates throughout the year,
with all other variables held constant, would have decreased the Company‘s net gain on ordinary activities: after taxation for the year
and decreased the net assets of the Compony by £698,000 (2022: increased the net loss and decreased the net assets by £994,000).

- A decrease of 1.00% in interest rates throughoul the year would hove had an equal but opposite effect.

Fofeign currency risk sensitivity analysis . . :

Baced on the financial inctruments held and currency exchange rates at 31 August 2023, a 10% strengthening of the UK sterling
ovchongo rate against foreign currencies, with all cther variables held constant, would have dccrecased the Company’s net gain on -
ordinary activities. after taxation for the year and decreased the net assets of the Company by £25,706,000 (2022: increased the net
loss and decreased the net assets by £22,692,000). A 10% weakening of the UK sterling exchange rate against foreign currencies, with -
all othor variables held constant, would have increased the Company’s net gain on ordinary activities after taxation for the year and
increased the net assets of the Compony by £31,418,000 (2022: decreased the net loss and increased the net assets by £27,734,000).

Other price risk- exposure to investments sensitivity analysis

Based on the listed investments held and share prices at 31 August 2023,-an increase of 10% in shore prlces with all other variables
held constant, would have increased the Company’s net return on ordinary activities after taxation for the year and increased the net
assets of the Company by £88,084,000 (2022: decreased the net loss and ‘increased the net assets by £83,540,000). A decrease of
10% in chare pricoc would have hod an equal and opposite cffect.

An increase of 10% in the ?/oluotion of unlisted investments held at 31 August 2023, would have increased the Company’s net gain on
ordinary activities after taxation for the year dnd increased the net assets of the Company by £185,300 (2022: decrecsed the net loss
after toxation and increased the net ossets by £27,000). A decrease of 10% in the valuation would have hod an equol and opposite
effect.

Other price risk - net exposure to derivative instruments sensitivity analysis

~ Based .on-the derivative instruments held and share prices at 31 August 2023, an increase of 10% in the share prices underlying the
derivative instruments, with all other variables held.conatant, would have incrcased the Compony‘s-nel gain on ordinary activities after

_taxation for the year and increased the net assets of the Company by £13,007,000 (2022: decreased the net loss and.increased the

" net ossets by 217,890,000). A decrease of 10% in share prices would have had an equal and opposite effect.

" Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are stated in the Balonce Sheet at values which are not materially different to their fair volues As
explained in Notes 2 (k) and (I) on pages 60 and 61, investments and derivative instruments are shown at fair volue.
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17 Financial Instruments continved
Fair Valve Hierarchy

~

f

The Company is required to disclose the fair value hierarchy that.classifies its hnonaol mstruments measured at fcur volue at one of

three levels, according to the relative relloblllty of the inputs used to estimate the fcur values.

" Classification Input
Level 1 ) i Valued using quoted prices in active'markets for identical assets
Level 2 ) ' " Valued by reference to inputs other than quotee prices included in level 1 that are observable

(e developed using morkel data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly -

Level 3 ° . Valued by reference to valuation technlques usmg inputs that are not based on observoble

morket data

Categorisation within the hlefcrchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level.input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset. The valuation techniques used by the Compony are explained in Notes 2 (Iy and (m) on page 61.

The table below sets out the Compony s fair value hierarchy:

) A 2023
- : . Leve! 1 Level 2 Level 3 : Total
Financial ‘assets at fair value through profit or loss - _£'000 £'000 £000 £°000
Investments - ' 857,351 23,246 2,095 - 882,692
Derivative instrument assets - 1,769 - 1,769
857,351 © 25,015 2,095 884,461

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss A

Derivative instrument liabilities - (949) - (949)

2022
. ) . Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ~Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss £'000. £'000 £'000 £'000
Investments ' 835,224 - 448 835,672
Derivative instrument assets - 28 - 28
835,224 28 448 835,700

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative instrument liabilities - (9,200) - - (9,200)
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17 Financial Instruments continued .
The table below sets out the movements in level 3 financial instruments during the year:

Year ended” Year ended

31.08.23 31.08.22-
‘ £'000 £'000
. Beginning of the year - o o S - 448 957
Sales - proceeds ' : o : . . " . (716) .
Sales - gains _— : : ‘ - 278
Trcmsfer_ iﬁto level 3 at cost - Prax Exploration & Production and Unbound Group* . ' _ 1,942__ 9,499
Movement in investment holding losses - . o . o . (_2_95) (9,570)
. End of the year . . a " C o . : - 2,095 . 448 .

*" Financial instruments are transferred into level 3 on the date they are suspended, delisted or when they have not traded for thirty days.

Marwyn Value Investors’ ' .
Marwyn Value Investors is a closed- ended fund incorporated in the United Klngdom The fund is hlghly illiquid and the valuation at
31st August 2023 is based on the indicative bid pnce in the obsence of a last trade price. As at 31 August 2023, its fair value was
£242,000 (2022: £174,000). :

TVC Holdings .
TVC Holdings is an unllsted mvestment holding company incorporated in Ireland. The vcluouon at 31 August 2023 is based on the
NAV from the 2022 audited company’s financial report. As at 31 August 2023, its fair value was £254,000 (2022: £274,000).

Studio Retail Group

Studio Retail Group operated as a multi-channel retail compony On 14 February 2022, the company was suspended from trodlng on
the London.Stock Exchange. The company is now delisted and in odmmlstrohon As at 31 August 2023, its fair value was £nil (2022
£nil).

McCoII s Retail Group
McColl’s Retail Group owis and operates convenience and newsagent stores. The-company was suspended from lrodmg oné Moy
2022 after appointing administrators. As at 31 August 2023, its fair value was £nil (2022: £nit).

Prax Explorcmon & Production

Hurricane Energy plc, an oil and gas exploration compony, delisted from the London Stock Exchange in June 2023, after it was
acquired by Prax Exploration & Production ple. The valuation at 31 August 2023 of Prax Exploration & Production plc is based.on thé
last trade of Hurricane Energy less the cosh payment received from the acquisition. As at 31 August 2023 its fair value was £1,599,000
(2022: £ril).

Unbound Group

" Unbound Group plc is a UK based company engaged. in selling a range of brands focused on the over 55 oge demographics. On 17
July 2023, the company slopped trading and has subsequently-gone .into administration. As ot 31 August 2023, its fair value was £nil
(2022: Snil).. - .
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18 Capital Resources and Gearmg :

The Company does not have any externally imposed copnol reqwremenls The financial resources of the Compony compnse its share
.capital and reserves, as disclosed in the Balance Sheet on page 56 and any gearing, which is managed by the use of derivative
instruments. Financial resources are managed in accordance with the Company’s investment policy and in pursuit of its investment
objective, both of which are detailed in the Strategic Report on page 21. The pnnapol risks and their management are disclosed-in -
the Strategic Report on poges 23 to 25 and in Note 17 above. :

The Company’s gearing at the year end is’set out below:

2023 L2022
Asset exposure Asset exposure

. ~ go00 % - £000 . %
Investments o ' . © 882,692 92.8 835,672 90.6
Long CFDs | | 130073 . 137 178898 194
Total asset exposures = 1,012,765 106.5 1,014,570 110.0

Shareholders’ funds o " : 951,049 ' 922599
Gearing? - : ‘ ' ‘ . - 6.5% : 10.0%

. e
1 Asset exposure to the market expressed as a percentage of Shareholders’ funds.
2 Gearing is the amount by which Asset Exposure exceeds Shareholders’ funds expressed as a percentage of Shareholders’ funds.

19 Transactions wnh the Manager and Related Portnes
FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited is'the Company’s Alternative Investment Fund Manager and has delegcled portfolio management
and the role of company secretary to FIL Investments International (“FII"). Both companies are Fidelity group companies..

Details of the current fee arrangements are given in the Directors’ Report on boge 33 and in Note 4 on page 62. During the year, fees -

payable to Fll for portfolio management services were £5,698,000 (2022: £5,607,000), At the Balance Sheet date, fees for portfolio
management services of £483,000 (2022: £484,000) were accrued and included in other creditors. Fll also provides the Company with
marketing services. The total amount payable for these services during the year was £303,000 (2022: £191,000). At the Bolonce Sheet’
date, marketing services of £nil (2022: £13 000) were accrued and included in other creditors.

) Disclosures of the Directors’ interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and Director's fees and taxable expenses relating to
reasonable travel expenses payable to the Directors are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 42 and 43. In addition
. to the fees and taxable expenses disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report, £18,000 (2022: £17,000) of Empioyers’ National
Insurance contributions were paid by. the Company. At the Balance Sheel dote, Directors’ fees of £14,000 (2022: £15,000) were
accrued and payable.

20 Reconciliation of Net Return/(Loss) on Ordmury Activities before Finance Costs and Taxation to Net Cash Inflow, from
Operating Activities before Finance Costs and Taxation

Year ended Year ended

31.08.23 31.08.22

£'000 £'000

Net total return/(loss) on _ordi'nary activities before finance costs and taxation : ' o 59,759 (41,992)
Net copitdl (returh)/loss on ordinary oc?ivities befcre findnce costs and taxation ' ‘ (19.717) - 73,559
Net rev'enueAre‘turn on ordinary activities before finance costs and taxation . 40,042 : 31,567
 Scrip dividends . < S — SR - (108)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors o : . . . 1,650 *(3,208)
Increase in other creditors - ' . i ‘ : - "37

Net cash inflow from operdting activities before finance costs and taxation ’ 41,692 28,288
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Alternative Performance Measures

Dlscount/Premlum
The discount/premium is considered to be an Alternative Performance Meosure It is the difference between the NAV per. ordinary
-'share of the Company and the ordinary share price and is expressed-as a percentoge of the NAV per ordinary share. Details of the
Company’s discount/premium are on the Fmoncml Highlights page and are both defined in the Glossary of Terms on pages 90 and
. '91
Gearing : .
. Gearing is conS|dered to be an Alternative Performance Measure. See Note 18 on pcge 77 for detculs of the Compdny’s gearing.
" Net Asset Value ("NAV") per Ordinary Share : :
The NAV per ordinary share is considered to be an Alternative Performance Measure. See the Balance Sheet on page 56 and
Note 16 on page 70 for further details. ’

Ongoing Charges Ratio :

Ongoing charges ratio are considered to be an Alternative Performance Measure. The ongoing charges ratio has been calculated in
accordance with gmdonce issued by the AIC as the total of management fees and other expenses expressed asa percentage of the
overoge net ossets throughout the year.

2023 2022
Investmeni management fees tS’OOO) ’ _ . 5,698 - 5,607
Other expenses (£'000) : . ) ' . 948 838
Ongoing charges (£'000) : ' . Y oo 6,646 6,445
Average net assets (£'000) o A ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ " 949,787 934,785

Ongoing charges ratio . : o . ‘ 0.70% ‘0.69%

o

" Revenue, Ccpltal and Total Returns per Share : .
Rovenuo, capital and total returns per share are considersad to be Altemative Merfermance Mcasures. See the Income Statement on
page 55 and Note 8 on page 65 for furthier details. ’
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Totol Return Performance

Total return performance is considered to be.an Alternative Performance Measure. The NAV per ordmory share totol return mcludes
reinvestment of the dividend in the NAV of the Company on the ex-dividend date. The ordinary share price total return mcludes the

reinvestment of the net d|v1dend in the month that the shore pnce goes ex- -dividend.

The tobles below provide information relating to the NAV per ordinary share and the ordmory share price of the Compony, the Jimpact
of the dividend remvestmenls and the total returns for the years ended 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022

Net asset

value per
-ordinary Share
2023 share ~ " ‘price
31 August 2022 . .284.67Tp  260.50p
31 August 2023 293.44p 267.50p
Chdnge.in year +3.1% +2.7%
_Impact of dividend reinvestment " +2.8% +2.9%
Total return for the year +5.9% . +5.6%"

Net"osset

valve per
» ordinary Share
2022 share price
31 August 2021 304.79p 308.50p
31 August 2022 284.67p° 260.50p
Change in year -6.6% -15.6%

Impact of dividend reinvestment +2.2% +2.1%

“Total returri for thé year -4.4% -13.5%

GOVERNANCE

STRATEGY

FINANCIAL

INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS



80

- Fidelity Special Values PLC | Annual Report 2023

Financial Calendar

The key dates in'the" Company’s calendar are:

31 August 2023 - Financial Year End

7 NO\}émb'er.ZOZS - Announcément of the annual results for the year ended 31 August 2023

November 2023 - Publication of the Annual Report

30 November 2023 - ExDividend Date

1 December 2023 - Dividend Record Date

14 December 2023 - Annual General Meeting

10 Jdr'luory 2024 - Payment of Final Dividend

29 February 2024 - Half-Year End

. April 2024 - An'nou_ncemenf of the Half-Yearly Results for the six months to 29 February 2024

April 2024 - Publication of the Hdlf-YeorIy Report

May 2024 - Ex-Dividend and Dividend Record Date

June 2024 - Poyme'ht of Interim Divider_ld
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Notice of Méetihg

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of -
Fidelity Special Values PLC will be held 4 Cannon Street,
London EC4M 5AB and virtually via the Lumi AGM meeting
platform on Thursday, 14 December 2023 at 11.00 am for the
~ following purposes

1. To receive and adopt the. Annual Report and Financial
) Statements for the year ended 31 August 2023.

2. To declare that a final dividend for the year ended
31 August 2023 of 6.27 pence per ordinary share be paid
to Shareholders on the register as at close of business-on
1 December 2023.

.

3. To re-elect Mrs Cloi_re Boyle as a Director.

4. To re.-elect Mr Dean Buckley as a Director.
5. To re-elect Mr Orrrinder Dhillen as a Director.
6. To re-elect Mr Nigel Foster as a Director.

7. To re-elect Mrs Alison McGregor. as a Dire_ctor. )

8.. To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (excluding
the section headed “The Remuneration Policy” set out on
page 41) for the year ended 31 August 2023.

9. To recpboinl Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor of the Company to
hold office until the conclusion of the. next general meeting at
which financial statements are laid before the Company.

10. To authorise the Directors to determine the Auditor's
remuneration. '

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following special
business resolutions of which Resolution 11 will be proposed
as an ordinary resolullon ond Resolutions 12 and 13 as special
resolutions.

Authorlty to Allot Ordmory Shares and Disapply Pre-:Emption
Rights
Resolutions 11 and 12 will, if approved, authorise the Directors
to allot a limited number of new ordinary shares (or fo sell any
ordinary shares which the Company elects to hold in Treasury)
for cash without first offering such shares to existing ordinary
Shareholders. pro rata to their existing holdings. The limit set
by the Board is 10% of the number of ordinary shares of the
Company (including Treasury shares) in issue on 6 November
2023. The Directors will only issue new ordinary shares, or
dispose of ordinary shares held in Treasury, under this authority .
in order to take advantage of opportunities in the market as
they arise and only if they believe it is advantageous to the

- Company’s Shareholders to do so. Any ordinary shares held
in Treasury would be re-issued at net asset value (“"NAV”) per
ordinary share or at a premium to NAV per ordinary share.’
This would ensure that the net effect of repurchasing and then
re-issuing the ordinary shares would enhance NAV per ordinary
share.

11.

THAT the Directors be and they are hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised in accordance wjth Section 551

- of the.Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) to exercise all the -

powers of the Company to aliot shares in the Company or

to grant rights to_subscribe for or to convert any 'securities
into shares in the Company (“relevant securities”) up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £1,620,494 (approximately
10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company (including Treasury shares) as at 6
November 2023) and ‘so that the Directors may impose any
limits or restrictions and make any orranrgements which they
consider necessary or appropriate to deal with Treasury
shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal, regulotory

*or practical problems in, or under the-laws of, any territory or

12.

any other matter, such authority to expire at the conclusion of
the next Annual Géneral Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company
or the date 15 months after the passing of this resolution,
whichever is the earlier, but so that this authority shall allow

. the Company to make offers or agreements before the’

expiry of this authority which would or might require relevant
securities to be allotted after such expiry os if the authority
conferred by this resolution had not expired. All previous
unexpired authorities are revoked, but without prejudice to
any allotment of shares or grant of rights already made,
offered or agreed to be made pursuant to such, authorities.

THAT, subject to the passing of Resolution 11, as set out
above, the Directors be and they are hereby authorised,
pursuant to Sections 570-573 of the Act to allot equity
securities (os defined in Section 560 of the Act) for cash
pursuant to the authority given by the said Resolution 11

_ and/or to sell ordinary shares held by the Company as

Treasury shares for cash, as if Section 561 of the Act did not
apply to any such allotment or sale, provrded that this power

-shall be limited:

Q) 1o the allotment of equity securities ‘or sale of Treosury

shares up to an aggregote nominal amount of
£1,620,494 (opproximately 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the
Company (including Treasury shares) as at 6 November
2023); and

b) by the condition that allotments of equity securities or
sales of Treasury shares may only be made pursuant
to this authority at a price of not less than the NAV' per
ordinary share,

and this power shall expire at the conclusion of the next

AGM of the Company or the date 15 months after the
passing of this Resolution, whichever is the earlier, save
that this authority shall allow the Company to make offers
or agreements before the expiry of this authority, and the
Directors may allot equity securities in relation to such an
offer or agreement as if the authority conferred by this
Resolution had not expired.
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'NOJ[i.Ce‘ of Meeting -confinued

Authority to Repurchase Shares

Resolution 13 is a.special resolution which, if approved, will
renew the Company’s authority to purchase up to 14.99% of

the number of ordinary shares iin issue (excluding Treasury
shares) on 6 November-2023 either for immediate cancellation
or for retention as Treasury shares, at the determination of the
Board. Once shares are held In Treasury, the Directors may
only dispose of them in accordance with the relevant legislation
by subsequently selling the shares for cash or cancelling the
shares. Purchases of ordinary shares will be at the discretion

of the Board and within guidelines set from time to time by the
Board in the light of prevailing market conditions. Purchases will
only be made in the market at prices below the prevailing NAV
per urdinary share, thereby resulling in un increused NAV pe
ordinary share.-

13. THAT the Company be and is hereby generally and
" unconditionally authorised in accordance with Section 701
of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) to make market
purchases (within the meaning of Section 693 of the Act) of
* ordinary charos of 5 pence each (“the shares”) in the capital
of the Company provided that: ’

a) the maximum number of shares hereby authorised to be

purchased shall be 48,582,428,

b) the minimum price’ which may be paid for a share is 5
" pence;

¢) the moximum price (éxcluding expenses) which may be ]

paid for each share is the higher of:

i) 5% above the average of the middle market
quotations for the shares as derived from the
London-Stock Exchange Official List for the five
business days immediately preceding the day of

" purchase; and

ii) the higher of the price of the last independent
trade and the highest current independent
purchase bid on the London Stock Exchange at the

- time the purchase is carried-out;

- d) the authority hereby: conferred shall expire at the
conclusion of the next AGM of the Company or the date
15 months after the passing of this resolution, whichever
-is earlier, unless such authority is renewed prior to such
time; and v

. e) the Company may make a contract to purchase shares
under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry
of such authority which will or may be executed wholly
or partly after the expiration of such authority and
may make a purchase of shares pursuant to any such
contract. ' '

By Order of the Board

FIL Investments International
Secretary

6 November 2023

Notes to the Notice of Meeting:

1.

A member of the Company entitled to attend ond vote at
the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy or proxies
to attend and to speak and vote instead of him. A member
may appoint more than one proxy in relation {o the Annual
General Meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares
held by that member. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company. To appoint a proxy via the share portal at
www.signalshares.com, you will need to log in to your
share portal account or register if you have not previously
done-so. To register you will need your Investor Code which
can be found on your Form of Proxy. -

A Form of Proxy is enclosed and must be returned to the
Registrar at the address on the form to arrive not later than
11.00 am on Tuesday, 12 December 2023. Completion and
return of the form of proxy will not prevent a shareholder

* from subsequently oltendlng the meeting and voting in
.penwn il they so wist.

To be effective, the instrument appointing a proxy, and

any power of ottorney or other authority under which it is
signed (or a copy of any such authority certified notorrolly
or in some other way approved by the Directors), must be
deposited with the Company’s Registrar, PXS 1, Link Group,
Central Squdre, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL not less
than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting or, in the case of a poll taken more than
48 hours after it is demanded, not less than 24 hours before
the time appointed for the taking of the poll at which it is to
be used.

*In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who'

tenders the vote shall be accepted to the exclusion of the
votes of the other joint holders and for this purpose, seniority
shall be determined by the order in which the names stand
in the Register of Members. :

To 6ppoint a proxy or to give or amend an instruction to

a previously appointed proxy via the CREST .system, the
CREST message must be received by the issuer’s agent
RA10 by 11.00 am on Tuesday, 12 December 2023. For this |
purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as
determined by the timestamp applied to the message by
the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s agent
is able to retrieve the. message. After this time, any change
of instructions to a proxy appainted through CREST should
be communicated to the proxy by other means. CREST
Personal-Members or other CREST sponsored members and
those CREST Members who have appointed voting service
provider(s) should contact their CREST sponsor or voting
service provider(s) for assistance with appointing proxies
via CREST. For further information on CREST procedures,

" limitations and systems timings please refer to the CREST

Manual. We may treat as invalid a proxy appoiniment sent .
by CREST in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)
of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001. In any

. case your proxy form must be received by the Company’s

Registrar no later than 11. 00 am on Tuesday, 12 December
2023.
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6.

Proxymity Voting - If you are an institutional investor,
you may also be able to appoint a proxy electronically

-~ via the Proxymity platform, a process which has been

agreed by the Company and approved by the Registrar.
For further information regarding Proxymity, please go to
www.proxymity.io. Your proxy must be lodged by no later
than 11.00 am on Tuesday; 12 December 2023 in order to
be considered valid. Before you ¢an appoint a proxy via
this process, you will need to have agreed to Proxymity’s -
associated terms and ¢onditions. It is important that you
read these carefully as you will be bound by them and they
will govern the electronic appointment of your proxy. An
electronic proxy appointment via the Proxymity platform
may be revoked completely by sending an authenticated
message via the platform |nslruct|ng the removal of your
proxy vote. :

Unless otherwise indicated on the Form of Proxy, CREST,

" Proximity or any other electronic voting instruction, the proxy
will vote as they think fit or, at their discretion, withhold from
voting. )

" All members are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM
and ask questions. The right to vote at the meeting will .
be determined by reference to the Register of Members

_ as at close of business on Tuesday, 12 December 2023.

Shareholders are urged to vote using the proxy form
provided or electronically where permitted by your nominee
or plotform ‘ :

The Company is pleased to be able to offer facilities for
shareholders to attend, ask questions and vote-at the AGM
electronically in real time should they wish to do so. The
‘details are set out below. ’

In order to join the AGM electronically and ask questions
via the platform, shareholders will need to connect to the
following site: https://web.lumiagm.com. Lumi is available
as a mobile web client, compatible with the latest browser
versions of Chrome, Firefox, Edge and Safori and can be
accessed using any web browser, on a PC or smartphone
device.

Once you have accessed https://web.lumiagm.com from
your web browser on a tablet or computer, you will be asked
" to enter the Lumi Meeting ID which is 102-255-614. You

will then be prompted to ‘enter your unique 11 digit Investor
Code (“IVC”) including any leading zeros and ‘PIN’. Your PIN
‘is the last 4 digits of your IVC. This.will authenticate you as a
shareholder.

Your IVC can be found on your share certificate or
. as detailed on your proxy form. Signal Shares users
(www.signalshares.com) will find this under ‘Manage your

account’ when logged in to the Signal Shares portal. You can.

also obtain this by contacting Link, our Reglstrcr by calling
+44 (0) 371.277 1020,

Access to the AGM will be available from 30 minutes before
the meeting start time, although the voting functionality
will not be enabled until the Chairman of the meeting

11.

declares the poll open. During the AGM, you must ensure*
you are connected to the internet at all times in order to vote
when the Chairman commences polling on the Resolutions.
Therefore, it is your responsibility to ensure connectivity for
the duration of the AGM via your wi-fi. A user guide to the -
Lumi platform is available on the Company’s pages of the
Manager’s website at: www.fidelity.co.uk/specialvalues.

If you wish to oppbint a proxy other than the Chairman of

. the meeting and for them to attend the virtual meeting on

your behalf, please submit your proxy appointment in the
usual way before contacting Link Group on +44 (0) 371 277
1020* in order to obtain their IVC and PIN. It is suggested
that you do this as soon as possible and at least 48 hours
(excluding non-business days) before the meeting:

"If your shares are held within a nominee / platform and

you wish to attend the electronic meeting, you will need to
contact your nominee as soon as possible. Your nominee will
need to.present a corporate letter of representation to Link -
Group, the Registrar, as soon as possible and at least 72
hours (excluding non-business days) before the meeting, in
order that they can obtain for you your unique IVC and PIN
to enable you to attend the electronic meeting.

If you are unable to obtain a unigue VC and PIN from
your nominee or platform, we will also welcome online
participation as-a guest. Once you have accessed
https://web.lumiugm:com from your web browser on a

. tablet or computer, you will need to enter the Lumi Meeting

ID which is 102-255-614. You should then select the ‘Guest

Access’ option before entering your name and who you are

representing, if applicable. This will allow you to view the
meeting and ask questions but you will not be able to vote.

* Lines are open from 9.00 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. Monday to
Friday, 'excluding public holidays in England and Wales.
Calls are charged at the standard geographic rate and
will vary by provider. Calls outside the UK will be charged
at the applicable international rate.

Any person to whom this notice is sent who is a person

nominated under Section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to. -

enjoy information rights (a “Nominated Person”) may, under
an agreement between him and the member by whom he
was nominated, have a right to be appointed (or to have
someone else 6ppointed) as a proxy for the'meeting. If a
Nominated Person has no such proxy appointment right

or does not wish to exercise it, he may, under any such
agreement, have a right to give instructions to the member
os to the exercise of voting rights. The statement of the rights
of members in relation to the appointment of proxies in
Note 1 above does not apply to Nominated Persons. The
right described in thot paragraph can only be exercised by
members of the Company.

If the Chairman, as a result of any proxy oppointmehts, is
given discretion as to how.the votes which are the subject
of those proxies are cast and the voting rights in respect
of those discretionary proxies, when added to the interests
in the Company’s securities already held by.the Chairman,
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 result in the Chairman holding such number of voting rights

12.

that he has a notificble obligation under the Disclesure and
Transparency Rules, the Chairman will make the necessary -
notifications to the Company and the [—inczriciol Conduct
Authority. As a result, any member holding 3% or more of

the voting rights in the Company who grants the Chajrman a
discretionary proxy in respect of some or all of those voting
rights and so would otherwise have a notification obligation
under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, need not make
separate notification to the Compcmy and the Financial
Conduct Authority.

Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations 2001, the Company has specified that to be

_ entitled to attend and vote at the AGM (and for the purpose

13,

14.

of determining the number of votes they may cast), members

.must be entered on the Register of Members by close of

business on Tuesday, 12 December 2023. If the meeting is
adjourned then, to be so entitled, members must be entered
on the Register of Members by close of business on the day
two days before the time fixed for the adjourned meeting,
or, if the Company gives notice of the adjourned meeting, at
any.other time specified in that notice.

As at 6 November 2023 (the latest practicable date prior
to the publication of this document), the Company’s issued
share capital consisted of 324,098,920 ordinary shares
carrying one vote each. No shares were held by the -
Company in Treasury, theréfore, the total number of shares
with voting rights in the Company was 324,098,920. )

Any corporation which is a member can appoint one or
more corporate representative who may exercise-on its .

behalf all of its powers as a member provided thot they do

. not do so in relation to the same shares.

15.

16,

Shareholders and any proxies or representatives they
appoint understand that by attending the meeting they
are.expressly agreeing that they are willing to receive any
comimunications, including communications relating to the
Company’s securities, made at the meeting.

It is possible that, pursuant to requests made by members of
the Company under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006,
the Company may be required to publish on its website @
statement setling out any matter relating to the audit of the

N Company’s accounts (including the Auditor’s report and the

conduct of the audit) that is to be laid before the AGM or
any circumstance connected with an Auditor of the Company

' ceasing to hold-office since the previous meeting at which,
‘the Annual Report and Financial Statements were-laid. The

Company may not require the Shareholders requesting any
such website publication to pay its expenses in complying
with such requests. Where the Company is required to
place a statement on a website under Section 527 of the

- Companies Act 2006, it must forward the statement to-the

Company’s Auditor not later than the time when it makes
the statement available on the website. The business which
may be dealt with at the AGM includes any stotement that -
the Company has been required under Section 527 of the
Companies Act 2006 to publish on its website.

‘Notice of Meetihg conti'n»U_‘ed"

18

.A copy of this notice dnd other information required by

No‘-Director has a service contract with thé Company.
Regiatered offiee. Beech Cate, Millficld Lane, Lower
Kingswood, Tadworth, Surrey K120 6RP.

Section 311A of.the Companies Act 2006 is published on the
Company’s website at www.fidelity.co.uk/specialvalues.

Reglstered offlce Beech Gate; Millfield Lane, Lower ngswood
Tadworth, Surrey KT20 6RP. .
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‘Shareholder Information

Investing in Fidélity Special Values PLC

Fidelity Special Values PLC is a company listed on the London
Stock Exchange and you-can buy its shares through a platform,
stockbroker, share shop or bank..Fidelity also offers a range of
options, so that you can invest in the way that is best for you.

" Details of how to invest and the-latest Key Information Document

can be found on the Company’s pages of the Manager’s website
" at: www.fidelity.co.uk/specialvalues.

CONTACT INFORMATION )
Shareholders and Fidelity’s Platform Investors should contact the
appropriate’administrator using the contact details given below
*and in the néxt column. Links to the websites of major platforms
can be found online at: www.fidelity.co.uk/its.

Shareholders on the main share register
Contact Link Group, Registrar to Fidelity Special Values PLC,
Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL.

Email: shareholderenquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

Telephone: 0371 664 0300 (calls are charged ot the standard
geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside the
United Kingdom will be charged at the applicable international
rate. Lines are open 9:00 - 17:30, Monday to Fndoy excludmg
-public holidays in England ond Wales).

Details of individual shareholdings and other information can -
also be obtained online from the Registrar’s Share Portal at
www.signalshares.com. Shareholders are able to manage their
shareholding online by registering for the Share Portal, a free
and secure online access ‘service. Facilities include:

Account Enquiry - Shareholders can access their personal

’ shareholdmg, including share tronsoctlon history, dividend

payment history and obtain an up-to-date shareholding valuation. -

Amendment of Standing Data - Shareholders can change

their registered postal address and add, change or delete
dividend mandate instructions. Shareholders can also download.
forms such as change of address, stock transfer and dividend
mandates as well as buy and sell shares in the Company.

Should you have any queries in respect of the Link Share Portal,
contact the helpline on 0371 664 0391 (calls are charged at

the standard geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls
outside the United Kingdom will be charged at the applicable
'intemolionol'rote. Lines are open 9:00 - 17:30, Monday to Friday
excluding public holidays in England and Wales).

" _Fidelity Platform Investors
-Contact Fidelity, using the freephone numbers given below, or by

writing to: UK Customer Service, Fidelity, PO Box.391, Tadworth,
Surrey KT20 9FU.

Website: www.fidelity.co.uk

Privctginvestors: call free on 0800 41 41 10, 9:00 - 18:00,
Mondoy to Saturday.

) Fmoncml advisers: call free on 0800 41 41 81 8: 00 - 18:00,

Mondoy to Friday.

General Enquiries

. .General enquiries should be made to the Secretary, at the

Company'’s registered office: FIL Investments International,
Investmént Trusts, Beech Gate, Millfield Lane, Lower ngswood

- Tadworth, Surrey KT20 6RP.

Telebhone: 01737 836347 -
Email: investmgnttrusts@ﬁl.com
Website: www.fidelity.co.uk/its

If you hold Fidelity Special Values PLC shares in an account
provided by Fidelity International, you will-receive o report every
six months detculmg all of your transactions and the value of your
shares.

ShareGift _
You may donate your shares to charity free of charge through
ShareGift. Further details are available at www.sharegift.org.uk.
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Sho're_holder Information continved

¢
{
\

Manugers and Advisors

. Alternative Investment Fund-Manager
(the AIFM/Manager)
FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited -
Beech Gate '
Millfield Lane
Lower Kingswood

. Tadworth.

Surrey
KT20 6RP

Investment Manager, Secretary and
Registered Office
FIL Investments International

Banker. and-Custodian

" IPMorgan Chase Bank (London Bronch)

125 London Wall
London
EC2Y 5A3

‘Depositary

J.P. Morgan Europe Limited
25 Bank Street

"London

E14 5P

Financial Adviser and Stockbroker

~ Lawyer -

Simmons and Simmons LLP
1 Ropemaker Street
London

EC2Y 9SS

. V liegistror
Link.-Group

Central Square
29 Wellington Street
Leeds

1S1 4DL

Beech Gate Winterflood Securities
Millfield Lane The Atrium Building
Lower Kingswood Cannon Bridge
Tadworth 25 Dowgate Hilt

_ Surrey “london

© KT20 6RP EC4R 2GA

Email: investmenttrusts@fil.com

Ernst & Young LLP
25 Churchill Place
London
‘E14 5EY

Independent Auditor

Compony Information
The Company was launched on 17 November 1994. The orugmol
subscription price was £1 for each ordinary share of 25 pence
each. Following the sub-division of ordinary shares on a five for .
one basis on 29 June 2015, the Company’s share capital now -
comprises ordinary shares of 5 pence each and the restated :

- original subscription price is 20 pence for €ach ordinary share.

The Compdny is a member of The Association of Investment
Companies (the."AlC”) from whom general information on

investment trusts can be obtained by telephoning 020 7282 5555

(email: enquiriés@théuiq.co.uk).

Price Information

The share price of Fidélity Special Values PLC is published
daily in the Financial Times under the heading “Investmeént
Companies”. It is also published in The Times and The Daily
Telegraph. Price and performance information is also available
at: www.fidelity.co.uk/specialvalues

Investors can also obtdin current price information by telephoning

Fidelity for free on 0800 41 41 10 or FT Cityline on 0905 817 1690

(voice activated service) (calls charged at 60p per minute on

a per second basis from a BT landline. Charges from other
telephone networks may vary). The Reuters code for Fidelity

" Special Values PLC is FSV.L, the SEDOL is BWXC7Y9 and the ISIN
is GBOOBWXG7Y93.

Net Asset Value (“NAV") lnformetlon .
The Company’s NAV is calculated and released to the London
Stock Exchange on a daily basis..

UK Capilal Gains Tax

All UK individuals under-present legislation are permitted to
have £6,000 of capital gains in the current tax year 2023/2024 -
(2022/2023: £12,300) before being liable for capital gains tax.
Copital gains tox is charged at 10% and 20% dependent on the
total amount of taxable income:
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General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”)
What personal data is collected and how it is used
The Company is an investment trust which is a publrc limited company and has certain regulcrtory obligations such as the .
requirement to send documents to its Shareholders, for example, the Annual Report and other documents that relate to meetings
of the Company. The Company will, therefore, collect Shareholders’ personal data such as names, addresses and- identification
numbers or investor codes and will use this personal data to fulfil its statutory obiigotions. :

Any personal data collected will be kept securely on.computer systems and in some circumsiances on paper. Personal information
is kept secure in line with Fidelity’s Information Security policies and standards. If you are unhappy with how we have used your
personal data, you can complain by contoctlng the UK Data Protecllon Officer at Fidelity International, Beech Gate, Millfield Lane,
Lower ngswood Tadworth, Surrey KT20 6RP. .

Shormg ‘personal data

In order to assist the Company in meeting its statutory requrremenls the Company delegates certain dutles around the processmg
of this data 1o its third party service providers, such as the Company’s Registrar and Printers. The Company has appointed Fidelity
to undertake marketing activities for the Company and their privacy statement can be found on the Company website at
https://investment-trusts.fidelity.co.uk/security-privacy/ T

The Company’s agreements with the third party service providers have been updoted to be compliant with GDPR requrrements'

The Company confirms to its Shareholders that their data will not be shared with any third party for any other purpose, such as for

morketmg purposes. In some circumstances, it may be necessary to transfer shareholders’ personal data across national borders
to Fidelity Group entities operating in the European Economic Area (“EEA”). Where this does occur, the European standard of -
protections will be applied to the personal data that is processed. Where personal data is transferred within the Fidelity group ‘but
outside of the EEA, that data will subsequently receive the same degree of protection as it would in the EEA. .

Retention period
Personal data will be kept for as long as is necessary for these purposes and no longer than legally permmed to do so.

Requesting access, making changes to personal data and other important information

Shareholders can access the information that the Company holds about them or ask for it to be corrected or deleted by contachngh
Fidelity’s UK Data Protection Officer, Fidelity InternollonoI{ Bee;h Gate, Millfield Lane; Lower Kingswood, Tadworth, Surrey KT20 6RP.
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Alternative Investment Fund Monogers
D|sc|osure

In compliance with the Alternative Investment Fund Mondgers Directive ("AIFMD"), the Board has appointed FIL Investment Services
(UK) Limited (“FISL”) as the Company’s Alternative Investment Fund Manager (“AIFM” ) FISL has delegated the portfolio management
of assets and company secretanol function to FIL Investments Internotlonol Detouls of the Management Agreement can be found in
the Directors’ Report on page 33. :

" The table below discloses informction'required by the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Regulations 2013.

-Function _' AIFM Role and Responsibility AIFMD Disclosure
Investment “The AIFM provides portfolio management of Details of the Company’s investment objective, policy
monagemem assets and investment advice in relation to the and strategy, including investment Iimits, are on
. : assets of the Company. It has delegated this pages 21 and 22.
function to- FIL Investments International. o '
" The Board remains resp'on‘_sible for setting the
investment strategy, investment policy and
investment guidelines and the AIFM operates ’
within these guidelines.
‘Risk ‘ The AIFM has a responsibility for risk The AIFM has an ongomg process for identifying,
management management for the Company which is in ~ evaluating and managing the principal risks faced .

addition to the Board's corporate governance
responsibility for risk management,

The Company has a Risk-MonogeAment

Process Document which demonstrates that

risk management is separated functionally

and hierarchicdlly from operating units and
demonsirates independence safeguards. The
Manager maintains adequate risk management

. systems in order to identify, measure and monitor .

all risks ot least annually under the AIFMD. The

Manager is responsible for the implementation

of various risk activities such as risk systems, risk
‘profile, risk limits and testing.

_The Boord, as part of UK corporate governance,
.remains responsible for the identification of

significant risks and for the ongoing review of the

.Company’s risk management and internal ‘control

processes.

by the Company and this is regularly reviewed

by the Board. The Board remains responsible for
the Company’s system of risk management and
internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Further details can be found in the Strategic Report
on pages 23 to 25 and in Note 17 to the Financial

Statements on pages 70 to 76.

Valuation of

illiquid assets :

. Thé AIFMD requires the disclosure of the

percentage of the Alternative Investment Fund’s

assets which are subject to special arrangements

arising from their illiquid nature and any new
arrangements for managing the. liquidity of the

- Company.

As ot the date of this report, none of the Company’s
assets were subject to special orrongements arising

fromits illiquid noture
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- Statement. This ensures that the AIFM comglies

with the requirements of the FCA’'s Remuneration .
Code (SYSC19A); the AIFM Remuneration Code -
(SYSC19B); and the BIPRU Remuneration Code
(SYSC19C).

Function AIFM Role and Responsibility - AIFMD Disclosure
Leverqge‘ The Compoﬁy uses leverage to increase its “The maximum leverage limits are 1.80 for the Gross
exposure primarily to UK companies and currently Method of calculating leverage and 1.50 for the
holds derivative instruments. The AIFM has set Commitment Method. .
“maximum levels of leverage that are reasonable. . S ‘
It has implemented systems to calculate and - At 31 August 2023, actual leverage was 1.13 for the
monitor compliance against these.limits and has Gross Method and 1.14 for the Commitment Method. "
ensured that the limits have been complied with : )
at all times.
There are two methods of calculating leverage
- the Gross Method which does not reduce
exposure for hedging; and the Commitment
Method which does reduce exposure for hedging. -
L_iquidity The AIFM, in consultation with the Board, No new arrangements for managing the liquidity of -
management " maintains a liquidity management policy which is. the Company have been made. Further details can
: ) considered at least cmnuolly be found in Note 17 on page 73.
' Remuneration The AIFM bpérotes under the terms of Fidelity . Details of Fidelity International’s Global Remuneration
‘of the AIFM - International’s Global Remuneration Policy Policy can be found at www.fidelityinternational.

com/global/remuneration/defauit.page

EU Securities Financing Transactions Reguvlctions (“SFTR") :
The following disclosures.relate to contracts. for difference (“CFDs”) held by the Company which may be considered Total Return
Swaps under the SFTR, which came into force ‘on 12 January 2016. ' ’

As at 31 August 2023, all CFDs were‘controcled bilaterally with open maturities:

Collateral Collateral
. held by the held by the .

. Fair Value  Percentage of broker Company
Broker £'000 Net Assets . £'000 £'000
HSBC Bank plc (UK) 249 0.03% 360 -
Morgan Stanley & Co International plc (UK) 107 0.01% . = -
UBS AG (UK) 59 - 0.01% : - -
J.P. Morgan Securities plc (UK) 390 0.04% 220 - -
Goldmoh Sachs International Ltd (UK) .15, 0.00% ' o -

Collateral held by the broker was held in a ségregcted account on behalf of the Company with a maturity of bne day. The total return
for the year ended 31 August 2023 from CFDs was a gain of £34,189,000. . .
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Glo'ssqry of Terms

AAF Report

. A report prepared in accordance with the Audit and Assurance
Faculty guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Englond and Wales. :

AIC
The Association of Investment Companies (”AIC”) The Compony
is a member of the AIC.

AIF
Alternative Investment Fund (“AlF"). The Company is an AlF.

AIFM
" Alternative Investment Fund Manager (“AIFM"). The Board hcs
_ appointed FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited to act as the
Compony’s AIFM (the Manager). : ’

AIFMD
The Alternative Investment Fund Managers’ Directive ("AIFMD") is
a European Union Directive mplemented on 22 July 2014.

Alternative Performance Measures .
The Company uses the following Aliernative Performance
Measures which are all defined in this Glossary of Terms:

. biscourit/Premium;

. .G“eoring;

*  Net Asset Valve V(NAV) per Ordinary Share;
"+ Ongoing Charges Ratio;

. Reveﬁue, Cc':piicl and Tptol Returns; and

* Total Return Performance (Net Asset Value Total Return or
Share Pnce Total Retum) ‘ :

Asset Exposure

The 'value of an underlying security or instrument to-which the
Company is exposed, whether through direct or indirect in-
vestment (including the ‘economic value of the exposure in the
underlying asset of derivatives).

Benchmark Iindex
FTSE All-Share Index against which the performance of the
Company is measured.

Block Listing . .
A facility that allows the Compony to issue new ordinary shares
to meet demand in the market over a period of time.

Capital Gains Tax (CGT)
The tax you may ‘have to pay if you sell your shares at a profit.

~

Collateral

Assets provided as security for the unrealised gain or loss under

a contract for difference.

Contract For Difference (CFD) .
‘A contract for difference is a derivative. It is o contract between

the Company*and an investment house at the end of which the
parties exchange the difference between the opening price and
the closing price of an underlying asset of the specified financial
instrument. It does not involve the Company buying or selling the
underlying asset, only agreeing to receive or pay the movement
in its share price. A contract for difference allows the Company
to gain access to the movement in the share price by depositing
a small amount of cash known as collateral. The Company may
reason that the asset price will rise, by buying (“long” position)
or fall, by selling (“short” position). If the Company holds long

. positions, dividends are received and interest is paid. If the

Company holds short posmons dlwdends are paid and interest
is received. :

Corporation Tax

-The UK tax the Company may have to pay on its profits. As

an investmént trust company, the Company is exempt from UK
corporation tax on its capital gains and does not pay tax on any
UK dividends. It'can also offset expenses against any taxable
income, and consequently it is tax efficient for the Company.

. Custodian -

An entity that holds (as intermediary) the Company’s assets,

" arranges the settlement of transactions and administers income,

proxy voting and corporate actions. The Company’s Custodian is
JPMorgan Chase Bank.

Depositary

" An entity that oversees the custody, cosh arrangements and other

AIFM respon5|b|!mes of the Company. J.P.Morgan Europe Limited
act as the Company’s Depositary. -

Derivativés

Financial instruments (such as futures, options and contracts
for difference) whose value is derived from the value of an
underlying asset or other financial instrument.

v

Discount

_If the share price of the Compony is Iower than the net asset

value per ordinary share, the Compony s shares are said to be
trading at a discount. It is shown as-a percentage of the net
asset value per ordinary share.

'Fcur Valve

The fair value is the best measure of the reollsoble volue of
the investments, including derlvotwes at a point in time and is
measured as:

¢ Listed and AIM quoted investments - valued at bid prices

or last market_prices as available, otherwise at published
price quotations; :

*  Unlisted investments - valued using an appropriate
valuation technique in the absence of an active market;
* Contracts for difference - valued as the difference
between the settlement price of the contract and the value
. of the underlying shares in the contract (unrealised gains or
losses); and
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*  Futures and options - valued at the quoted trade price for
the contract. ’

Fidelity International (Fidelity)

FIL Limited and its subsidiary grdup companies including FIL
Investment Services (UK) Limited and FIL Investments Interna-
tional which act'as AIFM, Secretary and Investment Manager.

Future :
An agreement to buy or sell o stated amount of an asset ot @
specific future dote and a pre-agreed ‘price.

Gearing :

The economic exposure of the portiolio to its underlying assets in
excess of total net assets. It represents the additional exposure to
-the market above Shareholders’ Funds. The Company uses two'
measures of gearing (Gross Gearing and Net Gearing) which
are both defined in this Glossary of Terms.

Gross Asset Exposure

The value of the portfolio to which the Company. is exposed,
whether through direct or indirect invesiment (including the
economic value-of the exposure in the underlying asset of the
derivatives). It is the sum total of all Asset Exposures.

Gross Gearing
Gross Asset Exposure in excess of Shoreholders funds

Hedgmg

A strategy aimed at minimising or eliminating the risk or loss
through adverse movements normally involving taking a position
in a derivative such as a future or an option. .

Investment Manager
FIL investments International.

Manager

FIL Investment Services (UK) Limited is the appointed Manager
under the AIFMD. It has deleégated the portfolio manogement of
assets to the Investment Manager. .
Net Assets or Net Asset Value (NAV)

Also described as “Shareholders’ funds”, net assets represent
the total value of the Company’s assets less the total value of its
liabilities. For valuation purposes it is common to'.express the net
asset value on a per ordinary share basis. .

Net Asset Value per Ordinary Share

The net asset value lelded by the number of ordinary shares in |

issue.

Net Gearing )
Net Market Exposure in excess of Shareholders’ funds:

Net Market Exposure
Net Market Exposure is the total of all long exposures, less short
exposures and less exposures hedging the portfolio.

Ongoing Churges Ratio

Total operational expense (excludlng flnonce costs and taxation)
incurred by the Company as a percentage of the average daily
net.asset values for the reporting year. o
Options

An option is a contract which gives the right but not the
obligation.to buy of sell an underlying asset at an agreed price
on or before an agreed date. Options may be calls.(buy) or puts
(sell) and are used to gain or reduce exposure to the underlylng
asset on a condmonol basis.

Portfolio Manager'
Alex Wright is the appointed Portfolioc Manager of the Company
and is responsible for managing the Compony s assets.

Pre-Emption Rights

Section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 provides thot a company
offering a new issue of shares must first make an offer of these
shares, on the same or more favourable terms, in proportion

to the nominal value held to existing Shareholders. At each
Annual General Meeting, the Board seeks Shareholder approval
to disapply pre-emption rights provision, up to 10% of the ‘

' ~ Company's issued share caputol

Premium

" i the share price of the Company is-higher than the net o‘sset

value per ordinary share, the Company’s shares are said to be
trading at a premium. The premium is shown as a percentage of
the net asset value per ordinary share.

Registrar :
An entity that manages the Company’s Shoreholder register. The
Company’s Registrar is Link Group.
i
Reserves
* Share premium account represents the amount by
which the proceeds from the issue of ordinary shares
" has exceeded the cost of those ordinary shares. It is not
distributable by way of dividends and it connot be used to
fund share repurchases.

» - Capital redemption reserve maintains the equity share
capital of the Company and represents the nominal value
of shares repurchased and cancelled. It is not distributable
by way of dividends and it connot be used to fund share
repurchases.

» ' Other non-distributable reserve represents amounts
transferred from the warrant reserve. It is not distributable
by way of dividends ond it cannot be used to fund share

. repurchases.

"+ Capital reserve represents realised gains or losses on

investments and derivatives sold, unrealised increases and
decreases in the fair value of invesiments and derivatives
held and other income and costs recognised in the capital
column of the Income Statement. It can be used fo fund
repurchases and issuance of shares from Treasury and it is
distributable by way of dividends. :
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Glossary of Terms continved

* Revenue reserve represents retained revenue surpluses ‘
" recognised through the revenue column of the Income
Statemient. It is distributable by way of dividends.

Return N - .
The return generated in-a given period from investments:

*  Revenue Return reflects the dividends and interest from
investments and other income net of expenses, finance costs
" and taxotion; - ’

« Capital Return reflects the return on copital, excluding.any
revenue return; and ' ’

* Total Return reflects the aggregate of revenue and capital
returns. . :

Shbljeholders' Funds ) . .
Shareholders’ funds are also described as “net asset value” and
represent the total value of the Company’s assets less the total
value of its liabilities as shown in the balance sheet. L

Total Return Performance

The return on the share price or net asset value per ordinary
share taking into account the rise and fall of share prices and the |
dividends paid to Shareholders. Any dividends received by the
Shareholder are assumed to have been reinvested for additional .
shares (for share price total return) or in the Company’s dssets -
(for net asset value total return). : ’

Treasury Shdres

Ordinary shares of the Company that have been repurchased

by the Company and not cancelled but held in Treasury. These
shares do not receive dividends, have no voting rights and are |
excluded from the net asset value per ordinary share calculation.



To find out more about Fidelity Special Values PLC, visit out new 'website www fidelity.co.uk/specialvalues where you can read
articles and watch videos on the Company. )
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